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2020 2021 12 31
IFRS
12 31
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
5,443,112 3,906,975 3,115,672 3,359,984 3,101,175
(703,739,950)  (505,132,798)  (402,825,233)  (434,412,331) (400,950,916)
(3,767,342) (2,986,062) (2,473,213) (2,613,307) (2.360,431)
((487,079,647)) ((386,067,956)) ((319,761,709)) ((337,874,462))  ((305,180,124))
1,675,770 920,913 642,459 746,677 740,744
(216,660,303)  (119,064,842)  (83,063,524)  (96,537,869) (95,770,792)
(638,842) (677,413) (687,369) (663,368) (509, 356)
((82,595,882)) ((87,582,727)) ((88,869,938)) ((85,766,849)) ((65,854,637))
(27,642) (29, 466) (26,836) (30, 455) (35,796)
((3,573,834))  ((3,809,659)) ((3.,469,626)) ((3,937,527)) ((4,628,065))
(275,703) (266,376) (254,924) (199, 818) (198,036)
((35,645,641))  ((34,439,753)) ((32,959,124)) ((25,834,469)) ((25,604,074))
997 (199) (1,076) (937) 137
(128,902) ((25,729)) ((139,116)) ((121,145)) (17,713)
657,982 364,487 376,656 162,541 127,202
(85,070,493)  (47,124,524)  (48,697,854)  (21,014,926) (16,445,947)
1,392,562 311,946 48,910 14,640 124,895
(180,044,341)  (40,331,498) (6,323,574) (1,892,806) (16,147,675)
223,035 170,794 138,988 64,339 27,090
(28,836,195)  (22,081,956)  (17,969,759) (8,318,389) (3,502, 466)
(110,143) (73,234) (63, 460) (24,278) (18,021)
((14,240,388))  ((9,468,424))  ((8,204,743))  ((3,138,903)) ((2,329,935))
1,407 89,818 9,495 (8,499) (12,694)
(181,911)  (11,612,569) (1,227,609)  ((1,098,836)) ((1,641,207))
80,785 50,741 42,981 24,282 16,499
(10, 444,693) (6,560,304) (5,557,013) (3,139, 420) (2,133,156)
252,678 187,343 5,362 21,203 (9,500)
(32,668,739)  (24,221,576) (693,253) (2,741,336) ((1,228,255))
1,840,324 737,408 182,276 91,687 128,269
(237,935,490)  (95,339,480)  (23,566,464)  (11,854,212) (16,583,899)
(65,166) (68,310) (23,416) (14,476) (1,846)
((8,425,312))  ((8,831,800)) ((3,027,455)) ((1,871,602)) ((238,669))
1,775,158 669,098 158,860 77,211 126,423
(229,510,178)  (86,507,680)  (20,539,009) (9,982,610) (16,345,230)
36,789 66,389 (16,769) (35,919) 23,213
(4,756,450) (8,583,434)  ((2,168,064))  ((4,643,968)) (3.,001,209)
- - (2,381) - (2.381)
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Q) Q) ((307,839)) Q) ((307,839))
11,226 (21,286) (26,524) 35,931 35,143
(1,451,410) ((2,752,067))  ((3.,429,288))  (4,645,519) (4,543,638)
- - - - 17,646
Q) Q) Q) Q) (2,281,451)
- - - - (131)
Q) Q) Q) Q) ((16,937))
- - (1,532) 129 (436)
) ) ((198,072)) (16,678) ((56,370))
1,823,173 714,201 114,035 77,352 199,477
(235,718,037) (92,339,047)  (14,743,585)  (10,000,840) (25,790,381)
1,701,803 715,550 234,681 134,055 179,679
(220,026,110) (92,513,460)  (30,341,906)  (17,331,971) (23,230,698)
73,355 (46,452) (75,821) (56,844) (53,256)
(9,484,068) ((6,005,779))  ((9,802,897))  ((7.349,361)) ((6,885,468))
1,775,158 669,098 158,860 77,211 126,423
(229,510,178) (86,507,680)  (20,539,009) (9,982,610) (16,345,230)
1,749,818 760,639 188,831 133,977 251,135
(226,233,969) (98,343,016)  (24,413,960)  (17,321,886) (32,469,244)
73,355 (46,438) (74,796) (56,625) (51,658)
(9,484,068) ((6,003,969))  ((9,670,375))  ((7,321,046)) ((6,678,863))
1,823,173 714,201 114,035 77,352 199,477
(235,718,037) (92,339,047)  (14,743,585)  (10,000,840) (25,790,381)
$ 0.22 % 0.11 $ 0.04 $ 0.03 $ 0.04
(28) 14) ®) O] ®)
$ 0.21 % 0.11 $ 0.04 $ 0.03 $ 0.04
@n a4 ®) (O] ®)
7,903,856,555  7,703,507,527 5,056,868,912 5,039,819,199 4,916,106,889
30.8% 23.6% 20.6% 22.2% 23.9%
32.6% 17.1% 5.1% 2.3% 4.1%
6,747,190 5,698,624 5,028,796 4,874,663 4,310,779
12 31
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
( )
36,110,941 31,320,575 16,437,820 14,424,320 11,918,451
(4,668,783,562) (4,049,437,142) (2,125,245,748) (1,864,920,333) (1,540,936,530)
20,893,076 16,149,220 9,563,979 8,274,729 7,749,467
(2,701,265,796) (2,087,932,654) (1,236,526,845) (1,069,839,712) (1,001,928,588)
14,260,783 12,138,021 7,757,247 6,777,970 6,523,403
(1,843,776,634) (1,569,324,735) (1,002,934,465)  (876,323,741)  (843,410,774)
1,859,151 1,440,976 1,139,317 1,135,442 758,241

(240,369,633)  (186,303,787)  (147,302,295)  (146,801,296) (98,032,979)
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3,725,962 1,638,721 - - -
(481,729,627)  (211,870,238) ®) ) )
15,217,865 15,171,355 6,873,841 6,149,591 4,168,984
(1,967,517,766) (1,961,504,488)  (888,718,903)  (795,080,620)  (539,007,941)
1,193,811 798,776 628,885 593,009 622,679
(154,347,824)  (103,273,749)  (81,308,542)  (76,670,134) (80,506,168)
1,215,473 975,927 836,143 837,828 616,308
(157,148,504)  (126,177,602)  (108,104,928)  (108,322,782) (79,682,461)
3,838,129 2,806,517 2,276,370 1,996,808 683,812
(496,231,698)  (362,854,583)  (294,311,877)  (258,167,306) (88,410,053)
214,191 575,258 804,547 592,290 336,043
(27,692,754)  (74,375,107)  (104,019,882)  (76,577,174) (43,446,999)
8,581,746 9,826,537 2,238,840 1,786,420 1,838,300
(1,109,533,940) (1,270,472,969)  (289,459,624)  (230,966,242)  (237,673,807)
10,672,798 9,638,837 6,239,958 5,500,740 5,197,116
(1,379,886,053) (1,246,205,236)  (806,764,170)  (711,190,675)  (671,935,128)
6,219,178 5,746,127 3,034,759 2,641,512 3,290,337
(804,077,524)  (742,916,760)  (392,363,991)  (341,521,086)  (425,407,671)
4,453,620 3,892,710 3,205,199 2,859,228 1,906,779
(575,808,530)  (503,288,476)  (414,400,179)  (369,669,588)  (246,527,457)
25,438,143 21,681,738 10,197,862 8,923,580 6,721,335
(3,288,897,508) (2,803,231,906) (1,318,481,578) (1,153,729,658)  (869,001,402)
8,288,479 6,507,144 3,964,617 2,905,766 1,488,302
(1,071,617,450)  (841,308,648)  (512,585,332)  (375,686,486)  (192,422,566)
17,681 17,354 15,946 18,015 17,826
12 31
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

3,011,895 1,660,410 1,019,057 799,426 1,080,686
(389,407,905)  (214,674,409)  (131,753,880)  (103,357,788)  (139,721,893)
1,775,158 669,098 158,860 77,211 126,423
(229,510,178)  (86,507,680)  (20,539,009) (9,982,610) (16,345,230)
1,869,302 1,312,694 1,127,756 1,048,410 971,382
(241,682,056)  (169,718,207)  (145,807,573)  (135,548,929)  (125,589,979)
(6,655,435) (7,071,383) (1,948,507) (3,197,261) (2,662,139)

((860,481,191)) ((914,259,108)) ((251,922,470)) ((413,373,875)) ((344,187,951))

(4,120,275)

2,357,325

(5.274,686)

12,704,215

(1,869,563) (1,808,253) (2,287,205)

((532,710,355)) ((681,964,153)) ((241,715,800)) ((233,789,030)) ((295,712,734))
1,376,278 2,376,922 1,271,591

(177,938,983)  (307,312,245)  (164,404,000)

(304,778,549) (1,642,527,957)
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SMIC SMIC FAB
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x X G | DUV ArF
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¢ D
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C )
(
Mz smic
e
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2021 11 23 SMIC smic Ic
smic sMic
Ic 531.3 Ic
SMIC IC
2021 12 31 SMIC 73.27
(2) 2021 2020 12 31 shisc 38.52 swsc shisc
SMSC
57.14
(3) 2021 11 12 SMIC IC
shioc
swoc 55 smIc Ic
3,655 922 923 2021 12 31
smic 1,828 66.45
(4) SWBC 2024 12 31 2021 Ic
612.3 smic 510.0 SMBC
67.54 56.54
) 2021 SJ s 2021
42
JCET
2021 2020
12 31 12 31
JCET ( 12.86% 14.3%
JCET )
IC ( 8.17% 8.17%
IC )
15.85% 15.85%
( NSI )
¢ 19.57% 19.57%
( SMEC )
2021 12 31
2
17,679
17,681
9
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7,863

17,681
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2020 12 31
2021 12 31
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
( )

5,443,112 3,906,975 39.3
(3,767,342) (2,986,062) 26.2
1,675,770 920,913 82.0
(638,842) (677,413) .7
(27,642) (29,466) (6.2)
(275,703) (266,376) 3.5
657,982 364,487 80.5

114,299 187,378
252,678 187,343 34.9
3,011,895 1,660,410 81.4
(6,655,435) (7,071,383) (5.9)
2,357,325 12,704,215 (81.4)

3,907.0 5,443.1 39.3

5,699 18.4 6,747
610
738
2,986.1 26.2
3,767.3
920.9
82.0 1,675.8 23.6 30.8
311.9 1,392.6
677.4 638.8
29.5 27.6
266.4 275.7
354.5 658.0
231.4
2.2 48.3
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1,775.2 669.1 165.3
5,443,112 3,767,342 30.8 39.3 26.2 7.2
4,982,237 3,512,543 29.5 43.4 28.0 8.5
460,875 254,799 447 6.6 5.4 0.6
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5,443,112 3,767,342 30.8 39.3 26.2 7.2

1 2021 12 31 2020 12 31
64.0 63.5
22.3 23.2
2 13.7 13.3

@
@

2021 12 31 2020 12 31
32.2 44.4
12.8 17.1
23.5 18.2
31.5 20.3

2021 12 31 2020 12 31
FInFET/28 nm 15.1 9.2
40/45 nm 15.0 15.6
55/65 nm 29.2 30.5
90 nm 3.2 2.8
0.11/0.13 5.6 5.3
0.15/0.18 28.7 32.6
0.25/0.35 3.2 4.0
6,754,788 6,747,190 104,371 19.3 18.4 7.9
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( )
2020 12 31
2021 12
2021 12 31 2020 12 31 31
IC 3,767,342 100 2,986,062 100.0 26.2
( )
2020 12 31
2021 12
2021 12 31 2020 12 31 31
IC 301,820 8.0 283,056 9.5 6.6
IC 124,449 3.3 89,637 3.0 38.8
IC 3,086,274 81.9 2,371,518 79.4 30.1
254,799 6.8 241,851 8.1 5.4
i
615.4 1,696.7
11.3 31.2
IC
4.26
ii.
1,511.3 2,711.7
31.1 55.9
2021
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2020 12 31
2021 12 31 2021 12 31
2020 12 31
( )
3,011,895 1,660,410 81.4
(6,655,435) (7,071,383) (5.9)
2,357,325 12,704,215 (81.4)
(1,286,215) 7,293,242
( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
5,726,987 5,290,833
210,224 245,270
597,663 596,966
1,978 11,131
235,515 229,217
6,772,367 6,373,417
(8,581,746) (9,826,537)
(214,191) (575,258)
(78,184) (111,477)
(7,564,091) (4,445,238)
(9,665,845) (8,585,093)
6,772.4 1,572.5
890.1
31
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594.1
8,077.7 24.9 216.3
39
( )
231,382 13.0
378,319 21.3
252,678 14.2
( )
2021 12 2020 12 2020 12 31
31 31 2021 12
31
14,624 0.0 24,900 0.1 (41.3)
223,024 0.6 156,367 0.5 42.6

44/259



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o o o o {02 )

OooooOodd
3,725,962 10.3|| 1,638,721 5.2 127.4
70,393 0.2|| (120,577) 0.4)
1,193,811 3.3| 798,776 2.6 49.5
78,184 0.2 111,477 0.4 (29.9)
3,838,129 10.6|| 2,806,517 9.0 36.8
214,191 0.6 575,258 1.8 (62.8)
321,576 0.9 73,939 0.2 334.9
- 0.0f] 299,388 1.0 (100.0)
- 0.0 11,131 0.0 (100.0)
- 0.0f] 229,217 0.7 (100.0)
1,022,660 2.8|| 181,425 0.6 463.7
789,316 2.2|| 1,260,057 4.0 (37.4)
1,978 0.0 - 0.0 100.0
235,515 0.7 - 0.0 100.0
26,650 0.1 17,579 0.1 51.6
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250.1
148.5
183.5
( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
(9,665,845) (8,585,093)
25,438,143 21,681,738
38.0 39.6

50.9
42.5 43.3
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(12021 11 12 SMIC
SMOC 55 SMIC
922 923
16.78 100,000 12
28nm IC
SMOC
2021 11 11
(2)2021 27 SMIC SMIC
SMIC
SMIC 71.74 5.26
555.45
531.3
SMIC SMIC
40,000 12
2021 11 23 SMIC SMIC
SMIC
IC
22.00 IC
i SMIC 2,415
SMIC IC
iii SMIC
SMIC 77.00 55.00
SMIC
SJ
2021 22
BVI CICC
L.P.

OooooOodd
IC
Ic 3,655
SHoC 66.45  16.77
sMoC
( sMIC
(i) sMIC 2,415
SMIC
23.00 1,732.55 127
(ii)smic sMIC 22.00
sMIC 100 77
sMIC
IC sMIZ
sMIC
531.3 sMIC
sMIC
Ic
Gii)smic SMIC
49.74  5.26  23.00 22.00
sMIC
SMIC
2021 11 23
CICC SAIC
L.P.
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SJ SJ
SJ 56 397
SJ SJ 2021
SJ 2021 22
2021
2021 NTO 55nm BCD 55nm 40nm

DDIC 0.15um DDIC
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2021 12 31

10,000,000,000 7,903,856,555 2,096,143,445

2021 12 31

0.004 7,903,856,555
2016 12 31 4,252,922,259 17,011,690
32,723,622 130,894
2017 1 1
2017 13 31 389,042,383 1,556,170
241,418,625 965,675
2017 12 31 4,916,106, 889 19,664,429
24,071,936 96,288
2018 1 1
2018 13 31 118,581,374 474,325
(18,941, 000) (75,764)
2018 12 31 5,039,819,199 20,159,278
2019 1 1
2019 17 31 17,049,713 68,197
2019 12 31 5,056,868,912 20,227,475
16,484,979 65,940
2020 1 1 529,883,056 2,119,532
2020 12 31 161,807,580 647,231
1,938,463,000 7,754,852
2020 12 31 7,703,507,527 30,814,030
9,192,989 36,771
2021 1 1
o021 13 31 7,977,636 31,911
183,178,403 732,714
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2021 12 31 7,903,856,555 31,615,426
)
2021 12 31 XV
336
/
1
@ @
CICT
72,470,855(2) 852,5(2)2,595 11.70 - 924,993,450 11.70
CICT
15 852,522,595 - 10.79 - 852,522,595 10.79
@
18
- 852,522,595  10.87 - 859,522,595 10.87
®
30
IC
- 617,214,804  7.81 - 617,214,804 7.81
52 (O]
718
1C
617,214,804 - 7.81 - 617,214,804 7.81
(©)
31
1 2021 12 31 7,903,856,555
2 852,522,595 CICT
CICT 72,470,855 924,993,450
3 CNIC
90
SIVENEHIC) B )
2022
4 617,214,804 IC
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2022 50
2022
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2005 25
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132
2021 12 31
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10

2021 12 31 12

CSRC

10

2023

2023
2023
2024
2024
2024
- 2024
2024
2022

2022

2021 12 31

3.13

CG
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2021 12 31

)
2
Q) ) D) ) ) )
No 6 6 0 0 0 No 2/2
No 6 5 2 1 0 No 2/2
No 6 6 1 0 0 No 2/2
No 5 4 0 1 0 No 0/2
- No 5 5 0 0 0 No 2/2
No 5 2 1 3 0 No 0/2
No 6 5 3 1 0 No 2/2
No 5 5 4 0 0 No 2/2
No 6 5 4 1 0 No 2/2
No 1 0 0 1 0 No 0/0
No 1 1 1 0 0 No 0/0
No 5 4 3 1 0 No 0/2
Yes 6 6 6 0 0 No 2/2
- Yes 6 6 6 0 0 No 0/2
Yes 6 6 6 0 0 No 2/2
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Yes 6 6 1 0 0 No 2/2

Yes 5 5 5 0 0 No 2/2
6
0
0
6

2021 Yes
2021
CG A.6.5
2013 CG A.5.6

2013
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2021 12 31
2020 2021

2020 2021
2020

2021

CG

2021 12 31

/
4/4 -
4/4 -
- 0/0 2021 11 11
4/4 2021 11 11
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2021 12 31
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
CG
2021 12 31
/
5/5 -
- 5/5 -
0/0 2021 11 11
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0/0 2021 11 11
5/5 2021 11 11
3/3 2021 5 13
2021 8 4 2021 11 10
5/5 2021 11 11
2/2 2021 13
INED
INED 3.13
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CG
2021 12 31
2021 12 31
/
0/0 2021
3/3 2021
1/1 2021 13
1/1 2021
2021 29

3/3
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- 3/3

3/3

2021 12 31

2021 12 31

1/1
1/1

- 1/1 2021 11 11

1/1

- 1/1
1/1

2005 25
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2021 12 31

2021 11 11
()

3.29 2021 12
31 15
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2004
2004 16 2004 2004 18
2009 23
2021 12 31 2004
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2020 12 2021 12
31 31
5/31/2011 5/31/2011- 148,313,801  0.85 776,405 - 175,866 - 600,539 - - 3.3 0.83
5/30/2021
9/8/2011  9/8/2011- 42,809,083  0.58 78,466 - 13,103 - 65,363 - - 3.24  0.56
9/7/2021
11/17/2011 11/17/2011- 16,143,147  0.51 81,195 - 25,870 - 55,325 - - 3.26 0.51
11/16/2021
5/22/2012  5/22/2012- 252,572,706  0.45 2,334,978 - 66,000 - 554,760 - 1,714,218  3.18  0.45
5/21/2022
9/12/2012  9/12/2012- 12,071,250  0.37 35,800 - - - 10,600 - 25,200 3.04  0.37
9/11/2022
11/15/2012 11/15/2012- 18,461,000  0.47 111,416 - - - 23,200 - 88,216  3.39  0.47
11/14/2022
5/7/2013  5/7/2013- 24,367,201  0.76 100,215 - - - 15,287 - 84,928  3.17  0.77
5/6/2023
6/11/2013  6/11/2013- 102,810,000  0.82 1,328,622 - 16,000 - 222,845 - 1,089,777 3.20  0.79
6/10/2023
6/11/2013  6/11/2013- 74,755,756  0.82 188,233 - - - - - 188,233 - 0.79
6/10/2023
6/17/2013  6/17/2013- 13,608,249  0.80 1,360,824 - - - - - 1,360,824 - 0.78
6/16/2023
9/6/2013  9/6/2013- 22,179,070  0.72 128,725 - - - 82,400 - 46,325 3.09 0.73
9/5/2023
11/4/2013  11/4/2013- 19,500,000  0.74 105,000 - 13,900 - 33,200 - 57,900 3.32  0.72
11/3/2023
6,629,879 - 310,739 - 1,663,519 - 4,655,621
2004
2004
2004
2004
2004 2021 12 31
3.08 243,466,873
30
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2004
ADS
2004
10
25
36
2004
2004 2013 11 15
2004
2014
2014 2013 11 15
2021 12 31 2014
2020 12 2021 12
31 31
/
6/12/2014  6/12/2014- 2,886,486 0.82 288,648 - - - - - 288,648 - 0.82
6/11/2024
6/12/2014  6/12/2014- 26,584,250 0.82 262,229 - - - 129,000 - 133,229 2.91  0.82
6/11/2024
11/17/2014 11/17/2014- 119,640,012 1.09 1,433,018 - 10,303 - 233,970 - 1,188,745 3.16  1.10
11/16/2024
2/24/2015  2/24/2015- 12,293,017 0.91 130,500 - 92,000 - 17,000 - 21,500 2.84 0.88
2/23/2025
5/20/2015 5/20/2015- 12,235,000 1.06 35,916 - - - - - 35,916 - 1.05
5/19/2025
5/20/2015 5/20/2015- 25,211,633 1.06 2,521,163 - - - - - 2,521,163 - 1.05
5/19/2025
*
5/25/2016 ~ 5/25/2016- 5,146,000 0.82 40,450 - - - 10,000 - 30,450 3.55 0.83
5/24/2026
5/25/2016 ~ 5/25/2016- 989,583 0.82 98,958 - - - - - 98,958 - 0.83
5/24/2026
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9/12/2016  9/12/2016- 11,986 1.12 1,198 - - - 1,198 - 1.3
9/11/2026

4/5/2017  4/5/2017- 187,500 1.26 187,500 - - 187,500 - 311 1.4
47472027

4/5/2017  4/5/2017- 187,500 1.26 187,500 - - 187,500 - 375 1.24
4/4/2027

4/5/2017  4/5/2017- 62,500 1.26 62,500 - - - 62,500 - 1.4
47472027

5/22/2017  5/22/2017- 345,000 1.09 13,937 - - 2,250 11,687  3.07  1.07
5/21/2027

9/7/2017  9/7/2017- 1,687,500 1.01 1,687,500 - - - 1,687,500 - 1.00
9/6/2027

5/23/2018  5/23/2018- 18,493,834 1.34 9,068,222 - 670,975 1,512,675 6,884,572 3.11 1.33
5/22/2028

5/23/2018  5/23/2018- 125,000 1.34 125,000 - - - 125,000 - 1.33
5/22/2028

5/23/2018  5/23/2018- 87,500 1.34 87,500 - - - 87,500 - 1.33
5/22/2028

9/13/2018  9/13/2018- 187,500 1.09 187,500 - - - 187,500 - 107
9/12/2028

9/13/2018  9/13/2018- 187,500 1.09 187,500 - - 187,500 - 2,98 1.07
9/12/2028

1171972018 11/19/2018- 138,000 0.87 62,000 - - - 62,000 - 0.84
11/18/2028

5/21/2019  5/21/2019- 62,500 1.09 62,500 - - - 62,500 -1
5/20/2029

5/21/2019  5/21/2019- 62,500 1.09 62,500 - - - 62,500 -1
5/20/2029

9/12/2019  9/12/2019- 100,000 1.25 75,000 - - - 75,000 - 1.25
9/11/2029

9/12/2019  9/12/2019- 648,000 1.25 529,000 - 62,000 180,500 286,500 3.40 1.25
9/11/2029

9/12/2019  9/12/2019- 187,500 1.25 187,500 - - 187,500 - 339 1.25
9/11/2029

11/26/2019 11/26/2019- 70,000 1.29 70,000 - 52,500 17,500 - 3.0 1.30
11/25/2029

5/25/2020  5/25/2020- 6,794,803 2.33 6,131,903 - 667,219 523,342 4,041,342 3.21  2.18
5/24/2030

5/25/2020  5/25/2020- 62,500 2.33 62,500 - - - 62,500 - 2.8
5/24/2030

5/25/2020  5/25/2020- 62,500 2.33 62,500 - - - 62,500 - 2.18
5/24/2030

5/25/2020  5/25/2020- 219,706 2.33 219,706 - - - 219,706 - 2.8
5/24/2030

5/25/2020  5/25/2020- 54,966 2.33 54,966 - - 54,966 - 311 2.18
5/24/2030

5/25/2020  5/25/2020- 54,966 2.33 54,966 - 54,966 - - - 2.18
5/24/2030
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5/25/2020  5/25/2020- 29,042 2.33 29,042 - - - - - 29,042 - 2.8
5/24/2030

5/25/2020  5/25/2020- 281,092 2.33 281,092 - - - - - 281,092 - 2.8
5/24/2030

5/25/2020  5/25/2020- 659,117 2.33 659,117 - - - - - 659,117 - 2.8
5/24/2030

5/25/2020  5/25/2020- 586,793 2.33 586,793 - - - - - 586,793 - 2.8
5/24/2030

5/25/2020  5/25/2020- 659,117 2.33 659,117 - - - - - 659,117 - 2.8
5/24/2030

*

9/9/2020  9/9/2020- 108,851 2.84 108,851 - - - - - 108,851 - 2.43
9/8/2030

11/23/2020 11/23/2020- 3,574,049 2.97 3,542,957 - 416,594 - 43,080 - 3,083,283 3.21 2.93
11/22/2030

5/31/2021  5/31/2021- 3,434,762 3.16 - 3,434,762 309,698 - - - 3,125,064 - 31
5/30/2031

5/31/2021  5/31/2021- 62,500 3.16 - 62,500 - - - - 62,500 - 31
5/30/2031

5/31/2021  5/31/2021- 62,500 3.16 - 62,500 - - - - 62,500 - 31
5/30/2031

5/31/2021  5/31/2021- 32,877 3.16 - 32,877 - - - - 32,877 - 31
5/30/2031

5/31/2021  5/31/2021- 296,085 3.16 - 296,085 - - - - 296,085 - 31
5/30/2031

5/31/2021  5/31/2021- 13,119 3.16 - 13,119 - - - - 13,119 - 31
5/30/2031

5/31/2021  5/31/2021- 187,500 3.16 - 187,500 - - - - 187,500 - 31
5/30/2031

5/31/2021  5/31/2021- 32,877 3.16 - 32,877 - - - - 32,877 - 31
5/30/2031

5/31/2021  5/31/2021- 187,500 3.16 - 187,500 - - - - 187,500 - 31
5/30/2031

5/31/2021  5/31/2021- 277,149 3.16 - 277,149 - - - - 277,149 - 31
5/30/2031

5/31/2021  5/31/2021- 122,741 3.16 - 122,741 - - - - 122,741 - 31
5/30/2031

5/31/2021  5/31/2021- 277,149  3.16 - 277,149 - - - - 277,149 - 31
5/30/2031

*

9/15/2021  9/15/2021- 424,000 2.97 - 424,000 62,000 - - - 362,000 - 2.4
9/14/2031

11/19/2021 11/19/2021- 4,394,342 2.87 - 4,394,342 117,369 - - - 4,276,973 - 2.87
11/18/2031

30,108,749 9,805,101 2,515,624 - 3,474,283 - 33,923,943
2022 17

2014

2014

2014
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2014

2014
4.06
2014

12

2014

2018

2018

2014

2014
10

2014

2014

25

25

2014

2021
320,737,712

30

ADS

10

2014
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2014 2013 11 15
2021 12 31 2014
RSU RSU
2020 12 2021 12
/ 31 31
RSU RSU RSU RSU RSU RSU RSU RSU
11/17/2014 11/17/2014- 2,910,836 0.004 85,505 - - - - - 85,505 - 1.10
11/16/2024
5/20/2015  5/20/2015- 10,804,985 0.004 1,080,498 - - - - - 1,080,498 - 1.05
5/19/2025
*
5/25/2016  5/25/2016- 68,070,000 0.004 16,000 - - - 12,800 - 3,200 1.94 0.83
5/24/2026
5/25/2016  5/25/2016- 989,583 0.004 98,958 - - - - - 98,958 - 0.83
5/24/2026
9/12/2016  9/12/2016- 11,986 0.004 1,198 - - - - - 1,198 - 1.13
9/11/2026
4/5/2017 4/5/2017- 187,500 0.004 187,500 - - - 187,500 - - 2.22 1.24
4/4/2027
4/5/2017 4/5/2017- 62,500 0.004 62,500 - - - - - 62,500 - 1.24
4/4/2027
5/22/2017  5/22/2017- 7,469,000 0.004 932,250 - 21,550 - 901,800 - 8,900 3.20 1.07
5/21/2027
12/7/2017  12/7/2017- 364,000 0.004 57,000 - - - 57,000 - - 2.87 1.32
12/6/2027
5/23/2018  5/23/2018- 6,957,966 0.004 2,035,820 - 199,950 - 1,024,120 - 811,750 3.20 1.33
5/22/2028
5/23/2018  5/23/2018- 125,000 0.004 125,000 - - - - - 125,000 - 1.33
5/22/2028
5/23/2018  5/23/2018- 87,500 0.004 87,500 - - - - - 87,500 - 1.33
5/22/2028
9/13/2018  9/13/2018- 344,000 0.004 114,000 - - - 67,000 - 47,000 3.15 1.07
9/12/2028
9/13/2018  9/13/2018- 187,500 0.004 187,500 - - - 187,500 - - 3.01 1.07
9/12/2028
9/13/2018  9/13/2018- 187,500 0.004 187,500 - - - 187,500 - - 3.01 1.07
9/12/2028
11/19/2018 11/19/2018- 54,000 0.004 12,000 - - - 6,000 - 6,000 3.15 0.84
11/18/2028
5/21/2019  5/21/2019- 62,500 0.004 62,500 - - - - - 62,500 - 1.11
5/20/2029
5/21/2019  5/21/2019- 62,500 0.004 62,500 - - - - - 62,500 - 1.11
5/20/2029
9/12/2019  9/12/2019- 39,000 0.004 19,500 - - - - - 19,500 - 1.25
9/11/2029
9/12/2019  9/12/2019- 291,000 0.004 130,500 - - - 83,250 - 47,250 3.15 1.25
9/11/2029
9/12/2019  9/12/2019- 187,500 0.004 187,500 - - - 187,500 - - 3.39 1.25
9/11/2029
11/26/2019 11/26/2019- 70,000 0.004 52,500 - 52,500 - - - - - 1.30
11/25/2029
5/25/2020  5/25/2020- 2,677,933 0.004 2,265,782 - 246,481 - 680,342 - 1,338,959 3.22 2.18
5/24/2030
5/25/2020  5/25/2020- 62,500 0.004 62,500 - - - - - 62,500 - 2.18
5/24/2030

69/259



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o o o o {02 )

oOoOooodn

5/25/2020  5/25/2020- 62,500 0.004 62,500 - - - - - 62,500 - 2.18
5/24/2030

5/25/2020  5/25/2020- 86,603 0.004 86,603 - - - - - 86,603 - 2.18
5/24/2030

5/25/2020  5/25/2020- 54,966 0.004 54,966 - - - 54,966 - - 2.83 2.18
5/24/2030

5/25/2020  5/25/2020- 54,966 0.004 54,966 - 54,966 - - - - - 2.18
5/24/2030

5/25/2020  5/25/2020- 11,287 0.004 11,287 - - - - - 11,287 - 2.18
5/24/2030

5/25/2020  5/25/2020- 110,799 0.004 110,799 - - - - - 110,799 - 2.18
5/24/2030

5/25/2020  5/25/2020- 259,808 0.004 259,808 - - - - - 259,808 - 2.18
5/24/2030

5/25/2020  5/25/2020- 231,300 0.004 231,300 - - - - - 231,300 - 2.18
5/24/2030

5/25/2020  5/25/2020- 259,808 0.004 259,808 - - - - - 259,808 - 2.18
5/24/2030

9/9/2020 9/9/2020- 42,489 0.004 42,489 - - - 11,494 - 30,995 3.23 2.43
9/8/2030

11/23/2020 11/23/2020- 1,650,678 0.004 1,635,930 - 170,065 - 398,915 - 1,066,950 3.17 2.93
11/22/2030

5/31/2021  5/31/2021- 1,670,590 0.004 - 1,670,590 147,382 - 7,500 - 1,515,708 2.37 3.11
5/30/2031

5/31/2021  5/31/2021- 62,500 0.004 - 62,500 - - - - 62,500 - 3.11
5/30/2031

5/31/2021  5/31/2021- 62,500 0.004 - 62,500 - - - - 62,500 - 3.11
5/30/2031

5/31/2021  5/31/2021- 32,877 0.004 - 32,877 - - - - 32,877 - 3.11
5/30/2031

5/31/2021  5/31/2021- 147,482 0.004 - 147,482 - - - - 147,482 - 3.11
5/30/2031

5/31/2021  5/31/2021- 6,535 0.004 - 6,535 - - - - 6,535 - 3.11
5/30/2031

5/31/2021  5/31/2021- 187,500 0.004 - 187,500 - - - - 187,500 - 3.11
5/30/2031

5/31/2021  5/31/2021- 32,877 0.004 - 32,877 - - - - 32,877 - 3.11
5/30/2031

5/31/2021  5/31/2021- 187,500 0.004 - 187,500 - - - - 187,500 - 3.11
5/30/2031

5/31/2021  5/31/2021- 138,050 0.004 - 138,050 - - - - 138,050 - 3.11
5/30/2031

5/31/2021  5/31/2021- 61,138 0.004 - 61,138 - - - - 61,138 - 3.11
5/30/2031

5/31/2021  5/31/2021- 138,050 0.004 - 138,050 - - - - 138,050 - 3.11
5/30/2031

*

9/15/2021  9/15/2021- 165,000 0.004 - 165,000 24,000 - - - 141,000 - 2.94
9/14/2031

11/19/2021 11/19/2021- 2,067,057 0.004 - 2,067,057 49,774 - - - 2,017,283 - 2.87
11/18/2031

10,924,467 4,959,656 966,668 - 4,055,187 - 10,862,268
2022 17
2014 RSU

2014
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2014

2014
2014

2014

2014 2021 12 31
1.01 80,184,428

30

12 RSU

2014

ADS
2014
10
25

2014 RSU

RSU 0.031

2014 2014
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SJ 2021 SJ
2021 12 31
2021
2021 25 2021
2021 12 31 2021
2020 12 2021 12
/ 31 31
7/19/2021  7/19/2021- 360,000 3.14 - - - - - - 360,000 - 8.62
7/18/2026
7/19/2021  7/19/2021- 400,000 3.14 - - - - - - 400,000 - 8.62
7/18/2026
7/19/2021  7/19/2021- 400,000 3.14 - - - - - 400,000 - - -
7/18/2026
(
)
7/19/2021  7/19/2021- 400,000 3.14 - - - - - - 400,000 - 8.62
7/18/2026
7/19/2021  7/19/2021- 400,000 3.14 - - - - - - 400,000 - 8.62
7/18/2026
7/19/2021  7/19/2021- 360,000 3.14 - - - - - - 360,000 - 8.62
7/18/2026
7/19/2021  7/19/2021- 160,000 3.14 - - - - - - 160,000 - 8.62
7/18/2026
7/19/2021  7/19/2021- 65,055,200 3.14 - - - - - 276,320 64,778,880 - 8.62
7/18/2026
67,535,200 - - - - - 676,320 66,858,880
2022 17
2021
A
2021 12 31
0.96 75,650,400 A
67,535,200 90.00 2021 12 31
0.85 8,115,200
10.00 2021 12 31 0.10

721259



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o o o o {02 )

oOoOooodn
4,000 2020 12 31
17,354 23.05
20
A
20
72
30 25 25 20
2018 2020 EBITDA 2021 2022
2023 2024 EBITDA
22 152 291 440 19 145 276 415
100 0
A B c C- D/E
100 100 100 80 0
2021 2021 20 2021

SSE  http://www.sse.com.cn/
2021 20 2021
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)
10 23
* @ @
56 2013 2023 - - - Yes
6 17
58 2017 2024 163 - (163) Yes
10 16
59 2021 2023 - - - Yes
5 13
52 2009 2024 - - - Yes
6 23
54 2021 2024 - - - Yes
5 13
49 2015 2022 - - - Yes
8 11
63 2013 2023 - - - No
8 8
77 2018 2024 - - - No
- 6 22
61 2018 2024 - 187,500 187,500 RSU No
6 22
57 2021 2022 - - - No
2 4
69 2017 - - - - No
10 16
63 2017 - - - - No
10 12
52 2020 - 6,059 6,059 - No
1 11
« ) 53 2016 2021 4 29 - - - Yes
2 18
« ) 63 2017 2021 5 13 - - - Yes
2 14
- 75 2020 2021 11 11 - - - No
(G| 12 15
« ) 54 2009 2021 11 11 - - - Yes
1 23
62 2019 2021 11 11 - - - No
C ) 8 7
( 65 2015 2022 3 17 - - - Yes
) 3 6

6,657 210,241 203,584

* 2021 12 31

o

@

Gao Yonggang
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30
JCET
600584 iRay
688301
Zhao Haijun
2010 2016
SMNC
29 2016 11
600160
Lu Guoging
1985 2001
2001
2016
2017 12
2018 2021 CICT
2021 2021 CICT
CICT 2016
600498 2016
2020 300557
Chen Shanzhi
30 CICT
2019
600498
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CCSA IEEE
Huang Dengshan
1989 2014
2015 IC 2019 IC
Ren Kai
1995 2004
2014 IC
JCET
600584
600703
William Tudor Brown
ARM PLC NASDAQ 1P ARMH
EVP
ANT
PLC AIM ANTP NASDAQ
XPER
00992 NASDAQ MRVL
plc CWR.L
- Lau Lawrence Juen-Yee
1966 2014
CIC
AlA 1299
CNOoOC 0883

4904
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2008 2018 11 12
2007 Ralph and Claire Landau

Fan Ren Da Anthony

CITIC 1205
0220
0563 1062
1206 1387 -
1868 2882
6868
Liu Ming
33 / NVM
300
100 40 1988 1995
1999 2020
2021
1EEE EDS
EDS 2015
2019 TWAS

Gao Yonggang

Zhao Haijun
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Liang Mong Song

2017 10 16 2021 11 11

FinFET 35
450 350

Zhou Meisheng

CT0
TSMC UMC

Guo Guangli

2022 31 XV
352

XV
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/
(€]
2,532,350 865,051  360,000(4) 3,757,401 0.048%
2,372,588(%) 626,191(6)  400,000(") 3,398,779 0.043%
187,500(®  187,500(9 375,000 0.005%
475,156(10) 567,656(11) 1,042,812 0.013%
125,000(12) 155,000(13) 280,000 0.004%
32,8771 125,377(15) 158,254 0.000%
187,500 220,377(16)  32,877(17) 533,254 0.010%
187,500(18) 187,500(19) 375,000 0.000%
659,117(20) 661,346(21)  400,000(22) 1,720,463 0.020%
()1 2022 31 7,910,002,828
2 (a)2004 2013 17
360,824 6.24 2023
120 (b)2014
2014 12 288,648 6.4
2024 11 120 ©)
2014 2020 25 586,793
18.096 2030 24 120
(d)2014 2021 31
296,085 24.50 2031 30
120 2022 31
3 (a)2014 11 17 2014 291,083
RSU RSU
(i)240,145 RSU 2013 17 2017
17 (ii)50,938 RSU 2014 25
2018 (b)2020 25 2014
231,300  RSU RSU (i)74,016  RSU
2019 25 2023
(ii)157,284 RSU 2020 25 2024
(©)2021 31 2014 2022 24
147,482  RSU RSU 2021 25
2025 (d)2022 2014
400,764  RSU RSU
2022 25 2026 2022
31 205,578  RSU
4 2021 19 2021
20.0 360,000
2022 31
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(2)2004 2013 11
1,505,854 6.40 2023 10
90 (b)2014
2017 1,687,500 7.9
2027 90
(c)2014 2020 25 219,706
18.096 2030 24 120
(d)2014 2021 31
277,149 24.50 2031 30
120 2022 31 1,317,621
(2)2020 25 2014 86,603  RSU
RSU 2020 25 2024
(b)2021 31 2014
138,050  RSU RSU 2021
25 2025 (c)2022 2014
401,538  RSU
RSU 2022 25 2026
2022 31 RSU
2021 19 2021
20.0 400,000
2022 31
2021 31 2014 187,500 24.50
2031 30
120 2022 31
2021 31 2014
187,500  RSU RSU 2021 13 33
33 34 2024 13 2022 31
RSU
(2)2016 25 2014
98,958 6.42 2026
24 120 (b)2016 12 2014
1,198 8.72
2026 11 120
(c)2017 2014
62,500 9.834 2027
120 (d)2018 23 2014
125,000 10.512
2028 22 120 (e)2019
21 2014 62,500
8.580 2029 20 120
(F)2020 25 2014
62,500 18.096 2030 24
120 (9)2021 31 2014
62,500 24.50
2031 30 120
2022 31
RSU (2)2016 25 2014
98,958  RSU (b)2016 12 2014
1,198  RSU (c)2017 2014
62,500  RSU (d)2018 23
2014 125,000 RSU 125,000  RSU 62,500
RSU 62,500  RSU 2019 (e)2019 21 2014
62,500 RSU 2020 @
2020 25 2014 62,500 RSU 2020
(9)2021 31 2014
62,500 RSU 2022
(h)2022 2014
92,500 RSU 2023 2022 31
RSU
(2)2020 25 2014
62,500 18.096 2030
24 120 (b)2021 31 2014
62,500 24.50
2031 30 120
2022 31
(a)2021 31 2014
62,500  RSU RSU 2022 (b)2022
2014
92,500  RSU RSU 2023 2022 31 RSU
2021 31 2014 32,877
24.50 2031 30
120 2022 31
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15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

(2)2021 31 2014
32,877 RSU
2014
RSU RSU 2023
(2)2018 13 2014
8.574
120
32,877
2031 30
2022 31
(2)2021 31 2014
32,877  RSU
2014
92,500  RSU RSU 2023
RSU
2021 31 2014
24.50
120
2021 31 2014
187,500  RSU
RSU
33 4 2024
RSU
2020 25 2014
18.096
31
(2)2020 25 2014
RSU (i)86,603
2023
25 2024
RSU RSU 2022
2022 31
2021 19 2021
20.0 400,000

EDINETOOOO
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RSU 2022
2022 31
2028
(b)2021 31
24.50
120
2022
2031
2022 31
2021
2030
RSU 2019
(ii)173,205  RSU
(b)2022
25
RSU
2022

12

81/259

2020

ooooogd
(b)2022
92,500
RSU
187,500
12
2014
(b)2022
2022 31
187,500
30
33
2022 31
659,117
24 2022
259,808  RSU
25
2014
401,538
2026
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2021 2020 12 31 (
( ( (
2021 2020
4,997 8,418
) 33 18
3,879 1,883
8,908 10,319
2021 2020 12 31
2021 2020
1 64,100 B 1
256,401 320,500 - 1
448,701 512,800 1 _
833,301 897,400 - 1
1,025,601 1,089,700 2 -
1,089,701 1,153,800 - 1
1,410,201 1,474,300 1 1
1,538,401 1,602,500 2 1
1,602,501 1,666,600 1 -
4,871,601 4,935,700 - 1
7 7
o 1,653 85 1,395 6
(213,716) (10,990) (180, 360) (776)
@
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SEC

2021 12 31
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131
129.
132
2021 12 31
25 ) 193
103 )
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38

134
2022

133
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2021 12 31
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
6 5443112 703,739,950 3,906,975 505,132,798
3,767,342 487,079,647 2,986,062 386,067,956
1,675,770 216,660,303 920,913 119,064,842
638,842 82,595,882 677,413 87,582,727
27,642 3573834 29,466 3,809,659
275,703 35,645,641 266,376 34,439,753
39 997 128,902 199 25,729
7 657,982 85,070,493 364,487 47,124,524
1,392,562 180,044,341 311,946 40,331,498
223,035 28,836,195 170,794 22,081,956
8 110,143 14,240,388 73,234 9,468,424
1,407 181,011 89,818 11,612,569
9 80,785 10,444,693 50,741 6,560,304
252,678 32,668,739 187,343 24221576
1,840,324 237,935,490 737,408 95,339,480
10 65,166 8,425,312 68,310 8,831,800
11 1,775,158 229,510,178 669,098 86,507,680
36,789 4,756,450 66,389 8,583,434
28 11,226 1,451,410 21,286 2,752,067
1,823,173 235,718,037 714,201 92,339,047
1,701,803 220,026,110 715550 92,513,460
73355 9,484,068 46,452 6,005,779
1,775,158 229,510,178 669,098 86,507,680
1,749,818 226,233,969 760630 98,343,016
73355 9,484,068 46,438 6,003,969
1,823,173 235,718,037 714,201 92,339,047
/
14 0.22 28 0.1 14
14 021 27 041 14
! 14
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2021 12 31
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
16 14,260,783 1,843,776,634 12,138,021 1,569,324,735
17 553,729 71,591,622 491,238 63,512,161
18 67,616 8,742,073 81,953 10,595,703
20 1,859,151 240,369,633 1,440,976 186,303,787
20 17,639 2,280,546 31,521 4,075,350
10 14,624 1,890,737 24,900 3,219,321
21 223,024 28,834,773 156,367 20,216,689
21 3,725,962 481,729,627 1,638,721 211,870,238
21 51,073 6,603,228 29,046 3,755,357
23 117,787 15,228,681 114,811 14,843,914
1,688 218,242 1,666 215,397
20,893,076 2,701,265,796 16,149,220 2,087,932,654
24 1,193,811 154,347,824 798,776 103,273,749
43,368 5,607,049 48,176 6,228,675
25 1,215,473 157,148,504 975,927 126,177,602
21 78,184 10,108,409 111,477 14,412,861
21 3,838,129 496,231,698 2,806,517 362,854,583
21 31,371 4,055,957 4,891 632,357
23 214,191 27,692,754 575,258 74,375,107
41 8,581,746 1,109,533,940 9,826,537 1,270,472,969
15,196,273 1,964,726,136 15,147,559 1,958,427,903
26 21,592 2,791,630 23,796 3,076,585
15,217,865 1,967,517,766 15,171,355 1,961,504,488
36,110,941 4,668,783,562 31,320,575 4,049,437,142

86/259



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o o o o {02 )

27
27
28
29

30

31
17
33
32
34
10
35
21

36

31
17
32
34
35
37
21
10
21
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31
31,615 4,087,503 30,814 3,983,942
13,836,614 1,788,935,824 13,512,397 1,747,017,808
321,576 41,576,561 73,939 9,559,573
2,959,859 382,680,170 1,258,056 162,654,060
17,149,664 2,217,280,059 14,875,206 1,923,215,384
- - 299,388 38,707,875
8,288,479 1,071,617,450 6,507,144 841,308,648
25,438,143 3,288,897,508 21,681,738 2,803,231,906
4,937,671 638,391,484 4,030,776 521,139,029
109,461 14,152,213 150,321 19,435,002
597,663 77,271,849 596,966 77,181,734
- - 11,131 1,439,127
- - 229,217 29,635,466
32,188 4,161,587 - -
538,992 69,686,276 707,016 91,410,099
3,203 414,116 20,700 2,676,303
6,219,178 804,077,524 5,746,127 742,916,760
1,830,415 236,654,355 1,648,556 213,141,805
1,022,660 132,219,711 181,425 23,456,438
789,316 102,050,666 1,260,057 162,912,770
100,763 13,027,648 94,949 12,275,956
1,978 255,736 - -
235,515 30,449,734 - -
203,368 26,293,449 282,601 36,537,483
234,107 30,267,694 253,690 32,799,580
8,848 1,143,958 133,814 17,300,812
26,650 3,445,579 17,579 2,272,789
- - 20,039 2,590,842
4,453,620 575,808,530 3,892,710 503,288,476
10,672,798 1,379,886,053 9,638,837 1,246,205,236
36,110,941 4,668,783,562 31,320,575 4,049,437,142
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2021 12 31
27 27 28 28 28 28 29 30
2019 12 31 20,227 5,011,915 52,551 56,275 86,200 9,923 5,650 550,506 5,669,397 563,848 3,964,617 10,197,862
- - - - - - 715,550 715,550 46,452 669,098
- - 66,375 - 21,286 - 45,089 14 45,103
B - - 66,375 - 21,286 715,550 760,639 46,438 714,201
7,754 7,506,131 - - - - - 7,513,885 - 7,513,885
66 21,796 9,351 - - - 12,511 207 12,718
- - 9,275 - - - 9,275 1,185 10,460
2,119 708,743 - 84,236 - - 626,626 - 626,626
648 263,812 - - - - 264,460 264,460 - -
- - - - 3,632 - 3,632 - 3,632
- - - - - - 2,617,637 2,617,637
- - - - 23112 - 23112 23,112 -
- - 331 - - - 331 6,952 7,283
- - - - - - - 8,000 8,000 - - 8,000
10,587 8,500,482 76 , 331, 84,236 , - 26,744, 8,000 8,445,170 264,460 2,588,965 10,769,675
2020 12 31 30,814 13,512,397 52475 9769 1964 11363 21,094 1,258,056 14,875,206 299,388 6,507,144 21,681,738
- - - - - - 1,701,803 1,701,803 73,355 1,775,158
- - 36,789 - 11,226 - 48,015 - 48,015
B - - 36,789 - 11,226 1,701,803 1,749,818 73,355 1,823,173
36 14,766 9,047 - - - - 5755 - 5,755
- 68,998 - - - - 68,998 9,362 78,360
32 10,796 - - 1623 - - 9,205 - 9,205
733 298,655 - - - - - 299,388 299,388 - -
- - - - - 929 - 929 - 929
- - - - - - - 1,972,160 1,972,160
- - - - - 142,069 - 142,069 142,069 -
- - - - - 154 - - 154 131,473 131,319
801 324,217 59,951, - 1,623, 154, 141,140, - 524,640 299,388 1,707,980 1,933,232
2021 12 31 31,615 13,836,614 112,426 46,558 341 17 = 162,234 2,959,859 17,149,664 8,288,479 25,438,143
1
321,576,000 2020 12 31 73,939,000
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2019 12 31

2020 12 31

2021 12 31
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27 27 28 28 28 28 29 30

2,615,149 647990490 6794319 7,275,795 11,144,798 1,282,945 730,489 71,174,921 732,996,338 72,899,908 512585332 1318481578
- - - - - - - 92,513,460 92,513,460 6,005,779 86,507,680
8,581,624 - 2,752,067 - - 5,829,557 1,810 5,831,367
- - 8,581,624 - 2,752,067 - 92,513,460 98,343,016 6,003,969 92,339,047
1,002,515 970,467,677 - - - B B - 971,470,192 E 971,470,192
8533 2,818,005 1,208,991 - - - - 1,617,547 26,763 1,644,310
- - 1,199,165 - - - - 1,199,165 153,209 1,352,373
273,966 91,633,382 10,890,872 - - - 81,016,476 - 81,016,476
83,780 34,108,253 - - - - 34192033 34,192,033 - -
- - 469,581 - 469,581 - 469,581
- - - - - 338,434,288 338,434,288
- - 2,988,150 - 2,988,150 2,988,150 -

42,795 - - - - 42,795 898,824 941,619

- - - - - - - 1,034,320 1,034,320 - - 1,034,320
1,368,793 1,099,027,318 9,826 42,795 10,890,872 - 3,457,732 1,034,320 1091876029 34,192,033 334,727,285 1,392,411,281
3083942 1,747,017,808 6,784,493 1,263,034 253,926 1,469,122 2727243 162654060  1,923,215.384 38,707,875 841,308,648 2,803,231906
- - - - B B - 220026,110 220,026,110 9,484,068 229,510,178
4,756,450 - 1,451,410 - - 6,207,859 - 6,207,859
- - 4,756,450 - 1,451,410 - 220,026,110 226,233,969 9,484,068 235,718,037
4,654 1,909,096 1,169,687 - - - - X 744,064 X 744,064
- - 8,920,751 - - - - 8,920,751 1,210,413 10,131,164
4137 1,395,815 209,838 - - - 1,190,114 - 1,190,114
94,770 38,613,105 - - - - 38707875 38,707,875 - -

- - 120,110 - 120,110 - 120,110
- - - - - 254,980,566 254,980,566
- - 18,368,101 - 18,368,101 18,368,101 -

- - - - 19,911 - - 19,911 16,998,144 16,978,234
103,561 41,918,016 7,751,065 209,838 19,911 18,247,991 B 67,830,706 38,707,875 220,824,734 249,947 565
4087503 1788935824 14535558 6,019,484 44,088 2198 20975234 382,680,170 2.217,280,059 1071617450 3,288,897,508
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2021 12 31
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
1,775,158 229,510,178 669,098 86,507,680
10 65,166 8,425,312 68,310 8,831,800
11 1,869,302 241,682,056 1,312,694 169,718,207
11 78,360 10,131,164 10,460 1,352,373
223,035 28,836,195 170,794 22,081,956
8 110,143 14,240,388 73,234 9,468,424
7 48,281 6,242,250 2,247 290,515
7 231,382 29,915,379 904 116,878
11 61,232 7,916,685 24,456 3,161,916
9 80,155 10,363,240 53,629 6,933,693
103,749 13,413,708 64,711 8,366,485
252,678 32,668,739 187,343 24,221,576
8,000 1,034,320 4,177 540,044
2,905,617 375,667,222 1,682,801 217,569,341
257,015 33,229,469 148,181 19,158,321
359,649 46,499,019 193,003 24,953,358
/ 66,994 8,661,654 188,225 24,335,610
/ 628 81,194 4,492 580,771
79,211 10,241,190 199,806 25,832,918
841,235 108,763,273 89,092 11,518,705
/ 241,518 31,225,862 125,064 16,169,525
/ 15,979 2,065,925 101,667 13,144,526
3,019,524 390,394,258 1,664,529 215,206,954
146,602 18,954,173 103,305 13,356,303
209,848 27,131,248 150,544 19,463,834
70,875 9,163,429 51,358 6,640,076
3,011,895 389,407,905 1,660,410 214,674,409
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31

207,679 26,850,818 365,726 47,284,715
249,921 32,312,286 299,349 38,702,832
8,613,200 1,113,600,628 6,048,862 782,057,368
5,791,955 748,841,862 4,110,400 531,433,616
4,120,275 532,710,355 5,274,686 681,964,153
231,660 29,951,321 38,204 4,939,395
9,195 1,188,822 9,933 1,284,238
210,935 27,271,786 24,646 3,186,481
11,650 1,506,229 - -
340,222 43,987,302 7,381 954,289
185,297 23,957,049 118,772 15,356,032
61,246 7,918,495 54,853 7,091,944
2,072 267,889 2,838 366,925
134,920 17,443,807 269,967 34,904,033
132,500 17,130,925 - -
- 11,750 1,519,158
6,655,435 860,481,191 7,071,383 914,259,108
1,874,283 242,326,049 3,453,734 446,533,269
1,489,505 192,578,101 858,451 110,989,130
101,022 13,061,134 94,402 12,205,235
- 7,513,885 971,470,192
- 596,768 77,156,135
- 429,353 55,511,049
- 707,824 91,514,565
- 8,000 1,034,320
5,755 744,064 12,718 1,644,310
1,972,160 254,980,566 2,617,637 338,434,288
53,000 6,852,370 - -
42,654 5,514,736 251,203 32,478,036
2,357,325 304,778,549 12,704,215 1,642,527,957
1,286,215 166,294,737 7,293,242 942,943,258
9,826,537 1,270,472,969 2,238,840 289,459,624
41,424 5,355,709 294,455 38,070,087
8,581,746 1,109,533,940 9,826,537 1,270,472,969
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2000
KY1-1111
SMIC SMIC
IASB
4

2021 12 31
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3
i ii
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iii
IFRS
IFRS
IFRS 9 IFRS 7 IFRS 4 IFRS 16 IAS
39
IFRS
IFRS 9 IFRS 7 IFRS 4 IFRS 16 IAS 39 -
IFRS 9 IFRS 7 IFRS 4 IFRS 16 IAS 39
RFR
IFRS 9 RFR
RFR 24
2021
LIBOR
2022 LIBOR
2021 12 31 LIBOR
LIBOR LIBOR

RFR
RFR
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IFRS 10 IAS 28 2011

IFRS 17

IFRS 17

IFRS 17

IAS

IAS

IAS

IAS

IAS

IAS

1

1 IFRS 2

12

16

37

IFRS 2018 2020

2022 1 1

2023 1 1

2020 6 IFRS 17

IAS 39

IFRSs

IFRS 3

IAS

IFRS

10

IAS

37 IFRIC 21

IFRS 3

2022 1 1

10 IAS 28
IFRS 10 IAS 28

IAS 28

1
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IFRS
IFRS
1
3
2
2
IFRS 17 9 - 2
2
2
2
2
1
) 1
IFRS 1 FRS 9 FRS 16 IAS 41 1
IFRS 4 2023 1 1 IFRS 9
2018 3
IFRS 3
IAS 37 IFRIC 21

2015 12 IFRS
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2023 1 1

IAS 1 significant material

IFRS

IAS 1 2023 1 1 IFRS 2

IAS 8

2023 1 1

IAS 12

2023 1 1

IAS 16

2022 1 1

IAS 37 IAS 37

2022 1 1

IFRS 2018 -2020 IFRS 1 IFRS 9 IFRS 16 IAS 41

IFRS 9

2022 1 1
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IFRS 16 IFRS 16 13

IFRS 16

IFRS
IFRS

IAS 27 IAS 28
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IFRS 5
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25 4%
5 10 10% 20%
35 20% 33%/3%
3 10
CGU cGU
cGU

CGU
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IFRS 15

IFRS 9
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IFRS 15

SPPI
SPPI
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ECL
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ECL 2
ECL 12 12 ECL
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38
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3

17

2021 12 31 2020 12 31
3,481,734 2,482,180
1,215,545 906,493
745,833 518,302
5443112 3,906,975
4,982,237 3,474,502
460,875 432,473
5443112 3,906,975
5,342,872 3,906,975

100,240 -
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5,443,112

3,906,975

2021 12 31

181.4

1,022.7

2020 92.3
1,022.7

2020 12 31 :1814

30 90
30
10
2021 12 31
2021 2020
615,446 442,291
11.3% 11.3%
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
48,281 2,247
1 ; 1,145
378,319 362,481
42 231,382 904
657,982 364,487
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
75,747 69,475
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17 8,829 11,464
32 52 7,329
33 16,854 14,255
34 8,661 7412
34 6,193
110,143 116,128
- 42,894
110,143 73,234
2020 191
9
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
11,356 -
108 333
766 8,499
67,925 45,463
80,155 53,629
630 2,888
80,785 50,741
10
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
4,320 -
18,642 64,595
42,204 3,715
65,166 68,310
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
1,840,324 737,408
25 460,081 184,352
6,598 14,471
39,367 43
63,170 46,836
4,496 2,277
11,102 -
240,041 128,909
98,988 96,141
42,412 11,239
97,947 179,234
4,320 -
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65,166 68,310
1 SMIB 2015 2019 2020 2024 2021 5
2020 2024 SMIC 2021 2020 357
10%
2,943.3 2020 11211
2021 12 31 26.7 2020 12 31
17.6
2019 12 31 49,188 6,296 1,531 4,009 1,951 62,975
4,508 899 156 2,103 715 5,153
2020 12 31 44,680 7,195 1,375 1,906 2,666 57,822
21572 4674 156 1,554 2,666 30,622
2021 12 31 23,108 2521 1,219 352 - 27,200
2019 12 31 - 34,360 34,360
B 1,438 1,438
2020 12 31 - 32,922 32,922
31,928 20,346 11,582
260 - 260
2021 12 31 32188 12576 44764
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
14,624 24,900
32,188 -
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
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910,409 739,673

2,560,863 2,109,055
3,471,272 2,848,728
910.4 2020 12
31 (7396 58.2 197.0 1100
204.0 341.2 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
SMIC
SMIS 2020 11 18 2020 2022
15% SMIS 2021 15
[2012]27 2020 45 SMIT
2013 10 2013 2017
2018 2022 SMIT 2019 11 28
SMIT 2021 125
[2012]27 [2020]8 SMIB
2015 10 2015 2024
SMIB 2021 12 17 SMIB 2021
SMNC 2019 12 2 2019 2021
15% SMNC 2021 15
SMIC 2020 12 11 2020 2022
15% 2021 15
SMIC 25
11
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
39 481 490
39 516 689

60,235 23,112

18 - 1,145

61,232 24,456
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16 1,737,457 1184571
17 106,938 98,766
18 24,907 29,357
1,869,302 1,312,694

589,863 503,232

122,876 197,117

32,350 27,401

78,360 10,460

823,449 738,210

32,394 26,355

1,395 1,653

6 85

1,401 1,738

12

2021 2020
2 12
31 31

4514 7,871

23 12

117/259
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5079 2772

9,616 10,655

RSU

2021 12 31 1,416,137 2020
2,359,665 617,466 2020 314,531
2020

2021 12 31 989,336 RSU 2020 1,072,451 804,966
RSU 2020 438,750 RSU 2020

2021 12 31 1,960,000 2020
2020 400,000 2020

2021
2020 2021
2020

2021

William Tudor Brown 93 - 319 412
79 - 107 186
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84 - 107 191
63 - 555 618
1 61 - 74 135
380 - 1,162 1,542
2021 11 11
2020
William Tudor Brown 93 - 218 311
45 - 196 241
78 - 65 143
83 - 65 148
68 - 184 252
367 - 728 1,095
2021
818 9 765 1,592
877 6 681 1,564
1 879 - 568 1,447
2 716 - 361 1,077
3 844 8 806 1,658
4,134 23 3,181 7,338
- - 391 391
- - 319 319
4 R R R R
5 - - 26 26
6 R R R R
- - 736 736
1
2021 11 11
2
2021 11 11
8 2022 3 17
4 2021 4 29
5 2021 5 13
6
2021 11 11
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2020
1,060 6 517 1583
32 - - 32
972 - 139 1111
4413 - 517 4,930
1,027 6 457 1,490
7,504 12 1,630 9,146
- - 218 218
. - 196 196
. - 414 414
2021
13
2020 4
12 2020 1
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
267 550
301 394
520 -
1,088 944
2021
2020
2021 2020
2021 2020
897,401 961,500 1
1,025,600 1,089,700 1 -
1 1
14
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31
1,701,803 715,550
82 8,000
1,701,721 707,550
7,897,672,423 6,353,497,375

022 0.11
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
1,701,721 707,550
8 52 7,329
82 8,000
1,701,855 722,879
7,897,672,423 6,353,497,375
RSU 24,287,236 22,255,752
7,245,193 -
2,084,474 219,232,491
2,509,303 247,547,767
7,933,798,629 6,842,533,385

021 0.11

2021 12 31 2,742,167 2020 477,111

46,801,216 2020
2020
2020
15
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
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16
2019 12 31 1,079,088 14,443,651 235,143 2,473,458 18,231,340
- - - 5,607,893 5,607,893
241,575 3,528,754 55,685 3,826,014 -
5,426 21,277 717 4578 31,998
- - 17 17
19,544 - - 19,544
2020 12 31 1,295,693 17,951,128 290,094 4,250,759 23,787,674
- - - 4,393,099 4,393,099
138,930 4,441,947 31,094 4,611,971 -
1,322 290,954 2,898 8,000 303,174
16,986 494,187 8,093 39,698 558,964
1,404 - - 1,404
2021 12 31 1,414,911 21,607,934 310,197 3,984,189 27,317,231
2019 12 31 257,327 10,011,365 194,831 10,570 10,474,093
51,290 1,095,305 37,976 1,184,571
719 4,817 717 6,253
- 3 - 544 547
- - 2 2
2,209 - - 2,209
2020 12 31 305,689 11,101,850 232,088 10,026 11,649,653
43144 1,661,868 32,445 1,737,457
175 94,210 2,844 97,229
1,081 226,975 5,258 233314
119 - - 119
2021 12 31 347,458 12,442,533 256,431 10,026 13,056,448
2020 12 31 990,004 6,849,278 58,006 4,240,733 12,138,021
2021 12 31 1,067,453 9,165,401 53766 3,974,163 14,260,783
2021 12 31 3,974.2
1,878.1
611.6 506.9
355
2021 12 31 99.2 2020 12 31 :1138
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0000000
2021 12 31 215.9 2020 101.1
31
17
50 70
2 5 12
2019 12 31 1,884 236,719 138,264 376,867
1,047 91,147 129,059 221,253
1,001 94,641 3124 98,766
- . 6,385 6,385
. . 1731 1731
2020 12 31 1,930 233,225 256,083 491,238
2,099 65,336 112,391 179,826
673 100,537 5728 106,938
. . 9 9
1373 . 9,015 10388
2021 12 31 1,983 198,024 353,722 553,729
2021 12 31 34.2 2020 12 31 : 100
31
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31
11 245,270 247,732
67,435 92,194
8,829 11,464
109,851 105,866
1,575 -
116 254
12 31 210,224 245270
100,763 94,949
109,461 150,321
210,224 245270
39
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
8,829 11,464
106,938 98,766
117 335
2,576 -
9,564 23,232
41
20.0 2020 16.8
2021 12 31
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
1
8,695 6,129
1 2
2 5,543 6,075
7,210 2,272
21,448 14,476
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18
2019 12 31 445,121
15,512
2020 12 31 460,633
10,570
2021 12 31 471,203
2019 12 31 348,178
29,357
1,145
2020 12 31 378,680
24,907
2021 12 31 403,567
2020 12 31 81,953
2021 12 31 67,616
19
1,790,000,000 100%
SMIS sMIC #
1,000,000,000 100%
SMIB e #
870,000,000 100%
SMIT SMIC #
1,626,000,000 73.27%
o 1
sMiz SMIC
4,800,000,000 51%
swne
6,500,000,000 3852%
smsc ¥
2
2,254,900,000 56.54%
smec * 4
2,750,000,000 66.45%
smoc * 3
sMIC 400,000,000 100%
sMIC #
1 100%
. 500,000 100%
S 10,000,000 100%
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. 100,000 100%
10 100%
BVI
SMIC BVI
SMIC 465,800,000
100%
SMIC #
SMIC 50,000 100%
SMIC 50,000 100%
10,000 1004
1,000 100%
12,000,000 1004
#
SMIC 50,000,000 1004
SMIC #
50,000 1004
Ic 2,741,500,000 1004
Ic 1,851,500,000 1004
17,775,918 -
81,700,000 6555
SMIC 4,000,000 1004
SMIC 5,000,000 100%
SMIC 5,000,000 100
smico #
1 2021 8 27 SMIC SMIC SMIZ
2,415 sSMIC SMIC
1,732.55 127 555.45
2021 11 23 SMIC SMIC
( ) ( IC )
SMIC SMIC 531.3
IC IC SMIC
IC 2021 12 31 SMIZ  73.27%
2 2021 2020 12 31 SMSC 3852 SMSC SMSC
SMSC
7 4 57.14%
3 2021 11 12 SMIC IC
SMOC SMOC 55
SMIC IC 36.55 9.22 9.23 2021 12
31 SMIC 18.28 66.45%
4 SMBC 2024 12 31 2021 IC SMIC
612.3 510.0 SMBC 67.54% 56.54%
5 2021 SJ SJ 2021 5 6
42
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2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
SMNC 49.00% 49.00% 153,896 93,509 2,391,364 2,233,828
SMSC| 61.48% 61.48% 78,381 143412 3,701,077 3,776,349
SMNC
2021 2020
12 31 12 31
2,399,455 2,847,918
3,541,335 3,042,113
872,867 1,028,081
187,588 303,117
4,880,335 4,558,833
2,488,971 2,325,005
2,391,364 2,233,828
4,880,335 4,558,833
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
1,513,276 967,886
1,213,005 968,611
13,803 191,559
314,074 190,834
160,178 97,325
153,896 93,509
314,074 190,834
98,918 62,841
95,039 60,375
193,957 123,216
527,423 445,470
189,147 323,521
305,793 116,818
32,483 5131
SMSC
2021 2020
12 31 12 31
3,731,237 4,052,065
5,063,571 5,411,470
1,671,774 2,330,471
1,103,065 990,662
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6,019,969 6,142,402
2,318,892 2,366,053
3,701,077 3,776,349
6,019,969 6,142,402
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
691,769 139,158
867,323 468,798
48,063 78,863
127,491 250,777
49,110 107,365
78,381 143,412
127,491 250,777
108,721 285,623
173,523 443,497
282,244 729,120
938,996 140,252
2,766,414 2,195,496
15,703 3,762,750
1,843,121 1,707,506
20
JCET
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
JCET 12.86% 14.3%
JCET
IC 8.17% 8.17%
IC
15.85% 15.85%
NSI
19.57% 19.57%
SMEC
JCET IC
NSI SMEC
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
5,070,604 4,642,919
13,573,624 10,463,609
3,103,832 3,110,590
8,319,727 5,984,087
7,220,669 6,011,851
129,625 124,935
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7,091,044 5,886,916
863,157 758,267
308,218 342,083
29,164 34,484
1142211 1,065,866
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
5,520,318 4,357,980
319,690 33,878
487,869 63,114
1,770 3,061
IC
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
49.00% 49.00%
2021 2020 2021 2020
212,051 86,172 13,028 43,693
223,644 106,904 12,304 46,888
716,941 375,110 17,639 31,521
12 31 671.8 2020 12 31 :353.0
21
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
18,468 36,482
204,556 119,885
3,725,962 1,638,721
117,787 114,811

129/259
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1 991 991
46,547 29,046
4526 -
- 111,004
78,184 383
3,838,129 2806517
8,581,746 9,826,537
214191 575,258
2 806,487 608,906
31,371 4,891
17,668,945 15,873,522
39
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
31 4,937,671 4,030,776
17 109,461 150,321
33 597,663 596,966
32 - 11,131
34 - 229,217
2,065 13,000
1138 7,700
1856,814 1,686,671
31 789316 1,260,057
17 100,763 94,949
32 1978 -
34 235515 -
- 20,039
8,848 133481
- 333
8,641,232 8,234,641

22

21
130/259
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-0.3 2020 0.3
2021 2020 2021 2020
2021 2020 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
6.7632 6.5469 3,360,000 2,150,000 527,688 328,498
6.5170 6.6638 12,418,329 7,673,429 1,950,298 1,150,362
6.3724 6.7005 17,148,400 30,927,025 2,693,156 4,616,663
15,778,329 77,918 2,810 86,232
17,148,400 - 8,103 101,092
86,232 - 85,521
101,092 3 101,472
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31

2021 2020
2,034 2.00% 369,000 418,097
369,000 4526 1138 21,990
21,990 ) 0673
LIBOR
23
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
1
117,787 114,811
2 214,191 575,258
331,978 690,069
2021 12 31
2021 12 31 367 2020
12 31 199.1 211 2020 12 31 2.3
7.9 2020 12 31
1485 2020 12 31 3739
24
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
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455,071 307,621

664,362 406,807

74378 84,348

1,193,811 798,776

25
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
691,314 445,990
39 751 1,777
690,563 444213
49,667 31,303
39 1,070 1,586
48,597 29,717
4,367 4910
349,137 361,642
59,849 5379
3,761 -
27,998 68,345
31,201 61,721
1,215,473 975,927
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
671,658 444,697
19,207 526
58 129
391 638
691,314 445,990
30 90
39

2021 12 31 2020 12 31

22,998 16,903

12,194 2163

7,281 857

7,194 11,380

49,667 31,303
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26

2021 12 31 2020 12 31
21,592 23,796
2021 12 31 6.7 2020 12 31

9.4

27
2019 12 31 5,056,868,912 20,227 5,011,915
16,484,979 66 21,796

38
529,883,056 2,119 708,743
161,807,580 648 263,812
1,938,463,000 7,754 7,506,131
2020 12 31 7,703,507,527 30,814 13,512,397
9,192,989 36 14,766

38
7,977,636 32 10,796
183,178,403 733 298,655
2021 1231 7,903,856,555 31,615 13,836,614

38
28

RSU
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31

179,123 46,862

158,462 24,968

9,435 608

154 ;

11,380 21,286

11 11,363 9,923
1231 17 11,363
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29
10
50
2021 2020
2021 2020 8.0
30
2017 2018 IC
PSCS
PSCS
PSCS PSCS
2021 12 31 183,178,403 PSCS 2020 161,807,580
2020 8.0
2021 12 31 PSCS PSCS 2020 12
31 12994
31
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
150,000
170,000 302,627
1,267,819 1,546,856
278,082 159,502
3,984,462 2,661,145
26,624 470,703
5,726,987 5,290,833
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170,000 452,627
619,316 807,430
789,316 1,260,057
4,937,671 4,030,776
5,726,987 5,290,833
789,316 1,260,057
657,850 563,237
3,909,968 3,104,738
369,853 362,801
5,726,987 5,290,833
2021 12 31 14704
304.7

2021 12 31 2020 12 31

202,624 530,703

102,082 249,502

304,706 780,205

2021 12 31 2020 12 31
4,813,787 3,830,605
913,200 1,460,228
5,726,987 5,290,833

2021 12 31 2020 12 31
2.27% 2.42%
1.66% 1.62%

32
650.0 2016 450.0 2019
12 9 200.0 2019 250,000
2016
2019
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2019 2016
200,000 450,000
32,000 -
2,525 9,194
195,328 387,871
34,147 52,935
2.20 2021 12 31
2019 12 31 630,428 86,200 716,628
7,329 - 7,329
626,626 84,236 710,862
2020 12 31 11,131 1,964 13,095
52 - 52
9,205 1,623 10,828
2021 12 31 1,978 341 2,319
2021 12 31 1,679,553
2022 7 7
2.00
2022 7 7
2016 8 17
9.25 77677
2020 7 7
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0000000
33
2020 2 27 600.0 5
2.693 2 27 8 27
596.4
600,000
3,232
368
596,400
596,400
14,255
13,689
2020 12 31 596,966
16,854
16,157
2021 12 31 597 663
34
2019 2 28 15 224.0 2022 3 4
3.57%
2019 12 31 214,193 286,512
; 429,353
; 707,824
7412 6,193
7,095 6,193
/ 14,707 8,041
2020 12 31 229217
8,661
8,310
5947
2021 12 31 235515
35
2021 63.9 2020 4141
302.9 2020 286.7
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31
1,175,499 905,962
528,910 567,311
51,796 99,928
74,210 75,355
1,830,415 1,648,556
30 60
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
30 1,640,658 1,034,060
31 60 33,501 33,075
60 30,250 406,138
1,704,409 1473273
37
2021 2020 12 31 2341 253.7
139.7 175.1
38
2021 12 31 78.4 2020
105
10
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RSU
10 2021 12 31 RSU
2021 7 19
3,944 20 67,535,200
12 24 36 48
2018 2020
EBITDA
30%
25% 25% 20% 4
2021 2020
82,299,957 18,713,299
4,469,351 3,727,768
9,192,989 16,484,979
0.37 3.14 0.37 297
6.75 6.68
RSU
0.004 0.004
8.17 8.02
20 -
455 .
RSU
WAEP
2021 2021 2020 2020
WAEP WAEP
36,738,628 156 39,355,224 1.04
9,805,101 3.02 13,147,502 251
2,826,363 2.05 2,852,324 1.40
5,137,802 121 12,911,774 097
12 31 38,579,564 194 36,738,628 156
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12 31 12,203,390 122 11,486,071 095
318 2020 :2.56
2021 12 31 2021 5 31 9 15 11 19
149 2020 5 25 9 9 11 23 :1.03
2021 2020 12 31
2021 2020
56.43% 49.39%
1.03% 0.36%
5 5
RSU
RSU WAFV
2021 2021 2020 2020
WAFV WAFV
10,924,467 0.004 9,807,319 0.004
4,959,656 0.004 5,565,797 0.004
966,668 0.004 875444 0.004
4,055,187 0.004 3,573,205 0.004
12 31 10,862,268 0.004 10,924,467 0.004
RSU 313 2020 2.10
2021 12 31 2021 5 31 9 15 11 19 RSU
3.02 2020 5 25 9 9 11 23 245
RSU
WAFV
2021 2021
WAFV
67,535,200 20
676,320 20
12 31 66,858,880 20
2021 12 31
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2021
53.43%
2.69%
1 2 3 4
2021 12 31 2021 7 19 5.25
39
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
5,726,987 5290,833
210,224 245,270
597,663 596,966
1,978 11,131
235,515 229,217
6,772,367 6373417
8,581,746 9,826,537
214,191 575,258
78,184 111,477
7,564,091 4,445,238
9,665,845 8,585,003
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
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9,665,845 8,585,093
25/438,143 21,681,738
-38.0% -39.6%
3
2021 2020 12
31
2021 12 31 2020 12 31 2021 12 31 2020 12 31

144/259



EDINETOOOO

o o o o o o o o o o o o {02 )

ooOooood
7,789 56,904 22,037 54,412
77,089 25,586 61,862 84,837
3,262,085 3,466,754 3,795,123 2,880,393
103,013 110,865 10,380 17,895
5 5
5
2021 2020
27,533 27,689
27,533 27,689
2021 12 31
36% 2020  26%
10%
10%
2021 2020
5213 6,562
5,213 6,562
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21
2021 12 31 5% / 8.36 2020 12 31
:5.86 /
3
5
18.8% 2020 :5.4% 32.8% 2020 :44.6%
IFRS 9
2021 2020 12 31
2021 12 31
671,658 0.1% 316
19,207 0.1% 11
58 57% 33
391 100% 391
691,314 751
2020 12 31
444,697 0.2% 970
526 20% 105
129 50% 64
638 100% 638
445,990 1,777
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ECL
12 ECL
0.5
2021 12 31
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
11 3,363 3,164
481 490
516 689
545 -
12 31 1,821 3,363
3
3
12 2021 12 31
2020 12 31
12 31
12 ECL ECL
1 2 3
2021 12 31
1 - - - 691,314 691,314
2 116,994 - - - 116,994
7,564,091 - - - 7,564,091
331,978 - - - 331978
8,581,746 - - - 8,581,746
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12 ECL ECL
1 2 3
2020 12 31
1 - - - 445,990 445,990
2 166,279 - . - 166,279
3
4,445,238 - ; - 4,445 238
690,069 - - - 690,069
3
9,826,537 - ; - 9,826,537
! 39
2
3
2021 12 31
238% 88497 358409 1423560 167,296 2,037,762
208% 138,124 323759 3382912 207913 4,072,708
370%-5.00% 28943 77,239 113,150 ; 219,332
2.20% - 2,000 - - 2,000
357% 243,985 - ; . 243,985
26%% 8079 8,079 640,395 - 656,553
1,813,663 26,404 ; - 1,840,067
2,321,291 795890  5560,017 395209 9,072,407
2020 12 31
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2.05% 8,269 65,933 729,372 199,722 1,003,296
2.23% 865407 417,329 3,165,617 196,883 4,645,236
3.70-5.00% 26,022 76,787 155,613 - 258,422
3.88% - - 11,500 - 11,500
357% 8,197 - 237,819 - 246,016
2.69% 8,079 8,079 656,553 - 672,711
1,542,131 127,877 - - 1,670,008
20,666 - - 20,666
2,458,105 716,671 4,956,474 396,605 8,527,855
7,372
2020 4,146.3
2021 12 31
2,489,923 576,427 1,898,851 - 4,965,201
2,493,403 577,025 1,786,894 - 4,857,322
9,381 - 9,881 - 19,262
1174 3444 8,583 - 13,201
1,846 5418 12,846 - 20,110
5,229 2572 117,575 - 120,232
3 3 1 15 5
2020 12 31
1,455,062 3,245,382 930,544 - 5,630,988
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1,519,853 3,325,157 884,218 - 5,729,228
1,183 323 14,523 - 16,029
1,445 4234 15,358 - 21,037
2,044 5985 20,726 - 28,755
64,207 81,203 55,481 - 89,929
40
2021 12 31 2020 12 31 2021 12 31 2020 12 31
3,725,962 1,638,721 3,749,744 1,646,273
- 117,787 114,811 118,539 115,340
18,468 36,482 18,468 36,482
204,556 119,885 204,556 119,885
- 111,004 - 111,004
78,184 383 78,184 383
77,918 33,937 77918 33,037
4526 ; 4526 ;
4,227,401 2,055,313 4,251,935 2,063,394
5,726,987 5,290,833 5,725,950 5,350,805
597,663 596,966 593,160 589,158
1,978 11,131 1,978 11,045
235515 229,217 235515 237,705
10,913 146,481 10,913 146,481
1,138 7,700 1,138 7,700
; 333 - 333
6,574,194 6,282,661 6,568,654 6,343,227
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2021 2020 12 31
1
2
2021 12 31 2 3
2,335 - - 2,335
. - 16,133 16,133
- - 204,556 204,556
- 78,184 - 78,184
- 77,918 - 77,918
- 4526 - 4526
2,335 160,628 220,689 383,652
- 10,913 - 10,913
- 1,138 - 1,138
- 12,051 - 12,051
2020 12 31 2 3
36,482 - - 36,482
. - 119,885 119,885
- - 111,094 111,094
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0000000
. 383 . 383
. 33937 - 33937
36,482 34320 230,979 301,781
; 146,481 ; 146,481
. 7.700 . 7.700
. 333 - 333
. 154,514 . 154514
3
3
2019 12 31 . 89,318 . 89318
; 7,258 322718 329,976
. 4,036 224,636 228,672
. 20,867 3938 24,805
- 6,478 9,074 15,552
2020 12 31 . 110,885 111,094 230,979
6,279 49,659 . 55938
- 7,306 111,094 118,400
9,596 38822 . 48418
258 3496 . 3,754
2021 12 31 16,133 204,556 ; 220,689
3
2021 12
31
204,556 PE/PS
16,133
2020 12
31
119,885 PE/PS
111,094
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2021 12 31
PE/PS
2 3

2021 12 31
- 3,749,744 - 3,749,744
- - 118,539 - 118,539
- 3,368,283 - 3,868,283
- 5,725,950 - 5,725,950
593,160 - 593,160
- 1,978 - 1,978
- 235515 - 235515
593,160 5,963,443 - 6,556,603

2 3

2020 12 31
- 1,646,273 - 1,646,273
- - 115340 - 115,340
- 1,761,613 - 1,761,613
- 5,350,805 - 5,350,805
589,158 - 589,158
- 11,045 - 11,045
- 237,705 - 237,705
589,158 5,599,555 - 6,188,713

41

2019 12 31 2,566,669 247,732 - 630,428 214,193 286,512 3,945,534
2,595,283 94,402 596,768 - - 278471 2,819,178
92,194 - - - 92,194
- - 626,626 - 626,626
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/ 128881 - - . 14,707 8,041 135547
- 14,255 7.329 13,605 35189
- 13,689 . 13,288 26,977
. 254 368 . . . 622
2020 12 31 5,290,833 245,270 596,966 11,131 229,217 - 6,373,417
384778 101,022 . . . - 283756
67,435 . . . 67,435
. . 9,205 . 9,205
. 16,854 52 . 16,906
. 16,157 . . 16,157
51,376 . . . 5,947 57,323
1459 - - 351 1108
2021 1231 5,726,987 210224 597,663 1978 235515 - 6772367
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
9,205 626,62
299,388 264,460
67,435 92,194
376,028 983,280
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
18,393 34,999
101,022 94,402
119415 129,401
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42
2021 4 22
SJ SJ 56%

397 2021 5 6 SJ

SJ
2021

327,022
24,850
38,501
56,861

37,782

485,016

108,014
68,423

11,559

187,996

297,020
131,473

165,547

2021 12 31

397,083
165,547

154

231,382

397,083

56,861

340,222

43

2021 12 31

CICT
CICT

SMIC
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JCET JCET
IC IC
SMEC
NSI
SGS
SJ SJ Semi SJ 12
IC
12
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
111,830 47,548
108,394 1,348
1 25,524 7,235
NSI 22216 12,891
SJ 925
SMEC 400 43,373
JCET 8 54,220
23,958 9,315
6,389 8,963
JCET 2,639 8,078
540 931
SMEC 13 2,473
SGS 223 343
- 88,542
SGS 22,715 16,494
SMEC - 4817
NSI 3,508 -
SMEC 8,143
SMEC 1255 N
4,582 4,178
SJ 2,325
SMEC 527 4,943
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669 29
588 175
NS 89 99
SGS 4 13
Ic 65,336 91,147
Ic 109,269 105,306
JCET 167 519
1 1 14A
14A
2
2021 12 31 Ic 2080 2020 2431
3 2020
2021 12 31 2020 12 31 2021 12 31 2020 12 31
27,650 11,743 ; ;
sJ 31,139 ;
SMEC 20,337 27,021 ; ;
SGS 11,202 4,898 5,302 ;
880 793 523 592
48392 788 752 ;
24 ; ; ;
Ic ; ; 207,964 243141
2,650 1271 33,671 ;
NSI 5422 7123 10,117 ;
; ; 2,882 1,306
JCET ; 439 29 2,440
30 90
30 60
IC SMZC SMBC SMOC 19
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31
5377 8,785
33 18
5777 3,025
11,187 11,828
2021 12 16
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31

51,380 73,640
2,788 11,392
7,627,007 5,962,431
226,975 210,729
46,593 35,650
7,954,743 6,293,842
1,247 1213
31,037 26,220
8,906,506 9,880,529
400,000 150,000
31371 4,621
7,852 -
1,767,708 428,603
11,145,721 10,491,186
19,100,464 16,785,028
31,615 30,814
13,836,614 13,512,397
321,576 73,939
2,959,859 1,258,056
17,149,664 14,875,206
- 299,388
17,149,664 15,174,594
519,450 373,800

- 11,131

597,663 596,966

- 229,217

1,703 7211
1,118,816 1,218,325
35,690 31,345
351,797 229,474
181,800 11,800
1978 -
235,515 -
17,937 18,473
7,267 101,017
831,984 392,109
1,950,800 1,610,434
19,100,464 16,785,028
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2019 12 31 20,227 5,011,915 86,749 550,506 5,669,397 563,848 6,233,245
- - - 715,550 715,550 - 715,550
- - 45,089 - 45,089 - 45,089
- - 45,089 715,550 760,639 - 760,639
7,754 7,506,131 - - 7,513,885 - 7,513,885
66 21,796 9,351 - 12,511 - 12,511
- - 9,275 - 9,275 - 9,275
2,119 708,743 84,236 - 626,626 - 626,626
648 263,812 - - 264,460 264,460 -
- - 3,632 - 3,632 - 3,632
- - 23,112 - 23,112 - 23,112
- - 331 - 331 - 331
- - - 8,000 8,000 - 8,000
10,587 8,500,482 57,899 8,000 8445170 264,460 8,180,710
2020 12 31 30,814 13,512,397 73,939 1,258,056 14,875,206 299,388 15,174,594
- - - 1,701,803 1,701,803 - 1,701,803
- - 48,015 - 48,015 - 48,015
- - 48,015 1,701,803 1,749,818 - 1,749,818
36 14,766 9,047 - 5,755 - 5,755
- - 68,998 - 68,998 - 68,998
32 10,796 1,623 - 9,205 - 9,205
733 298,655 - - 299,388 299,388 -
- - 929 - 929 - 929
- - 142,069 - 142,069 - 142,069
- - 154 - 154 - 154
801 324,217 199,622 - 524,640 299,388 225,252
2021 12 31 31,615 13,836,614 321,576 2,959,859 17,149,664 - 17,149,664
45
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
594,056 79,328
8,077,734 2,031,710
24,909 25,609
216,342 127,348
8,913,041 2,263,995

160/259



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o o o o {02 )
oOoOooodn

17
46
PDF
2020 5 7 sMmIC
sMmIC
PDF PDF
PDF  SMIC
PDF SMIC SMIC
PDF
2021 12 31
2020 12 10
OTCQX
1934 10 b 20 a
10b-5
2021 12 31
47
2021 12 31
48

2022 3 30
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For the year endad Decamber 37, 2021
{ln USD'D00, except share and per share data)
Year ended Year ended
hiotes 12131721 12/31/20
Revenue & 5443112 3,506,975
Cost of sales (3,767,342) (2,986,062}
Gross profit 1.675.770 920,913
Research and development expenses (632,842) (677413}
Sales-and marketing expenses 127,642) {29,466}
Ganeral and administration axpenses (275,703) [266,376)
Impairment losses on financial assats, net 39 997 (199}
Othar operating income 7 657982 364,487
Profit from operations 1,392 562 311,946
Intarast income 223,035 170,754
Finance costs g (110,143) {73,234}
Foreign exchange gain 1,407 39.818
Other gaing, net 3 BO.785 50,741
Share of profits and losses of joint venture and associates 252,678 187,342
Frofit before tax 1,840,324 737,408
Income tax expense 10 (65, 166) {62,310}
Profit for the year i1 1,775,158 669,058
Other comprehensive Income
items that may be reclassiffed to profit or foss in subsequent periods
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations 36,789 66,380
Cash flow hedges 28 11,226 {21,286}
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,823,173 714,201
Profitfiloss) for the year atinibutable to
Owners of the Company 1,701.803 F15,5500
Non-controlling interests 73,355 {46, 452)
1,775,158 669,098
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable 1o
Owners of the Company 1,749,818 TE0 6350
Non-controlling interests 73,355 {46,438}
1823173 714,201
Earnings per share attributable to owners of the Company
Basc 4 50.22 0.1
Diluted 14 £0.21 0.1

L] Profit for the year attributable to cwners of the Company containg the distribubion paid B0 perpétual subordinated converBible fecurities

holders Please refer to Note 14 for further information

163/259

smic 2021 Annual Raport



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o o o o {02 )
oOoOooodn

128

SEMICONDUCTOR MANUFACTURING INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

-Az of Decamber 31, 2021
{In USD"000)

MNotés 12431721 12031720
Assets
Non-current assets
Froperty, plant and equipment 16 14,260,783 12,138,021
Right-of -use assets 17 553,729 491,238
intzngible assats I8 67616 81,953
Investments In assoclates a0 1,859,151 1,440,976
Irvestment in joant venture 20 17,639 31,521
Deferrad tay assets 10 14,624 24,400
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 21 223,024 156,367
Firancial asse1s at amortised cost 24 3,725,962 1,638,721
Derivative financial instruments 2] 51.073 29,046
Restricted cash 23 117,787 114,811
Other d55els 1,688 1,666
Total non-current assets 20,893,076 16,149,220
Current assets
Irventories 24 1,193,811 T8, 776
Frepayment and prepaid operating expenses 43 368 48,176
Trade and other receivables £5 1.215473 975,927
Financial assets at fair walue through profit or lass 21 7B 184 111,477
Financial assets at amortised cost 2 3,838,129 2,806,517
Derivative financial instrurments 21 N3N 4,891
Restricted cash 23 214,191 575,258
Cash and cash equivalents 41 8,581,746 89,826,537

15,196,273 15,147,559

Assets classfied as held-for-sale 26 21,592 23,796
Total current assets 15,217,865 15, 171,35¢
Total assets 36,110,941 31,320,575

sMmic 2021 annosl Report
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SEMICONDUCTOR MANUFACTURING INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Az of Decambar 31, 2021
{in USD"000)

Notes 1253121 12431120
Equity and liabilities
Capital and reserves
Ordinary shares 2¥ 31,615 30,814
Share premium 27 13,836,614 13,512,397
Reservas 28 321.576 73939
Retained eamnings 29 2,959,859 1,258,056
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 17,149,664 14,875,206
Perpetua subordinated convertible securitias 30 - 299,388
Mon-controlling interests 8,288479 6,507,144
Total equity 25438 143 21,681,738
Mon-current Kabilities
Boarowangs 31 4,9376T1 4,020,776
Leasa labilitias 17 109,461 150,321
Bonds payable 33 597.663 396,966
Convertible bonds 32 - 11131
Medwm-term notes 24 - 229.217
Deferred tax liabilities 10 32,188 -
Deferred government funding 35 538,992 707,016
Derivative financial instruments 21 3,203 20,700
Toral non-current liabilities 6,219,178 5. 746127
Current fabilities
Trade and other payables 36 1830415 1,648,556
Contract liabilities & 1,022,660 181,425
Boarowings 31 789,316 1,260,057
Lease Habilities 17 100,763 0, 049
Convertible bonds 32 1.978 -
Medium -term notes 34 235,515 -
Deferred government funding 35 203,368 282,601
Accrued liabilities 37 234,107 253.6%0
Derivative fingncial instruments 21 8 848 133,814
Currant tax liabilities 10 26,650 17,579
Cther habilities 21 - 20,039
Total current liabilities 4453620 3,892 110
Total liabilities 10,672,798 9,638,837
Total equity and liabilities 36,110,941 31.320.575

smic 2021 Annual Raport
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SEMICONDUCTOR MANUFACTURING INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Faor the yaar ended Dacember 31, 2021
d ¥ {In USD" 000}
Equity-settle Forelgn
employes CUrTency
Ordinary Share benefit  translation
shares premium reserve reserve
{Mote 27) {Mote 27) (Mote 28) {Wote 28)
Balance av Decernber 31, 2019 20,227 5011915 52,551 156,275}
Frofit for the year - - - -
Other comprehensive income for th year - - - 66,375
Total comprehensive incoma for the year - - - 66,375
Issue of ordinary shares 7.754 7,506,131 - -
Exercise of stock options (4 21,796 {9,351) -
Share-based compensation = = Q375 =
Conversion options of convertible bonds exercised during
the year 2,119 T08.743 - -
Conversion options of perpetual subordinated convertible
securities exercised during the year £ag 263,812 - -
Share of other capital reserve of atood ates accounted: for
using equaty method = - = -
Capital injection from non-controlling interests - - - -
Dilution of interests in subsidiaries - - - -
Deconsolidation of 3 subsidiary due 1o loss of control - - - {331}
Parpetual subordinated convertible securnties distrbution = = = =
Subtotal 10,587 8,500,482 {76} {331)
Balance at December 31, 2020 30,814 13,512,397 52,475 9, 7690
Prafit for the year - = = -
Oither comprehensive income for the year - - - 36,789
_jot:lpg_@gr.ﬂmﬂ" income for the year = —= _ 36,789
Exercise of stock options 36 14,766 19,047) =
Share-based compensation = = 68,998 =
Conversion oplions of convertible bonds exercised during
the year 32 10,736 - -
Conversion options of perpetual subordinated convertible
securities exercised during the year 733 298,655 - -
Share of other capital reserve of associates accounted for
UsIng equity method - - = =
Capital injection from non-controlling interests - - - -
Dilution of interests in subsidianes - - - -
Disposal of a subsidiary - - - -
Subtotal 201 324,247 £43,951 -
Balance at December 31, 2021 3615 13,836,614 11242680 46,5580

L These resefve acdounts compaise the teserves of USE321 576,000 December 31, 2020 USE73,939 000) in the comolidated statement
of Tinancial podition
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SEMICONDUCTOR MANUFACTURING INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year endad December 37, 2021

{in USD"000)
Attributable Perpatual
Convertible to owner subordinated Non-
bond agquity Cash flow Retained of the convartible  controlling
reserve hedges Others garnings Company securities interests Total equity
{Mote 28) {Mote 28) {hote 29) {Mote 30}

86,200 9,623 {5,650 550,506 5,669,397 563,848 3,864,617 10,197.862
- - - 715,550 715,550 - {46,452} 669,098

- {21,286} - - 45,089 - 14 45,102

- (21,286) = 715,550 760,639 - {45,438} 714,201

- - - - 7.513.885 - - 7.513,8B85

= - - - 12,511 - 207 12,718

= = = = 9,275 = 1,185 10,460
124,236) - - - 626,626 - - 626,626
= = - - 264 460 {264 4800 - =

= = 3632 - 3,632 - - 3,632

- - - - - - 2617637 28617637

= = 23112 - 23,112 - {23,112} -
= = - - (231) - {5,252} {7,283}
= = = (8.000% {8,000) - - (8,000)
{24,238) - 26,744 [B.000) B445170 (2644600 2 582 965 10,769,675
1,964 {11,363 21.094" 1,258,056 14 875,206 299,388 6,507,144 21,681,738

- - - 1,701,803 1,701,802 - 73,355 1,775,158

- 11:226 - - 48,015 - - 48,015

= 11,226 - 1,701,803 1,749,818 - 73,355 1,823,173

= = = = 5,755 = - 5,755

- - - - 68,998 = 9362 78,360
1,623) - - - 9,205 = - 9,205
- = - = 299,388 (299 38E) - -
- - {229) - (%29} - - (929}

= - - - - - 1,872,160 1,972,160

- - 142,069 - 142,069 - {142 065) -
- 154 - - 154 - {121,473} (131,319}
{1,623) i54 141,140 - 524,640 {299 388) 1,707 580 1,933,232
Jain 179 162,234% 2,959,859 17,149,664 = 8,288,479 25,438,143
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SEMICONDUCTOR MANUFACTURING INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Far the year ended Dacember 31, 2021 (i UST* 000}
Year ended Year ended
Motes 12131521 12I31720
Operating activities
Prfit for the year 1,775,158 £69,098
Adjustments for
INCom e Tax experse 1} 65,166 6E.310
Depreciation and amortisation It 1,869,302 1.312.694
Expense recognised in respect of equity-sertled share-based
payments 1 78,360 10,460
Interest income (223,035} {170, 794)
Fifance costs a 110,143 73,234
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and assets
classified as held-for-sale 7 {28,281} {2,247)
Gain on disposal and deconsolidahion of subsidianes 7 (231,382} 1304
(Reversal Vrecognition of impairment losses i1 (61,232} 24,456
Mt gain arising on financal instruments:at fair value through
profit or loss 9 (80,155} 153,629
et gain on foreign exchange (103,749} 64,711)
share of profits and losses of joint venture and associates (252.678) (187,243)
Other non-cash expense B,000 4177
2,905,617 1,682,801
Oparating cash flows before movemnents in working capital:
Increase in trade and other receivables (257,015} {148,181)
Imcrease in inventones (359,649} {193,003)
Crecreasefincrease) in restricted cash relating fo operating. activities 66,994 {188,225
Drecreasefincrease) in other operating assets 628 14.452]
Imcrease in trade and other payables 79,211 1949, 206
Increase in contract lisbilities a41,23% 39,092
[Decrease¥inorease in cefarred government funding (241,518} 125,064
(Drecreaselincrease in ather operating liabilities (15,979} 101,667
Cash generated from operations 2,019,524 1,664,529
Interest paid (146,602} {103,305)
interest received 209,848 150, 544
Incame taxes paid (70,875} 151,358)
Nat cash !lnwaud from ﬂpll'lﬂl'lli activities 3,011,895 1,660,410
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SEMICONDUCTOR MANUFACTURING INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year endad December 37, 2021

{in USD"000)
Year ended Year ended
12131721 12/35/20
Investing activities
Payments to acquire financdial assets at fair value through profit of 1635 (207,679) (365,726}
Froceeds from sabe of financial assets at fair vaiue through: profit or loss 249,921 299,349
Payments to acquire financial assets at amortised cost (8,613,200) 16,048,862}
Froceeds from maturity of financial assets at amortised cost 5. 791,955 4,110,400
Payments for property, plant and equipment (4,120,275) {5,274, 686)
Froceads from disposal of property, plant and equipment and assets dlassified
as held-for-sale 231,660 38,204
Payrents for ntangible assers (9,195) {9,933}
Fayments for land-use right {210,935) {24,646}
Proceeds from disposal of land-use right 11,650 -
Proceeds from dsposal and deconsolidation of subsidiaries 340,222 7,281
Capital injection in associatas (185,297 (118,772}
Froceads from dsposal of jont venture and assocates 61,246 54,853
Distributions recenved from associates 2,072 2,838
Proceeds from release of restncted cash relating toinvesting activities 134,920 268,967
Payments for settlement of denvative financial instruments (132,500) -
Paymants for contingant considaration - {11,750}
Met cash used In investing activities (6,655,435) (7,071,383}
Fnancing activities
Froceeds from borrowings 1,674,283 3453734
Rapayment of borrowings (1,489,505) (B58,451)
Frincipal dements of lease payments (101,022} {9,407}
Procesds from tsoue of ordinary shares - 7.513,885
Fracesds from issue of bonds - BO6, TEE
Proceeds from issue of short-term notes - 429 353
Rapayment of short-1erm notes - (707,824}
Distribution paid 1o perpetual subordinated convertible securities holders - {2,000)
Procesds from exercise of employes stock options 5,755 12,718
Capital injection from non-controfling interests 1,572,160 2.617.63T
Proceeds from releass of restricted cash relating to financing activities 53,000 -
Proceads fromipayments for) settlemant of derivative financial instruments 43,654 (251,203}
Met cash generated from financing activities 2,357,325 12,704,215
Met {decraaselincreasa in cash and cash equivalents (1,286,215) 7.293,242
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 9,826,527 2,238,840
Effects of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash held in foreign
CLITT encies 41,424 294,455
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 8,581,746 4,826,537
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended Ducember 31, 2027

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Semiconductor Manufactu International Corporation (the “Company” or “SMIC") was established a5 an exempt
u:m{ﬁmg- ingorporated undes the laws of the Cayman [slands on -:g:l 3, 2000, The Company’'s mdlnarhshafes are listed
an the Stock Exchange of Hong ng.rlajmi-ted and the 55k STAR kat, respactmd'{ The address of the pnincipal place
of business is 18 Zhangiang Road, Pudong Mew Area, Shanghai, China, 201203, The registered address is at PO B
2681, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, Grand Cayman K¥1-1111, Cayman lslands.

The Comparny 15 an investrment holding company. The subsidiaries of the Company are engaged in the various business
activities, as manufaciure, testing and trading of integrated circuits, as well a5 technical research and development,
manufa‘:tutrfﬂof ?gmlcmductnr masks and ‘proveding of other services The principal subsidiaries and their activities are
36t out in hote

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all aggii:ame!mmammal Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRS5" Y issied by the International Accounting Standards Board {"IASE*) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Hong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for equity investments,
monetary funds and derivative financial instruments which have besn measured at fair value, Assats classified as held-
for-tale are stated at the lower of their carrying amaonts and fair values less costs to sall as further explained in hota 4.

These financial statements are presented in United States dollars {*USD") and all values are rounded o the nearest
thousand eccept when otherwise indicated

BASI5S OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries {the "Group” )
for the year ended December 31, 2021 A subsidiary is an entity {includmg a strictured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Controd |5 achieved when the Group is exp , or has rights, to variable returns from its
invclvement with the investes and has the ability to atfect those returns through its power over the'investee (ile,; existing
rights that give the Group the current abslity to direct the relevant activities'of the investes)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of thevoting or similar rights of an investes, the Group
considers all refevant facts and circumstances in assessing wh it has polwer over an investes, including

. the contractual arrangement with the other vate holders of the investes,
* rights arising from other contractual arrangements, and
* the Group’'s volng nghts and: potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Grouwp obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are atiributed 1o the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests. even if this results in the non-contr dling interests having a deficit balance,
Al intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, intome, sxpenses and cash flows relating to transactions betwesn members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls-an investes If Tacis and crcumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or maore of the three slements of control described above A change in the ownership interest of 3 subsidiary,
without a loss of control, |5 accounted for as an equity transaction

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises () the assets fincluding goodwilly and liabilines of the
subsidiary, {if} the carrying amount of aner nan-contralling interest and {if) the cumulative transiation differences recorded
in equity, ard recognises (i} the fair value of the consideration received, {ii} the fair value of anﬁ' investment retained
and (it} any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified 1o profit of loss of retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basisas would be
required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilitses

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
IFRSS MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
Thie Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the Tirst time for the current year's finsncial statements:

Amendments to IFRS O, IFRS 7, IFRS 4, IFRS 16 Inierest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2
and [AS 39

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs are described below
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For #he year endad December 37, 2021

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
AMENDMENTS TO IFRS 9, IFRS 7, IFRS 4, IFRS 16 AMD IAS 39 — INTEREST RATE BENCHMARK
REFORM - PHASE 2
Amendments to IFRS 9, IFRS 7, IFRS 4, IFRS 156 and LAS 39 address issues not dealt with in the previous amendments wihich
affect financial reporting when an axisting nterest rate benchmark is replaced with an alternative risk-free rate ("RER™}
The amendments provide a practical expedient to allow the effective interest rate to be updated without adjusting the
carrying amount of financial assets and labilities when sccounting for changesin the basis for detérmining the contractusl
cash flows of financial assets and liabilities, if the chan?a is a direct consequence of the interest rate banchmark reform
and the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to the previous basisimmediately
precading the change: In addition, the amendments permit changes rg?uired blythe interest rate benchmark reform 1o be
made 1o hedgs de-siPna‘tums and hedge dacurmentation without the hedging relationship bein% discontinued. Any gains or
losses that could arise on transition are dealt with through the normal requirements of IFRS 9 1o measure and recognise

@ inefiectiveness. The amendments also provide a temporary redief toenfities from having 10 meet the separatel
identifiable requirement when an RER is designated a5 a risk component. The refiefl alliows an entity, upon designation
the hedge, 1o assume that the separately identifisble requirement is met, provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR
risk component to become separately identifiable within the next 24 months, Furthermore, the amendments réquire an
entity 1o disclose additional information 1o enable wsers of financial statements 1o understand the effect of interest rate
benchmark reform on an entity’s financial instrum ents and risk management strategy, Under the condition of reforming
Major Interast Rate Benchmarks h‘{ qglobal t:agulal.ors, the Group has undertaken transtion work on contracts that may be
affected in 2021, the Group has formulated detailed procedures 1o support the transition from the existing intérest-rate
benchmark London InterBank Offered Rate ("LIBOR®) 10 the alternative benchmark, which is expected to be completed
i 2022, For example, if UBOR discontinued, it might be replaced with the Secured Overnight Financing Rate

Thiz Group had certain interest-bearing bank borrowings denominated in USE based on LBOR as of December 31, 2021

The Group also had interest rate swaps whereby the Group pays interast at fixed rates and recaives interast at variable

rates based on LIBOR on the notional amount. For the LIBOR-based borrowings and interest rate swaps, since the interest

rates of these instruments wera not replaced by RFERs during the year, the amendments did not have any impact on the

financia position and performance of the Group f the interest rates of these borrowings and intérest rate swaps are

replaced by RFR3 in a future period, the Group will apply the above-mentioned practical expediant upon the modification
these instruments provided that the “econcmically equivalent® criterion is met.

IFRSS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not applied the followang new and revised IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these
financial statements!

Amendmants 1o FRS 3 Referance 1o the Concoplual Framoweriil

Amendments to FRS 10 and 145 28 (2011) Sale or Contribution of Azsets between an Investor and
fts Assocate or Joint Veniure®?

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts™

Amendments 10 1FRS 17 Insurance Confractsth s

Amendments to FRS 17 Initial Apolication of IERS 17 and IFRS 9 — Comparative
Information™

Amendments to 145 1 Classification of Liabilities 85 Current or Non-curren™!

Amendmants 100145 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Folicies™

Amendments 10 145 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates™

Amendments to lAS 12 Deforred Tax related 1o Assets and Usbilities arising from
a Single Transaction™

Amendments 1o 145 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before intended
Lisett

Amendments 1o 145 37 Onerous Contracts — Cast of Fulfilling & Contract™

Annual mprovements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 Amendments 1o IFRS 1, IFRS 9, lllustrative Exarmples

accompanying [FRS 16, and LAS 419

Effective for annual pesiods beginning on oo after January 1, 2033

Effectve for annual pericds beginning on of after lanuary 1, 2073

No mandatory effechve date yet determined but availlable for adoption

As 3 consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issusd in Wine 2020, IFRS 4 was amended 10 extend the emporany exempuon
that peemits insuréss to apply A5 29 rather than IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before Janusry 1, 2023

ERg

Further information about those [FRSs that are expected to be applicable 10 the Group s described below

Armendments 1o IFRS 2 are intended 1o replace a reference 1o the previous Framework for the Preparation-and Prosentation
of Fipaneial Statements with a reference 1o the Conceptial Framework for Fnancial Reporting issued in March 2018
wathout significantl chanﬂﬂng its requirements  The amendments also add toIFRS 3 an exceplion 10/t recognition prindple
for an entity 1o refer to the Conceptual Framewark 1o determine what constitutes an asset of 3 liability The exception
spacifies that, for liabilities and contingent Habilitas that would be within the scope of LAS 37 or IFRIC 2.1 if they were
incurred separ ately rather than assumed in a business combination, an entity applying IFRS 2 should refer to |AS 37 or
IFRIC 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework, Furthermore, the amendments carify that contingent assets
do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date The Grougiarpects to adopt the amendments prospectivedy from
January 1, 2022 Since the srmendments apply prospactively 1o business combinations for which the acqiisition date is
on or after the date of first apphication, the Group will not be atfected by these amendments an the date of transtion
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the yaar ended Docember 31, 3021

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
IFRSS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (continued)

Amendments 10 IFRS 10 and |1A5 28 address an inconsistency betweon the requiremants in IFRS 10 and in 145 28 in
dealing with the sale or contribution of asseis between an inwestor and (s associate or joint venture. The amendments
redquire a full recognition m‘;ﬁga‘n o loss resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale of contribution of
assets between an investor its assodiate of joint venlure constitutes a business For & fransaction involuing assets
that do not constitute 3 business, 3 gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor's profit or
loss only 1o the extent of the unrelated investor's interest in that associate or joint venture, The amendments are to be
a:ghed prasvpmwelz. The previous mandatory effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and 1AS 28 was rernoved by the

in December 20115 and a new mandatory effective date will be determined after the completion of a broader review
of accounting for associates and joint venture However, the amendmients are available for adoption now.

Amendments 1o [A5 1 Classification of Liabifies as Current or Non-current ofarify the requirements for clasafying
labilitias a5 current of non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity’s right 1o defer settlement of a liability i5
sul:é]etl ta the entity complying with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement of the llability at the
end of the reporting pericd if it complies with those conditions at that date Classification of a liability is unaffected by
the likelihood that the antity will exercise its nght 1o defer settlameant of the lability. The amendments also clarify the
situations that are considered a settlement of a llability. The amendments are effective for annual pericds beginning on
or after January 1, 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively  Earlier application is permitted  The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to 145 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require entities to disclose their material accounting polic
inferm ation rather than their sigrificant accounting policies. Accounting policy information is material if, when considers
together with other information included in an entity’s financia statemants, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statéments make on the biasis of those financial statements.
Amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept of materi ali?
to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments to 145 1 are effective for annual periceds beginning on or after lanuary 1,
2023 and earlier application is parmitted. Since the guidance provided in the amendments 1o IFRS Practice Statement 2
15 nen-mandatory, an effective date for these amendments i3 not necessary. The Group is currently assessing theimpact
of the amendmerits on the Group’s accounting pelicy disclosires,

Amendments to 1AS 8 clanfy the distinction between changes in- accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncerainty.
The amendments also darify how entifies use measurement techniques and inputs to develo a:x-:untin? estimates. The
amendments are effective for annuwal reporting periods baginning on or after January 1, 2033 and apply 1o changes in
accounting policies and chianges in accounting estimates that occur on o after the start of that period. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group®s financial statements

Amendments 10 145 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception:sa that it no longer applies 1o transactions
that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such as leases and decommissioning chligations.
Therefore, entities are reguired to recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax lability for temporary differences
afising from these transactions, The amendment 5 are effective for annual reporting pertods beginning on or after January
1, 2023 and shall be applied to transactions related to leases and decommissioning obligations at the beqinning of the
earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect r nised a5 an adyustment 1o the opening balance
of retained profits or other companent of equity as appropriate at that date. In addition, the amendments shall be
%ﬁplpad prospectively 1o transactions other than leases and decommissioning cbligations. Earlier application is permitted

& Group has applied the initial recognition exception and did not recognise a deferred ta asset and a deferred tax
liability for temporary differences for transactions related to feases. Upon initial application of these amendments, the
Group will recagnise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax hability for deductible and taxable temporary differences
aspociated with right-of-use assets and'lease Nabilities. There is no adjustment to the cpening balance of retained
profits at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented due 1o the cumulative effect of initially applying
the amendments is insignificant.

Amendments 1o 145 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceads from sallln?hn ems produced while bringing that asset to the locatien and condition necessary for it 1o be
capable of operating in the manner intéended by management Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling
any such items, and the cost of those items, in profit o loss. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to items of property, plant and equipment miade
available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial statements in which the entity
first- applies the amendments. Earlier application is permitted  The Group 15 still analysing impact of the amendments

Ameridments 10 145 37 clarity that for the purpose of assessing whether a contract is onerous under 145 37, the cost
of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to 2 contract
include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.q., an allacation of the depraciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract a5 well as coniract management and supervision costs). General and
administrative costs do not refate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeatle to the
counterparty under the contract. The amendments are effective for annual periods inning on-or affer lanuary 1,
2022 and shall be appliad to contracts for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning. of the
anmual reporting pesiod in which it first ar ies the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. Any cumul ative effect
of initially applying the amendments shal recognised as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial
application withaut restating the comparative information. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year endad Decamber 37, 2021

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES {continued)
IFRSS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (continued)

Annual Improvements (o [FRS Sandards 2018-2020 sats out amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, Illustrativa Examples
f‘g‘impmpng IFRS 16, and 1AS 41 Details of the amendments that are expected to be applicable to the Group are as
oW

: IFRS O Financisl Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of 3 new
or modified financal liability are substantially different from the terms of the onginal financial liability. These fees
include only those paid o receved between the borrower and the lender, induding fees paid or received by either
the borrower or lender on the other's behall An entity applies the amendment 1o financial lisbilities that are
modified o exchanged on or after the baginning of the annual reparting peniod in which the entity first apphies
the amendment The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 Earlier
application |5 parmitted. The amendment is not expected fo have a significant mpact on the Group's financeal
StatEnments

*  JFRS 16 Leases: remowes the llustration of payments from thie lessor relating 1o leasehold iImprovements in lllustrative
Exampla 13 zccor&tglm?mg IERS 16, This remcves potential confusion regarding the frestment of lease incentives
whien applying IFRS 1

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
CHANGES IN THE GROUP'S OWNERSHIP INTERESTS IN EXISTING SUBSIDIARIES

Changes in the Group’s ownership interasts in sulbsidiaries that donot result in the Group losing contral over the subsidianias
are accounted Tor as equily transactions, The carmying amounts of the Group’s interests and The non- controlling interests
are adjusted 1o reflect the changes in their relative interssts in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attfibuted to cwners of the Company

When ‘the Group loses controd of a subsidiary, 3 gain or loss 15 recognised in profit o loss and 15 calculated as the
difference between {i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and {ii} the previous carrying amount of the assets {including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previousy recognised in other comprehensive income in relation 10 that subsidiany
are accountad for asif the Group had directly disposed of the related assats or liabilities of the subsidiary (e redassified
to profit or loss or transferred 1o another category of equity a5 specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former sul:mn:lua?‘ at the date when control i3 lost 15 reqarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under IFRS 9, when applicable, the cost on initial recogration of an investment
inan 35s0cate of 3 joint venture

SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY

Investrents i subsidiaries afe accounted for at the squity mathod in accordance with [AS 27 and |85 28 Under the
E?I.I'll:l' method, the investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share
of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investes in profit or loss, and the Group's share of movements in other
comprehensive income of the investes in other comprehensive income, When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accaunted investment equals or excesds its interast in the entity, Induding any other unsecurad |L'.|;#-I.Efm recaivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unkess it has incurred cbligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE

Anassociate 15 an entily over which the Group has significant influence and that is nelther a subsidiary noran nTerest
v a joint venture. Significant influsnce is the polwer 1o participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
imvestes, but is not contral or joint condrol over those policies

A Joint venture s 3 type of joint arrangement whereby the partias that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the nat 3ssets of the jointventure. laint control 15 the contractually agreed sharing of contrel of an arrangement, which
exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control

Thie Group's investments in associates and 3 joint venture are stated in the consolidated statement of financial poation
at the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any impairmment losses

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income of associates and jont venture 15
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehsnsive income. In addition, when there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises s share of any
changes, when spg cable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Uinrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associates or jaint venture are eliminated to the edent of the Group's
Investments in the associates or jaint venture, except where unrealised |osses provide evidence of an impairment of the
assens transferred. Upon the acguisition of the cwnership interest in an assocate of a joint venture, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the net Talr value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investes
Iz recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the investment.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a g-;an venture or ¥ice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasurad. Instead, the investment continues 1o be aocounted for under the equity method: In all other cases, upon |oss
of significant influence over the Jssociate or foint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any
retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate of joint venture upon
less of significant influence or joint contral and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.

Wrgn an investmeant in an assodiate of a joint venture |5 cassified as held for sale; it is accounted for in accordanca
with IFRS 5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the year ended Dacember 31, 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Group measuras s derivative financial instrumaents, monetary funds and squity investments at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Fair valueis the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability in an
ordetly transaction between market participants at the measurement date: The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the Iiad:lig‘isl?' takes place either in the principal market for
the asset or labality, or in the absence of 2 principal market, in the most advants 5 market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a Hability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants would wse when pricing the asset or ljability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account 3 market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it 1o another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and bast use

The Group uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the droumstances and for which sufficient data are available
1o measura fair valua, maximising the ute of rdevant obsenvable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assens and liabilities for which fair valueis measured or disclosed in the financlal statements are cateqorised within the
fair ua?ghmrarcl'ly. described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
45 a whale

Lewal 1 = based on quoted prnces funadusted) in active markets for (dentical assets o liabilities

Leval 2 — based onvaluation techriques for which the lowest leval input thatis sigrificant to the fair value measurement
I5 observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 = based onvaluation techniques for which thelowest level input that is significant to the fair value messurement
i5 unobservable

For assats and liabilines that are recognised in the financal statements on 3 recurng basis, the Group determines
whether ransfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy tg reassessing categorisation {based on the lowest |evel
input that is significant to the fair value measurement a3 a whole) at the end of each reporting period,

REVENUE RECOGMITION
Revenue from contracts with customers

fevanue from contracts with customers {5 recognised when control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that refiects the consideration to which the Group expects to be enfitled in exchange for those goods
or services. When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the amount of consideration is estimated
to which the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer. The variable
conmderation is estimated at contract inception and constrained unnl it is highly probable that a significant revenue
reversal inthe amount of cumul ative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consder ation |5 subsaquently recolvad

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the customer with a significant benefit of financin
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is messured at the present value
the amount receivable, discountad using the discount rate that would be reflected in a saparate financing transaction
bietween the Group and the custormer at contract mception

When the contract contains 3 financing component which provides the Group with a significant financial benefit for maore
than one yaar, révenus recognised under the contract includes the interast expense acoreted on the contract Hability
under the effective interest methiod. For a contract where the period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year of fess, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a
significant financing component, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15

Sale of goods

The Group manufactures semiconductor wafess for its cusfomers based on the customers® designs: and specifications
pursuant to manufactuning agresments andfor purchase orders The Group also sells certain semiconductor standard
products 1o customers.

Revenues are recognised when, or 35, the control of the gn-u-ds or services is ransferred to the customer. Depending on
the terms of the contract and the laws applicable, contrdl of the goods and services may be transferred over time or at
2 point in time Control of the goods and services is transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

+  provides all of the benefits recelved and consumed simultanecusly by the customer,

. creates and enhiances an asset that the customer controls as the Group performs, of

. does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance complated to date
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year endad Decamber 37, 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
REVEMUE RECOGNITION (continued)
Sale of goods (continued]
It control of the goods and services transters aver time, revenue is recogrised over the perod of the contract by reference

to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue Is recognised at &
point im time when the customer obtains contrel of the goods and ‘services

Contracts with customers may include multiple perfoemance obligations. For such arrangements, the Group allocates
revenue to each performance obligation based on its relative standalone selling price, The Group generaily detérmines
standalone selling prices based on the prices charged to customers. If the stand-alone selling price is' not directly
cbservable, It is estimated using expected cost plus @ margin or adjusted market assessment approach, drﬁplandu;g on
thie avaifability of observable information. Assumptions and estimations have been made in estimating the relative selling
price of each distinct performance obligation, and changes in judgements on these assumptions and estimates may
impact the revenue recognition

Whaen either party 10 3 contract has Elarformed, the Group presents the contract in the statemant of financial position
as a contract asset or a contract liability, depending on the relaficnship between the entity's performance and the
CUSTOMmer's. payment.

A coptract asset i thie Group’s Flght to consideration (n exchange for goods and services that the Group has transferred
10 & customer when that right 5 considered on something other than the passage of time.

It & customer pays Consderation or the Group has a right 10 an-amount of consideration that is unconditional, before
the Group uamers 4 good or service 1o the customer, the Group presents the contract as a contract liability when
the payment is made or the receivable 15 recorded (whichever 15 earlier). A contract liability i3 the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services 1o 3 customer for which the Group has receved consideration (or an amount of consideration
I5 dug) from the customer

A recevable (s recorded when the Group has an unconditional right to consideration A right to consideration is
unconditional if only the passage of time is required before payment of that consideration is due.

Customers have the right of return within one year pursuant to warranty provisions. The Group typically performs tests
of its products prior 1o shipment 1o identify yield rate per wafer, Gocasonally, product tests pe-rfvotm after shipment
identity yields balow the level Jgresd with tha customer. In those crcumstances, the customer Arcangement may provide
forar ion o the price paid by the customer or for the costs to return products and to ship replacement products
to the customer. The Group estimates the amount of sales returns and the cost of replacement products based on the
historical trend of returns and warranty replacements relative tosales a5 well as a consideration of any current information
regarding specific known product defects at customers that may exceed historical trends

Rendering of services

Revenue from the rendering testing services is recognised oser time, using an input method 1o measure progress wwards
complete satisfaction of the service, because the Group does not creats an asset with an alternative use 1o the Grolp and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance complated 1o data. The input method recognises revenue
based on the proportion of the actual costs incurred relative to the estim ated 1otal costs for satisfaction of the services

Revenue from other sources

Rental incomie is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease terms, Vaniable lease payments that do not depend
of an index of & rate are recognised-as (ncome in the reporting period in which they are incurmed

Other income

Interest income s recogrised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrurent or & shorter period, when
appropriate, 1o the net carrying amount of the financal asset.

Cividend Income Is recognised whan the shareholders' right to receive payment has been established, it (5 probable
that m-eedec:{nogll'r: benefits associated with the dividend will flow 10 the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably

Contract assets

A contract assetis the right to consideration in exchange for goods o services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferning goods o services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due,
a contract asset is recogrised for the earned consideration that 15 conditional Contract assets are subject 10 im palrment
assessment, details of which are included in the accounting policies for impairment of financial assets

Contract [iabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or-a payment is due fwhichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group fransfers the related goods or services. Contract Habilities are recognised as revenue when the Grou
satisfies performance obligation under the contract (i &, transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the year ended Dacember 31, 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
FOREIGN CURRENCIES

Items included in the financial statemants of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic endironment in which the entity operates ("the functional currency®). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Untied States dollar ("USDT ), which i5 the Company’s functional and the Group's presentalion currency.

In preparing the financal statements of sach individual group entity transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions
At the end of each reparting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
pre-.raigng ;EI{ that date: Mon-monetary items that are measurad in terms of historical costin a forefgn currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit of [oss in the period in which they arise

For the purposes of presenting consolidated finandal statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations
arg translated into United States dollars using sxchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting peried. Income
and eepense (tems are translated at the average exchange rates that for the pericd, unless:exchange rates: fluctuate
ﬂ%nlﬁcanﬂy during that period, in which case the exhange rates at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences anising, if any, are recgmsed In ather oo prehensve income and accumulated in equity (attributed 1o non-
controfling interests as appropria

On the disposal of a foreign operation {i.e. & disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
invedving loss of control over 2 subsidiary that includes a fc-relgrn cperation, of 2 disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an assodiate that includes 3 foreign operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that oparation attributable 1o the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

BORROWING COSTS
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of quah{#mg assets, which are assets

that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets-are substantially ready for their intended use o sala:

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending ther expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capatalisation

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or 1oss in the period in which they are incurred

GOVERNMENT FUNDING
Government funding relating to property, plant and eguipment, whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or othenadse acquire non-current assets, are recogrised as defesred government funding in the
conzolidated statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the
useful lives of the related assets

Government funding that is recejvable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred (s recorded as a Kability
upon receipt and re-;oghrised a3 ofher operating income until the requirements (i any) specified in the terms of the
funding have been reached

OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Retirement benefits

The Group’s local Chinese employees are entitled 1o a retirement benefit based on their salary and their length of serice
in accordance with a state-managed pension plan. The PRC i-:ﬂ-remmem is responsible for the pension lability to these
retired staff. The Group is required to make contributions 1o the state-managed retirement plan-at a rate equal 1o 19 .09
to. 20 0% (the standard in Shenzhen site ranges from 13% to 14% according to Shenzhen government regulation) of
the monthly basc salary of current employees. The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid and there are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group. The costs sre recognised in
profit ar loss or in underlying assets as they become payable.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS

Thie Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of providing Incentives and rewards 10 eligible participants
who contribute 10 the success of the Group's cperations. Employees (including directors) of the Group recelve remuneration
in the form of share-based payments, whereby em ployess render Services as consideration for equity instroments { "equity-
settled transactions® )

g?ury-senlad share-based payments to employees and others providing smilar services are measured at the fair value
thie equity Instruments at tha grant date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year endad Decamber 37, 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
SHARE-BASED PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

Thia fair value determined at the grant date of the qguity-senlad chare-based payments is expented ona graded vasting
basis-over the vesting period, based on thie Group’s estimate of equity mstruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises 1ts estimate of the number of
equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, it any, is recognised in profit
or [oss such that the cumulstive expense retlects the revised estimate, with 2 onrrespmdm? adjustment 1o the equity-
settled employes benefits reserve. When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in the resene
will be transferred to share premium

5 of services received, except where that fair value cannot be estim at iably, In which case they are measured at
1 udianf ':r;;llua of the equity instruments granted, measured at the date the entity obtains the goods of the counterparty
renders the senvice

Equity-sattled share-based payment transactions with parties other than employees are measured at the fair value of the

service and non-market performance conditions are not taken Inte account when determining the grant date fair value
of awards, but the hkselihood of the conditions being met (5 assessed a5 part of the Group’s Dest astimate of the rismber
of equity Instruments that will ultimately vest, Market performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
valua. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated service requirement, are considerad ta
be non-vesting conditions. Mon-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate
expensing of an award unless there are other service andfor performance conditions,

For awards that do not ultimately vest bacause non-market performance andfor sarvice conditions have not been mat,
no-expense is recegnised . Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as
vesting irrespactive of whather the markat or non-vesting condition i satisfied, provided that all ather parformance and’
or service conditions are satisfied

TAXATION

Income tax comprises ourrent and deferred tax Income tax relating toitems recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
cutside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive incomea or directly in equity

Current tax

Current 12 assets and labdlities are measured a1 the amount expected 1o be recoversd from of paid 10 the taeation
authorities, based on tax rates land tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
periad, taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing inthe codntries in which the Group operates

Deferred tax

Dreferred tax is r'em?nised on temporary differences between the carrying amournts of assets and liabalities in the
consolidated financial statements and the v:-:rresgmding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally r rusad for all taxable temtﬁwary differences. Deferred tax assets are %&nefal recognised
for all deductible temperary differences 1o the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities ara not recognised
if thie temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition other than in a business combination of
other assets and labilities in & transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit,

Dreferred tax liabilimes are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidianies,
assooiates and joint venture, except where the Group is able to controf the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred too assets ansing from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient tacable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foresseable future

The -:arri,nng amount of deferred tax assets is reviewad at the end of eachr mir;? period and reduced 1o the extent that
It is no fonger probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available 1o aliow all or part of the asset 1o be recovered

Deferred tax liabilitves and asse1s are measured at the tax rates that are expected 1o apply in the: period in which the
liability is sattled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the repocting panod

Thia measuremant of deferred tax liabilines and assets reflects the tax consequencas that would follow from the manner
iy Eln':'tﬂlthe Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, 1o recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and ondyif the Group has a Ie?ally enforceable right 1o sat off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and thie deferred tax assets and defe-red tax liabilities relate 10 income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend aither
1o settle current tax Habilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settie the liabilities simultanecushy, in
each future pencd in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be setthed or recovered
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the year ended Dacember 31, 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Froperty, plant and equipment, other than construction in prograss, held for use in the production o supply of goods or
services, of for administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at their costs, less
accumultated depreciation and any '|ermem fosses. Such cost comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use

The Gr constructs certain of its plant and equipment, In addition 1o costs under the constraction contracts, the costs
that are directly related 1o the construction and scquisition of such plant and equipment are capitalised. Depreciation is
recorded at the time assets are ready for their intended use. Such properties are classified 1o the appropriate categories
of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use Depreciation of these Jssets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have baen put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, |snormally charged to profit of loss in the penod in which it is incurred, In atuations where the recogniticn
criteria are satisfied, the sxpenditure for a major inspection ks capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Whene significant parts of property, plant and equiprent are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recoqnises such parts as ndividual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly

An item at property, plant and equipment 15 derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expacted ta arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or 1055 ansing on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined a5 the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit o loss

Drepreciation is calculated on'the straight-line basis to write off the cost of sach item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful Iife. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Bulldings 25 years 4%
Machinery and aquipmsent S 110 years 10% 16 20%
Office equipment 310 5 years 209 to 33V%

Construction in progress represents buildings under construction and equipment under installation, which s stated at
cost less any Impalrment losses, and s not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and installation,
a5 well a5 leva capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the pericd of construction Constructicn in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate categony of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Acquired intangible assets which consists primarily of technology, licenses and patents, are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated imparment foss. Amortisation is computed using the straight-line method over the
enpected useful hives of the assets of 3 to 10 years, The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewsd at
the end of each reporting period, with effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.,

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other than
inventones, contract assets, deferred tax assets, financial assets and non-current assets classified as held for sale) 1o
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impatrment loss. If any such indication
exjsts, tha recoverable amount of the asset 15 estimated in order to determine the axtent of the impairment loss (if
any). When it is nct ible to estimate the recoversble amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-genarating unit {"CGU") 10 which the asset belongs. In 125ting a cash-gener ating unit
for iu‘nJ:aiiment. & portion of the carrying amount of & corporate asset (eg., a hea q#arlews building) i35 allocated to an
individsal cash-gererating undt if it can be llacated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwisa, 1o the smallast
group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of far value less-costs to disposal-and value in wse. In assessing value in wse, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted 1o thelr present value usjn% 3 pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 1o the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flowes have not been adpusted

If the recoverable amount of an asset jor CGUD s estimated 1o be less than its camying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset {or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment [oss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment |55 subsequently reverses, the carryﬁ amount of the asset {or a CGU) I5 increased 1o the rewsed
estimate of its recoverable amount, but 5o that the increased carnying amount does not excead the carrying amount that

would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset lor CGUY in prior years. A reversal
of-an impairment [oss 15 recognised as income
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year endad Decamber 37, 2021

4. EEEIEISFI CANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Group as a lessee
The Group applies 3 sngle recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases

of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease ligbilities 1o make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing
thie right to use the underling assets.

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of the fease (that is the date the underlying asset is
avallable fior use), Rj?ht-n‘ld.m as3ets are measured af cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remesasurement of lsase lisbilities. The cost of right-cf-use assets includes the amount of
lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received

Right-of-use assets are depraciated ona straight-line basis aver the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Buildirgs 210 5 years
Machinery and equipment 3 1o 5 years
Land-use right 50 10 70 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of
4 purchase option, depreciation is calolated using the estimated usaful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease [iabilites are recognised at the commencement date of the lease at the present value of lease payments 1o ba
made cwer the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments lincludirg in-substance fixed payments) l2ss an
lease incentives recévable, vanabla lease payments that depend on anndex of a rate, and amounts expected 1o be pai
under residual value guarantees The lease payments also inclede the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
cartain 1o be eercased by the Group-and paymients of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease 1erm raflects
the Group exercising the opticn 1o terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
of a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or condition that friggers the payment ocours

In calculating thie present value of lease payments, the Group usesits incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date becauss the interast rate implicit in'the lease is not readily determinable After the commencement date, the smount
of lease liabilities is increased 1o reflect the accretion of interast and reduced for the lease payments made In addition,
the carrying amount of kease lisbilities is remeasured if there is a modification, s change in the lease term, 4 change
iri fease payments (2.q., a change to futura lease payments resulting from a change in dn index or rate) or 3 change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset

Short-term leases and leases of fow-value assets

Thi Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its shor-term leases of wehicle and computer (that is
thiose leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
aption). It also applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-walue assets to leases of office equipment and
computers that are considered 1o be of low value.

mas&rﬁeaymem; on short-tenm leases and leases of low-valua assels are recogrased asan expense on & stralght-lne basis
over lease term

Group as a lessor

Leasas in which the Group doss not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases, When a contract contains lease-and non-lease componernts, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract toeach component on & refative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease Terms and is included in profit or loss due to 115 operating nature. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carmying amount of the leased asset
and recognised over the leass term an the same basis as rental income, Contingent rents ara recogrised in profit or fass
in the period in which they are earmed.

Sale and leaseback transactions

The Group applies the requirements of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 10 assess whether sale and
leaseback transaction constitutes a sale by the Group.

The Group acts as a seller-fessee

For sali and leaseback transactions in which a transfer of the asset satisfies the requirements in IFRS 15 to be accounted
for as a sale, the Group measure the right-of-use assets ansing from the leaseback at the proportion of the previous
carrying amount of the asset that relates to the right of use retained by the seller-lassee and accordingly recognises
only the amount of the gain that relates 1o the rights transterred 1o the buyer-lessor, For a transter that does not satisfy
the requirements a5 a sale, the Group as' @ seller-lessee continues 10 recognise the assets and sccounts for the transher
proceeds a3 borrowings within the scope of IFRS 9

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have 2 short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafis which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted a3 1o use
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the year ended Dacember 31, 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
RESTRICTED CASH

Restricted cash comsists of bank deposits pledged against letters of credit, bank deposits Eladged ainst letters of
quarantes and unused government tunding for certain research and development projects. Changes of restricted cash
paid for property, plant and equipment are presented as investing acuvity in consalidated statement of ‘cash flows.
Changes of restricted cash of pledged iﬁailﬁt letter of credit, short-term and long-term credit facilities and unused
gmanmemtﬁ.mg_iln for expansed resaarch and development activities are presented as operating activity in consolidated
statement of cash flows.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, Costs of inventories are determined on a4 wetghted

average basis, In the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises diredt materials, direct labour and an

g{xq:tiale proportion of overheads | Net realisable value re&résenlt the estimated salling price for inventories less all
imated costs of completion and costs necessary 1o make the sale

MON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD-FOR-SALE

Kon-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held-for-sale if their carmpng amount will be recovered principally
through 3 sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition 15 regarded as met only when the sale is
highly probable and the non-current asset {or disposal group) 15 available for immediate sale in its present condition
Management must be commitied 1o the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition a5 3 completed sale
within one year from the date of classfication

Mon-current assets (and disposal groups) dassified as held-for-sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs of disposal

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
{nitial recognition and measurement

Flr:;%nml Iasm; are classified, at initial recognition, as subsegquently measured at amortised cost and fair value through
profit or loss

The dassification of financial assets at initlal recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for mmaﬂ:rug them . With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contair a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus in
the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit o foss, fransaction costs, Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at
the transaction price determined under IFRS 15

I ceder for a finanaal asset 1o be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value thmugh other comprehensve
income, it needs 1o give rise to cash fiows that are solely payments of principal and interast ( SPFI"} on the principal
amount outstandng Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPM are dassfied and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, imespective of the business model

The Group's business madel for managing financial assets refers to haw it managesits financial assets in order 10 generate
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from coflecting contractual cash flows, sellin
the financial assets, o both, Financial assets cassified and measured at amortised cost are held within 3 business mod
with the objective to hold financial assets in order to coblect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified and
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are held within & bussiness model with the objective of
both holding 1o collect contractual cash flows and selling Financial assets which are not held within the aforemention ed
business models are classified and measured at fair value through profit o loss

Al reqgular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits 10 purchase or sell the asset Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require defivery of assets within the pericd generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subseguent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment Gains and losses are recogresed in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year endad Decamber 37, 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or foss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with
net changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss

This cat inchudes derivative instruments. Dividends on equity investments classified a5 financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are also recogrésed as other gain in profit or loss when the right of payment has been established,
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
divi can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financal asset or part of a group of smilar financial assets) is
derecognised (i &, remowed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when'

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

. the Group has wransierred its rights 1o receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation 10 pay the
receivied cash flows in full without material delay 1o a third party under a "pass-through” arrangement, and either
{a} the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the ""’""‘J has neither
transfarred nor retained substantally all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transterred control of the assat

When the Group has transferred its nights 10 receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a. pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and reveards of ownership of the asset. When
it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues 1o recognise the transterred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing invohement, In
that case, the also rac%r&im &0 assocated tlahﬂil?:. Thea transferred asset and the associated llability are measured
on a bass that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred Jsset is measured at the lower of the
ariginal carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay

Impairmeant

Thi Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (" ECL™5) for all debt instrements not held at fair value
through profit or loss ECLs are based on the difference between the comtractual cash flows due in accordance with
thie contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects 1o receive, discounted at an approximation of the onginal
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held o other credit
enhancements that are integral 1o the contractual terms:

General approach

ECLs ara recognised in twa stages For credit expasures for which there has not bean a significant increasein cradil rish
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit fosses that result from default events that are possible within the
reect 12 monthis (a 12 -month ECL)Y. For those credit expasures for which there has been 2 significant increase in credi nisk
since initial recogrition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the axposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default {a lifetime ECL)

At each reportinig date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk onca financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition: When making the assessm ent, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as of the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as of the date of
initial recognition and considers reascnable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including Mstorical and forward-fooking information

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contraciual payments are past due However, |n certain cases, the
Group may also consider 3 finandal asset 1o be in default when internal o external information indicates that the Group
5wy |b:eb?. 1o receive the cutstanding contractual amounts in full before taiting into account any credit enhancements
hed;l by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractusl
cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the year ended Dacember 31, 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

General approach (ontinued)

Debt investments at financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the general approach and 1%
are classified within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets whi
apply the simplified approach a5 detaled below

stage 1 = Finandal instruments for which cradit sk has not increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the Ices allowance is measurad at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financlal instruments for which credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss aliowance is measured atan amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage 3 = Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date {but that are not purchased or onginated
cradit-impaired) and for which tha [oss allowsnce 15 measurad at an amount aqual to lifatime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a significant financing component or when the Group
dpplies the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a sigraficant finanding component, the Group applies the
simplitied approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
bt instead recognises & loss afowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date: The Group has established a
prowision matrix that is based on its historical credit foss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
dabtors and the economic envircnment

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

initial recognition and measurement

Financial ligbilities are classified, at initial recegnition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, lease Habilites, payables, or as denivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
4% apprapriate

All fimanca habillities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attnibutable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial labilities include trade and other payables, lease liabilities, denvative financial instruments, bonds
payable, convertible bonds, medium-term’ notes and borrowings

Subsegquent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification a5 follows

Financial liabilities at amortised costs

After initial recognition, including borrowings, lease Habilities, trade and other payables and bonds payable are subsequentl
measured at amorti sed cost, using thi effective interest rate mathod unfess the affect of dm:mn_tlnglwmtd b immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and | osses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
a5 wall as through the affective nterest rate amartisation process

Amortised cost |5 calculsted by taking into account any discount Of premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
anﬂlﬁnlegrlal part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in
profit of loss,

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits characteristics of 3 labiliy is recognisad as a liability in the statemeant
of financial posttion, net of fransaction costs. On issuance of convertible bonds, the fair valie of the liability component
is determined using 4 market rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond, and this amount is carmed a5 a long term
liability on the amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion of redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is
allocated 1o the conwversion option that is recognised and included in sharehol ders’ equity, net of transaction costs. The
carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years, Transaction Costs are apportioned
betwesn the iability and equaty components of the canvertible bands biased on the allocation of proceeds 1o tha kability
and equity compenents when the instruments are first recognised

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expira. The difference between the carmying amouent of the financial hability derecogrised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING

The Group enters info a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and forelgn
exchange rate risks, including foreign exchange forward contracts, cross CUMency swap Contracts and interest rate swap
contracts Further details of derivative financia instruments are disclosed in Mote 21 and Mote 39, respectively

Drerivatives are :nma-lITyr nised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasurad to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain_or loss'is recognised in profit of

loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as 3 hedging instrument, in which event the timing of
the recognition in prafit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year endad Decamber 37, 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(continued)
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACCOUNTING {continued)

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hadges are classified as:

. fair vajue had?!s when hedging the exposure 10 changes in the fair value of 3 recognised asset or liability or an
unrecognised firm commitment, or

. cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to iariabulltr. in cash flows that is either attributable to a particular
risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a'highly probable forecast transaction, or a foreéign currency
risk in an unrecognised firm commitment, or

. hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation

At the Inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally designiates and documents the hedge retationship 1o which
the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting, the risk management objective and its strateqy for undertaking the hedge

The documantation includes (dentification of thie hedging nstrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk baing
hﬁigod and how the Group will assess whether the hedging relationship meets the hedge effectivensss requirements
(including the analys:s of sources of hedge ineffectiveness and how the hedge ratio is determined), A hedging relationship
qualifies for hedge accounting if it meets all of the following effectivenass requirements:

* There |5 = an economic relationship” between the hedged item and the hedging mstrument
s The effect of credit risk does not “dominate the value changes” that result fram that ecoromic relationship

. Thie hedge ratio of the hadging refationship is the same a5 that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item
that the Group actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the Group actually uses 1o hedge
that quantity of hedged item.

Any gains or losses anising from changes in fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except for the
effectiva portion of 'gain or loss on cash flow hadges:

The effective portlon of the gain or Joss on cash flow hedges 15 recognised directly in other comprehensive income in
the hedging reserve, while any ineffective portion i5 recognised immediately in profit o loss.

Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income are transferred to profit or loss when the hedaged transaction affects
profit or loss, such as when hedged financial income or financial expense is recognised or when a forecast sale occurs
Where the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial asset o non-finanicial lisbility, the amounts récognised in other
comprehensive income are wansferred 1o the initial carrying amownt of the non-financal asset or non-financial liability

T cash fiow hedge accounting i5 discontinued, the amount that has bean sccumulated in OC) must remain in acoumulated
0Cl if the hedged future cash flows are still expected to occur Othérwise, the amount will be immediately recassified
to profit or 1oss a5 a raclassfication adjustment. After discontinuation, once the hedged cash flow ocours, any amount
r%maﬁ'ling in accumulated OCI must be accounted for depending on the nature of the underlying transaction as described
above

PERPETUAL CAPITAL SECURITIES

Perpatual capital securities with no contracted obligation 1o repay their principal or 1o pay any distribution:are dass fied
a5 part of equity

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
gprnbahle that the Group will be required to settle the cbligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
the obligation

The amount recognised as a prowision is the best estimate of the consideration required 1o settle the present cbligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the abligaton. When a
provision is measured wsing the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows {when the effect of the time value of money is material}

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
The preparation of the Group’s finandial statements requires managem ent to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that aftect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilines, and ther acmdpanylng disclosures, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities, Uncertainty about thess assumptions and estim ates could result in oitcomes that
could require & material adjustment to the carmying amounts of the assets o liabilities affected in the future. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 1o accounting estimates are recognised in the
pervcd in which the estimate is revised

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The foll cwing are 1he key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sodrces of astim ation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the year ended Dacember 31, 2021

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Share-based compensation expense

The Cmpani'; share option plan and 55E STAR Market restricted shareincentivie scheme use the option pricing model
1o estimate the fair value of :Etlms on the grant date. The option-pricing model requires highly subjective assumpiions,
including the expected life of the options and the expected fluctuation of the stock price. The expected life of the granted
option refers 1o the time when the granted option is expected to be issued The Company uses historical volatility to
predict stock price fluctustions. These assumptions are inherently uncertaine The fair value of the options are affected by
assumplions and judgments: Further details on share-based compensation are disclosed in Mote 38 10 the consolidated
financial statements,

Fair value of financial instruments

Some of the Group's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for finanoal reporting purposes. In estimating the
fair value of an asset of & liability, the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Leviel
1 inputs are not available, The Group uses valuation technigues that include inputs that are not based on obsenvable
market data to estimate the fair value of certain types of financial instruments, Mote 40 provide detailed information
abgdlf lti:f valuation techniques, inputs and key assumpdions used in the determination of the fair value of various assets
and Habilities,

Fair valve measurement of assocdlates and foint venture's portfolio investments

The Group hasinvested in a number of portfolio investments through several investment funds, which were accounted for
a5 investm ents in associates of joint venture using equity method. The investment funds measured their squity investments
i partfolio investments at fair value The valuation of such partfolio investments is primarily based on a combiriation
of adoption of applicable valuation methodology and the application of ﬁgwpriate assumptions in the valuation. The
unlisted equity investments in portfolic investments have been valued based on a market-based valuation technigue as
detailed in Note 20 tothe financial statements. The valuation requires the Group 1o determine the comparable public
companies (peers) and select the price multiple, In addition, the Group makes astimatas about the discount for iliquidity.
The Group dassifies the fair value of these investments as Level 3

Leases - Estimating the incremantal borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a lease, and therefore, 1t uses an incremental borrowing
rate (YIBR") to maeasure lease liabilities The IBR is tha rate of interasy that the Group would have to pay 1o Borrow over
& similar term, and wath & similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of 3 similar value 1o the right-of-use
asset in 3 similar economic environment The IBR therafore reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires
estimation when no cbservable rates are available {such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing. transactions)
of when it neads 10 be adjusted 1o reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for example, when lesses are not in
the wbsid'rrr{‘s functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs {such as market interest rates)
when available and is required 1o make certain entity-specific estimates ?sum a5 the subsidiany's stand-alone credit rating)

Further details are intluded in Mote 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE
DESCRIPTION OF SEGMENTS

For ‘managemant purposes, the Group operates in ona segment, engaﬁm principally i the computer-aided d‘emrghn.
manufacture and trading of integrated crcuits Management makes 'gﬁ-level strategic decidons and reviews the
consaidated results of the Group.

DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
The Group's operating révenua from customerss detailed as below

Revenue from external customers

Year endad Year endad
12131721 12631020
Us D000 LSDA000
Geographical market!!
Chinese Mainland and Hong Kong, China 3,481,734 2,482,180
Morth America 1,215,545 006,493
Europe and Asia'? 745,833 518,302
5443112 2,006,975
Types of goods or services
Sales of wafers 4,982,237 3,474,502
Mask making, testing and others 460,875 432,473
5443 112 32,906,975
Timing of revenue recogniticn
Goods transferred at a point in time 5342872 3,906,975
Services transferred over time 100,240 -
5,442,112 3,906,375

i Repletanting the revenus to thote companies whoie headquarters are in the kecations, but ultimately selleng and shipping the
products 1o ther global cwstomens

) Excluding Chinese Manland and Hong Kong, China
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b.

8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE (continued)

LIABILITIES RELATED TO CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
Thie Group has r

one year or less
PERFORMAMNCE OBLIGATIONS

Infermation about the Group's performance obligations is summarised below

Sale of goods

The perform ance obligation 15 satisfied upon delivery of the goods and payment 15 generally due within 30 1o 90 days

from delivery. Some contracts provide custamers with & right of return and volume rebates

Rendering of services

Tha performance cbligation |5 satisfied over time as services are rendered and payment is generally due within 30 days

upon customer acceptance
SEGMENT ASSETS

The Group will continue to incur capital expenditures and depreciation expenses a5 it equips and ramps-up additional

149

rised the [1abilities related to contracts with customers as contract liabilities of LSE1,022.7 million
as of Decembar 31,7202 1 {December 31, 2020 USE181 4 milion). The contract liabilities comprises of
receives] from customers, 1o whom the wafers have not been transferred  Revenue remgmsed that was included in
the contract liabilities balance at the beginning of the year was US$181.4 million (2020;

5$92.3 million). Amount of
LI5%1,022 7 million is axpactad 1o be recognised as revanue within one year a3 all related contracts have a-duration of

fabs and expand its capacity at the existing fabs, The non-current assets were mainly located in Chinese Mainkand

SIGHIFICANT CUSTOMERS

Thee Tollowing table summarises net revenue from customers, which accounted for 10% of more of net revenue:

Net revenue for year
ended December 21,

the prepayments

2029 2020
Customer A 515,446 443,291
11.3% 11.3%
OTHER OPERATING INCOME
Year ended Year ended
12031121 12£31720
5D 000 LS00
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, naht-of-use assets
and assets classified as held-for-sale 48,281 2,247
Impai rment [oss recognised on intangible assets (Mote 11) - {1,145}
Gevernment funding 378,319 262,481
Gain on disposal and deconsolidation of subsidiaries (Note 42) 231,382 Quk
657,982 364,487
FINANCE COSTS
Year ended Year ended
12431721 123120
usb o0 LSO 000
Interest on
Bank and other borrownings 75.747 69,475
Leases (Note 17) 8,829 11,464
Converiible bonds (Note 32) 52 7,329
Corporate bonds (Wote 33) 16,854 14,255
Medium-term notes (Note 34) 8,661 7412
Short-term notes (Mote 34) - 6. 193
110,143 116,128
Less: amounts capitalised - 142,804}
110,143 73,234
The weighted average interest rate wsed for interest capitalisation was 1.91% fer 2020
sMIC 2021 Areval Rapord
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9. OTHER GAINS, NET

Year ended Year endad
12/31121 12031720
USD'o00 LD 000

Falr value change arising on:
Crioss Curfency swap contracts 11,356 £
Foreign currency forward contracts 108 1333)
structural deposits and monetary funds TEE 8499
Equity securities £7,92% 45,463
BO,155 53.629
Chers 630 {2,888)
80,785 50,741

10. INCOME TAXES
INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Year ended Year ended
12/3121 12031720
UsD 000 LSD'000
Current 1ax — Land Appreciation Tax 4,320 -
Current tax — Enterprize Income Tax 18,642 64,595
Deferred 1 42,204 3T1s
55,166 68,210

The Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Year snded Year ended
12121721 12431720
U5 D 000 S0 Q00
Profit before 1a 1,840,324 737,408
Income tax expense caloulated at 25% 460,081 184,252
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in other
Jurisdictions {6,598) (14.471)
Adustments in respect of current 13 of previous periodst™ (39,267) 43
share of profits and lasses of joint venture and associates (63,170} (46,835)
Expenses not deductible for tax 4,496 2,277
Effect on opening deferred tax due to tax rate change (11,102} -
Effect of tax holiday and tax concession (240,041} {128,909
Additional deduction for research and development expenditures (98,988} 196,14 1)
Litilisation of previously unrecognised deductible temporary differences (42,412} {11,239)
Temporary dif ferences without deferred tax recognised 97,947 179,234
Land appraciation tax 4,320 -
65,166 68,310

b ENSC Beljing, @ fubsidiary of the ﬁru.lf;;. -e.'|:1|2 . 4 tax preference to bé exempbed from corporate income tax from 2015 to 2015
o

and is entitled to a 509 tax reduction 0 b 2024 Howrer, SRIC Bm;angaubtamﬁ approval from the reevant tax authosity
i May 2021 to continue b be exempted from conpoeate moome tax from o 2024 I received the redevant tax refund
of US135. T million im 2021 for the relevant tax paid in 7020

Pursuant 10 the PRC Corporate Incomeé Tax Law, & 10% withholding tax s levied on dividends declared to foreign investors
from the foreign investment enterprizes established in Mainland China: The Group is theréfore liable for withhiolding taxes
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in Chiness Mainland. Mo deferred tax liability for withholding
tawes has been recognised as the Company |5 able to controf the timing of distributions from subsidianes and |5 not
expected to distribute these profits of subsidiaries in Chingse Mainland in the foreseeable future The aggrr;gal.e amounts
of temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in Chinese Mainland for which deferred tax liabilities
have not besn recognised amounted to USE2,943 3 milion (2020 USE1 1211 million)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year endad Decamber 37, 2021

10. INCOME TAXES (continued)
CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES

Thie Growp has recognised the income 1ax payvablia as labilities of USE26.7 million as of December 31, 2021 (December
31, 2020° US$17 € million)

DEFERRED TAX BALANCES
The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets and liabilities presented in the consolidated statement of financial
postian
Less avallable
for offsatting
against
Propaity, future
plant and Intangible taxable
aquipment Arcruals assels  Impairment profits Total
Daferred tax assats L0000 L5000 LISDAO00 U5D"000 L5000 50000
Babance at Decembes 21, 2019 49 184 6206 1531 o, 0 1851 62,975
Recesgnisn in profit of los {4.508) 259 (156) {2.103) TS (5,153)
Batance at Decembes 31, 2020 44,680 115 1375 1,906 1,665 21802
Remante in profit.or los (2157 (4674 {156 (1.554) {2,658 30622
Batance al December 31, 2021 23,108 1521 1219 351 = 27,200
Financial asset at
fair value through  Property, plant and
profit or loss equipment Total
Defarred tax liabilities L5000 LISD-000 L0000
Balance at December 31, 2012 - 34,360 34,360
Recognlse in profit o loss - {1.438) {1,438}
Balance at December 31, 2020 = 32,922 33,922
Recognise in profit or loss 31,928 120,346) 11,582
Bxchange differences 260 - 260
Balance at December 31, 2021 32,188 12,576 44, 764

FOr presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabshines have bean offsetin the statement of financial posmion
The followedng is the net deferred tax balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

12131721 123020

U5 D000 S0 D00

et deferred tax assets 14,624 24,800
et deferred tax habilities 32,188 -

Dreferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items

12131121 123120

LISD"000 USDr 000

Tax Losses 910,409 T39.673
Deductible temporary differences 2,560,863 2,109,055
3471272 2,848,728

At the end of the reporting period, no deferred tax asset was recognised in respect of tax losses of USE910.4 million
{December 31, 2020: US$739.6 million} due 10 the unpredﬂahnllli,- of future profit streams, of which US$58 2 million,

U535 197 0 million, USS 11020 million, L55204.0 million and L55341.2 million will expere in 2022, 2023, 2024, 2025 and
2026, raspactively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the year ended Dacember 31, 2021

10. INCOME TAXES (continued)
INCOME TAX RATE

The Company ismmggratagiin the Cayman [slands, where it is mot currently subject to tacation. The detailed tax statuses
of SMIC s principal PRC entities-with tax holidays are elabourated as follows

SMIS cbtained the centificate of high-tech enterprise issued on Movember 18, 2020 and is entitled to enjoy the preferantial
income tax rate-of 159 from 2070 ta 2022 In 2021, the income 1a% rate for SMIS was 159

According to Caishui [2012] Mo, 27, Announcement Moo 45.0f 2020 and relevant tax regulations, SMIT is qualified
35 an integrated crcuit enterprise and entitled 1o eng a3 10-year tax holiday (income tax -full exemption from 201310
2017, 50% raduction of income ta from 2018 1o 2022) beqinning from 20013 after utilising all prior years’ 1ax losses.
Meanwhile, SMIT has obtained the certificate of high-tech enterprise Issued on Movember 28, 2019 In 2021, the income
tanc rate for SMIT was 12.5%

According to Caishus [2012] Mo, 27, Guofa [2020] Mo, 8 and relevant tax regulations, SMIE 15 qualified as an integrated
cireuit enterprise and entitled to enjoy 3 10-year tax holiday (income tax fu ﬂem‘?,“m from 2015 to 2024) beginning
from 0015 after utilising all prior years” tax losses. Meanwhile, SMIB has obtained the certificate of high-tech enterprise
issued on December 17, 2021, SMIB enjoyed the preferential treatment of full exemption from income fax in 2021 and
wodld submit the required documents in accordance with the relevant regulations

SMMC obtained the certificate of high-tech enterprise issued on December 2, 2019 and is entitled to enjoy the preferential
income tax rate of 15% from 2019 to 2021, In 2021, the income tax rate for SMNC was 15%

SMIZ obtained the certificate of high-tech enterprise issued on December 11, 2020 and is entitled to enjoy the preferential
income tax rate-of 159 from 2070 ta 2022 In 2021, the income 1ax rata for SMIZ was 159

All the other PRC entities of SMIC are subject 10 Income tax rate of 25%.

11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Prafit for the year has been arrived at after charging/craditing):

Year ended Yaar ended
12/31521 12431720
UsD'000 LEDG00
Impairment losses (reversed)/recognised on assets
Reversal in allowance on doubtful trade receivables (Note 39) {481} {450)
(Reversaliaddition in llowance on doubtful other recevables (Nota 33) (516} 639
Impairment losses (reversedlrecognised on inventories (60,235} 23,112
Impatrment losses recognised on intangible assets (Note 18) - 1,145
(61,232} 24,456
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Deprecistion of property, plant and equipment (Mote 16} 1,737.457 1,184,571
Brepreciation of right-of-use assets (Mate 17} 106,938 98,766
Amortisation of intangible azsets (Mote 18) 24,207 29,357
1,869,302 1,312,694
Employes benefits expanse
Wages, salaries and social security contributions 584,863 503,232
Bonites 122 876 197117
Mon-monetary benafits 31,350 27401
Equity-settied share-based payments 78,360 10,460
823,449 738.210
Royalties expense 32,394 26,355
Auditors’ remuneration
Audit services 1.395 1,653
Mon-audit services 6 235
1.401 1,738
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year endad Decamber 37, 2021
12. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
Year ended Year ended
12131121 123130
UsD 000 USDe 000
Salaries, fees, bonus and benefits 4,514 7.871
state-managed pension'” 23 12
Equity-settled share-based payments 5,079 2,772
9,616 10,655

L The employes of the Group in Chinese Mainland participate in the pension insurance and unemployment insurance scheme
admiriteed by the local government The Group contiibutes on a monthly bagis b these schomds based of corlain poroenlage:
ud'lm salaries of the employees. After retirem ent, the local government i responiible for paying basic sotlal pensiens to the
retived smployess.

The equity-settled share-based payments granted to directors include stock options, restricted share units ("R5US™) and
restricted shares.

Cruring the year ended Crecember 31, 2021, 1,416,137 share options were granted to the directors (2020; 2,359,665)
£ 17,466 share aptions were exercised (2020: 314,531) and no stock options were expirad (2020! nil).

Cruring the year ended December 31, 2021, 989,336 RSUS were granted to the directors (2020 1,072,451), 804,966
R5Ls automatically vested (2020 438,750} and no RSkl were forfeited (2020: nil)

Buring the year ended December 31, 2021, 1,960,000 restricted shares were granted 1o the directors (20200 nil), no
restricted shares automatically vested {2020 nil) and 400,000 restricted shares were forfeitad (20200 nilk

In 2021, no emoluments were paid by the Grr:n.?o to any of the directors a5 an inducement 16 jain o upon jning the
Group or s compensation for loss of office {2020; nil). ho other directors waived any emoluments in 2021 {20207 nil}

Thie Group fias no contributions 1o pension schemas for directors of past directors, except for the state-managed pansion
for the execitive directors,

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The fees paid or payable to independent non-executive directors of the Company during the year were as follows!

State- Equity-settled

Fees, bonus managed sharg-based Total

and benefits pansion payments remuneration

2021 UsSD'000 Us D000 Usp 000 USD 000
William- Tudor Brown 33 - 319 412
Lau Lawrence Juen-Yee 79 - 107 186
Fan Ren Da Anthony a4 - 107 191
Liu Ming 63 - 555 618
Young Kwang Lee 61 - 74 135
380 - 1.162 1.542

L On Movember 11, 2021, Ov. Young Kwang Leol has resaned as an independent non-executive diector of the Company

Equity-setiled

Feas, bonus State-managed share-based Total

and benefits DERSION payments  remunecation

2020 LISE Q00 LIsDe000 5D 000 LIS oo
'William Tudor Brewn 93 - 218 an
Cong Jingsheng Jason 45 = 195 241
Lau Lawrence Juen-Yee 78 - 65 143
Fan Ren Da Anthony g3 - 65 148
Young kwang Leei 58 - 182 252
367 - 728 1,085

Thare were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-exacutive directors during the year
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Far the year ended Dacember 31, 2021

12. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued)
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Salaries, fees, State- Equity-settled
bonus and managed share-based Total
banefits pensian payments remuneration
2021 LS D000 USD Q0D USD 000 UsD00d
Executive directors:

Gao Yonggang 818 g 765 1,592
Zhao Haijun BYT [ 581 1,564
Liang Mong Song™ B79 - 568 1447
Chiang shang-Yi® 716 - 361 1,077
Thou Tixus™ add ] BOG 1,658
4,134 23 3,181 T.338

Mon-executive directors:
Lu Guoging & i 291 291
Chen shanzhi = = 319 319
Huang. Dengshan - - - -
Ren Kai - - - -
Lu Jurt® = = = =
Tong Guohud® - = 26 16
Tho Jiet - - = -
= - 736 736

f On Movember 18, 2021, Liang Mong Song, resigned as an executive director and will contnue to serve as the co-chief @ecutive
officer of the Company after the aforementioned resgnation

b On Movember 11, 2021, Chiang Shang-Yi resgned a5 the vice chairman of the board and an exeutse director of the Company.

O March 17, 2022, Thou Tioue resignad &5 an exscutive diractor of the Company

- On Apnl 29, 1021, Lu Jun resigned a3 a non-execuine director of the Company.

o On May 13, 2021, Tong Guohua restgned as @ non-execubve director of the Company

" On Movember 11, 2021, Thou ke resigned a5 8 nor-executive drector of the Company

Salaries, fees, Equity-sattied
borws and  State-managed share-based Total
beneaiits pension payments remuneration
2020 LISC00n LI5S0 000 UsSDrong USDH000
Executive directors:

Zhou Tixue 1060 & B17 1,583
Chiang Shang-Yi 3z =, = 37
Ihao Haijun 972 - 129 111
Liang Mong 5ong 4,413 - 517 2,930
Gag Yonggang 1027 & 457 1,450
7,504 12 1,630 9,146

Mon-executive directars
Chen Shanzhi - - 218 218
Thou lis - - - -
R Kai - - - -
L Jur - - - -
Tong Guchua = = 126 186
- - 414 414

There was no arrangement under which a director o the chief

during the year
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year endad December 37, 2021

13.

14,

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid indiiduals duri
are set out in Note 12 above, Details
individual for the year are as follows

ooooood
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the year included four {2020 four) directors, details of whose remuneration
the remuneration of the remaining one (20207 onel non-director, highast paid

Year ended Year efided

1203121 12431720

D000 LISD 000

Salaries and benefits 267 >30
Boras m 54
state-managed pension - i
Equity-settled share-based payments 530 =
1,088 Sk

Thie bonus is determined on the basis of the basic salary and the performance of the Group: and the individual

In 2021, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the five highest paid individuals 35 an inducement 1o join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of affice {20200 nil)

The Group has no contributions 1o pensian schemes for directors o past directors, except for the state-managed pension
for the executive directors and employees

The remuneration of the non-director and highest paid individual fell within the following bands is as follows:

Number of employee

2021
Approxamately USEBAT.401 1o USESE 1,500 - 1
Apprammately USE1,025.601 10 U551,089,700 1 =
1 1

2020

EARNINGS PER SHARE
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Thafrdaiarmrtgs and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic earnings: per share are
a5 follows!

{In USD'000, except share
and per share data)

Year ended Year ended

12i31/21 12431120

Profit for the year attnbutable to owners of the Company 1,701,803 T15,550
Interast on perpetual subordinated convartible secunties holders (82} (8,000}
Eamnings used in the caloulation of basic eamings per share 1,701,721 TO7, 550

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of basic

earnings per share TBAT 672423

$0.22

£,353,497,375
.11

Basic earnings per share
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the year ended Dacember 31, 2021

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

The sarnings used in tha caloulation of diluted earnings per share are as follows:

(Im USD'000, excapt share
and per share data)

Year ended Year ended
12/31721 12431720
Earnings wsed in the calculation of basic earnings per share 1,701,721 707,550
Interest on convertible bonds (Mote 8) 52 7.329
Interest on perpetual subordinated convertible securities halders 8z 8,000
Earnings used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share 1,701,855 J22.879
Weaghted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calcudation of basic earnings per share 7897672423 6,353,497, 375
Employee options and restricted share units 24,287,736 22,355,752
Restricted shares 7,245,193 =
Convertible bands 1,084 474 219,232,491
Perpetual subocrdinated convertible securities 2,509,303 247,547,767
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the caloulation of
diluted earnings per share 7,932,798.629 6,B42,533,.285
[uluted earnings per share $0.21 $0.11

Guring the ended December 31, 2021, the Group had 2,742,167 weighted average outstanding employee stock
options (2020: 477.111) excloded from the computation of diluted earnings per share because the exercise price was
higher than the average marker price of the ordinary shiares. The Group had 46,801,216 outstanding restricted shares
excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share due to the uncertainty about the achievement of non-
market-based performance conditions in the future (2020 nil) No potential shares upon the conversion of convertible
bonds 12!2!2&. ntl) and no potential shares upon the conversion of perpetual subordinated convertible securities {2020
nil} excluded from the computation of diluted eamings per share due to anti-dilutive effect

15. DIVIDEND

The board of director did not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year ended December 31, 2021 (December
31, 2020 nil)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year endad December 37, 2021

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Machinery
and Office Construction _
Buildings equipm ent equipment in progress Total
LISDa00 USCo0ne USED000 UsDro00 LS50 Do
Cost
Balance at December 31, 2019 1079083 14,443,651 235,143 2,473,458 18,231,240
Additions - - - 5,607,893 5.607.893
Transfers 241,575 3,528,754 55,685 (3,826,014} -
[sposals {5,426} 21,277) 71T} 4,578} {31,998}
Deconsolidation of a subsidiary - - {17} - {17}
Reclassified as held-for-sale {19,544} ~ = = (19,544)
Balance at December 31, 2020 1,285,693 17,951,128 250,094 4,250,759 23,787,674
Additions = - - 4,393,093 4,333,093
Transfers 138,930 4,441,947 31,094 14,611,971} =
Dispasals {1,322} (290,954} {2.8498) {8,000} {303,174}
Drisposal of & subsidiany {16,986} 494,187} {8,083} {39,698} {552,964}
Rclassified as held-for-sale {1,404} - - - {1,404}
Balance at December 31, 2021 1,414,911 21,607,934 310,197 3,524,189 27,317,231
Accumulated depreciation
and impalrmant

Balance at December 31, 2018 257,327 10,011,365 124 839 10,570 10,474,093
Drepreciation 51,250 1,085,305 37,976 - 1,184,571
Dsposals {719} {4,817} {717} - {5,253}
Impairment |oss written off - {3} - {Sadad} (547)
Deconsolidation of a subsidiary - - {2} - {2}
Reclassified as held-for-sale {2,209} - - - {2,209}
Balsnce at December 31, 2020 305,689 11,101,850 232,088 10,026 11,649,653
Deprediation 43,144 1,661,868 32,445 - 1,737,457
[sposals {I75) (84,210} {2,844} B 197,229}
Disposal of a subsidiary {1,081} {22€,975) {5.258) - (223.314)
kecdassified as held-for-sale (119} = = o {119}
Balance at December 31, 2021 347 458 12,442,533 256,431 10,026 13,056,448
MNet carrying amount
Balance at December 31, 2020 990,004 6,549,275 58,006 4,240,733 12,138.021
Balance at December 31, 2021 1,067,453 S 165401 53,766 3.974,163 14,260,783

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Included in the balance of construction in progress of approximately US$3,974.2 million a5 of December 31, 2021,
55942 1 million, US%1,878.1 million, US611.6 milkon and USSS06.9 milion were refated 1o the construction of
facilities and payment for acquisition of machinery: and squipment of the fabs in Shanghal, the fabs in Baljing, the fabs
in Shenzhen and the fab in Tianjin, respectively, L5535 5 million was used for purchasing machinery and equipment for
research and development activities

BUILDINGS WITHOUT CERTIFICATES

As of December 31, 2021, the mlnersl'u'g certificatas of buildings with a net carrying amount of LS$99.2 million (December
31, 020 U5%1132.8 million) have not been obtained

ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY

As of December 31, 2021, certain of the Group's pu'gper?, plant and equipment with a carrping amount of approimately
U35215 .9 million {December 31, 2020 approximately LISE161 1 million) have been pledged 16 secura bomowings of the
Group under mortgages (Mote 31}
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the year ended Dacember 31, 2021

17. LEASES
THE GROUP AS A LESSEE

The Group has lease contracts for various items of buildings, machinery and equipmant, ‘and other squipment used:in
its operations. Lump. sum payments were made 1o acguire the land-usé right with lease periods of 50 to 70 years and
no ongoing payments will be made. Leases of buildings, machinery and equipment generally have leasa terms between
2 and 5 years. Other aguipment generally has lease terms of 12 months or less andfor is individually of low value

Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the movements during the Year are 35 follows:

Machinery and

Buildings squipment land-use right Total

LISOr00n LISCr 000 USDrO00 U000

Balance at Decambar 31, 2019 1,884 236:719 138,264 376,867
Additions 1.047 91,147 129,059 221,253
Deprac ation {1,001} 193,641} {3.124} (98, 766)
Disposals - - {6385} {6.385)
keclassified as held-for-sale - - {1,731} {1,731}
Balance at December 31, 2020 1930 233,225 256,083 431,238
Additions 2,099 65,336 112,391 179,826
Depreciation 673} {100,537} {5,728} (106,238)
Bisposals - - {5y L]
Dispesal of a subsidiary {1,373} - {9,015} (10,388)
Balance at December 31, 2021 1,983 198,024 353,722 503,729

{and-use right pledged as security

Az of December 31, 2021, certaln land-use Lﬁht with a-carrying amount of approcamately USE34 2 million (December
31, 2020 USS10.0 milkon) have been pledged to secure borrowings of the Group under martgages (Mate 31}

Lease liabilitios
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during the year are a5 follows:

12/31/21 12031720
Us D000 LISD*000
Balance at January 1, 245270 247,732
Mew leases 67435 92,194
Imterest charged B,829 11,464
Repaymeant {109,851) {105.866)
Bisposal of 3 subsidiary (1,575} -
Foremgn exchange: lossigaing 116 {254)
Balance at December 21, 210,224 245,270
Current portion 100,763 94,249
Mon-current portion 109,461 150,321
210,224 245270

The maturity anabysis of lease Habilities i3 disclosed in Mote 3% 1o the financial statements
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year endad December 37, 2021
17. LEASES (continued)
THE GROUP AS A LESSEE {continued)
Frofit or loss in relation to leases
The amounts recagnised in profit of loss in relation to leases are as follows
Year ended Year- ended
12131721 12£31/20
50000 LUSDr OG0
Interast expense 8,829 11,464
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 106,938 38,766
Gains arising from sublease of nght-of-use assens 117 335
Gains arising from sale and leaseback transaction {2,576} -
Expenss ralating to short-term and low-value leases 9,564 23,232

Cash outflow in reflation to [eases
The-total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in Mote 41 1o the consolidated financial statements.

THE GROUP AS A LESSOR

Thia Group leases parts of its bulfdmgi under aperating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases aenerally require

the tenanis 1o pay security deposits, Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was LISE20.0 milion (2020
USE16.8 million)

As of December 31, 2021, the undiscounted |ease payments receivable by the Group in future penods under non-
cancellable operating l2ases with its tenants are as follows:

12431421 1213120

USD 000 LIS 000

Within 1 year 8,695 6,129
1-2 years 5,543 6,075
Cwes 2 years 7.210 2,272
71,448 14,476

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Patents and license

UsD 000
Cost
Balance at December 31, 2019 445121
Additions 15,512
Balance at December 31, 2020 460,633
Additions 10,570
Balance at December 31, 2021 471,203
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Balance at December 31, 2019 348,173
Amertisation 29 357
Irmpai rment oss recognised 1,145
Balance at December 31, 2020 378680
Amortisation 24,907
Balance at December 31, 2021 403,587
Met earrying amoumnt
Balance at December 31, 2020 1,953
Balance at December 31, 2021 67,616
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the year ended Dacember 31, 2021

19. SUBSIDIARIES

The principle subsidiaries of the Company at the end of the reparting period are as follows:

Papof etsblshmatl Lol matimy vl p feresiage ol sgaty
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Semconlier Manityermg nbndind Fhahal Pocpe's bopubhcof (hma  md cmponston. B0 JE00001000 Ity 108 Mamtater nd vadng of
Corperyon "5 or "MK Tungha)! e HCY anbconiacker prodict
Sewonduir Mty ke nengiond {ling Copostm P bl arpoztes 5010000000 Ity 0T Mawfae and badng of
M o K g T smicondeker prouct;
ety Mty Intemsationd {Turgrd Coporaion 1B e oot WNERY SO CER) ety 1008 Mewlyim and badeg of
LI of " B’ sarvicondes T prodich
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended Decamber 37, 2021

19. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

it On August 27, 2021, SMIC Holdings, SMIC. Investment and Shenzhen Major Industry Investment Group Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen
Magor™} entered into & Shenzhen joint venture agreement, pursuant to which, the parties had agreed that the registerad capital
of Shenzhen shall be increased to USE2415 million, of which SMIC Holdings. SMIC Investmént and Shenzhen Magor agresed
o subseribe for capital contnbution of US31, 732 55 milion, USSEZT million and USE555 45 million, respectively

On Movember 23, 2021, SMIC Hobdings, SMIC kwestment, Shenzhen Major and China IC Fund Il entered into a new Sherzhen
jont venture agreement. puriuant 1o which, SMIC Holding: agreed to transfer to Ching IC Fund Il the <apital contributson of
US3531 3 millon subsonbed by SMIC Holdings under the prewicus Shenzhen joint ventur ¢ agreement but not paid up and China
I Fund [} shall be responzible Toe the relevant capital conibution. Since SMIC Holdings had not paid up the subsoribed capital
contibution, no consideration & récened from China FC Fund 1| for the transfer, As of December 31, 2021, thé actual shareholding
of the Company in SMIC Shenzhen was 73.27%

o Asof December 31, 2021 and 2020, the sharehol ding of the Company in 5M5C was 38 52%  Accordmg to the Arbcles of Associaton
of SMSC, decisions on SMSC" related events were made by the board of directors: The résofution of the board of deectors on
matteds other than thoce protective matters, shall be spproved by ot least half of the drectors sttending the mesting. There were
T mémbers on the board of directors of SMSC, and the Group had the right to appoant 4 directors, so the proportion of voting
rights held by the Company was 57 14%

L On November 12, 2021, the Company, throwgh SMIC Holdngs, Ching IC Fund [fand Shanghat Hadireeet IC Inc. {"Hatlimael ) enteted
i the Line Ga_-nqr Jodnt Wentus e A grelm ent 1o jointhy establish Semiconductor Manufacturing Ortental Comporation ("SMOC ). The
registered capital of the SMOC is LISIS S bilion, of which ShaC Hdqug, Ching IC Fund ¥ and Hailimwei agreed to contribute
uﬂgs.sss bilkon, UEE522 million and USE923 milllon, respoctively. Asof Decembaer 21, 2021, SMIC Holdings hias inves ted & fotal
of US31 828 billion, with & sharehodding of 66455,

® According 1o the Artiches of A ssociation of SMBC, each shareholdéer should complets the capital contribution before December 21,
2024 In 2021, the second phase of China 1€ Fund | invested UST612 3 million, and SMIC Holdings invested USE51000 million,
resulting in the Group's shareholding in SMBC decreasing from 67 54% to 56 Sd4%.

L] Thie Company enteted into a share transfer agreement to transfer the equity interests i 51 Semi m 2021 5) Semi ceased tobe a
subsidiary of the Company from May 6. 2021. Details can be refeied to Note 42

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS ("NQ")
Thia table below shows details of the non-whally owned subsidiaries of the Campany that have maténial non-controlling

Interasts:
Pmpantion of cunsrdhip interests
Hae of establishment and voting rights held by Profit {loss) allocated to non- Acumulated ron-controlling

Name of company  and epamtien nofi-oontilling ntensts ontraling Rteet Iitesits
LA 128100 1na 1810 na BT
LS00 LSEg ] 150000
SN Begng, PRC 4900 4500% 15359 .50 LELE L1885
I Shanghal, PRC B1ATE B145% ez [tz 418 170077 376,349

summarised financial information in respect of the Company®s subsidianies that have materal non-controlling interests
is st out below. The summarnised financial information below represents amounts before intragroup el iminations.

SMHNC

12131121 123120

U5 D' 000 LUSD 00D
Current assets 2,399 45% 1,847,018
Mon-Curfent assers 3,541,335 3042113
Current habilities (B72,BET) (1,028,081}
Mon-current liabilities {187, 588) {303,117}
Met assets 4, BBD,335 4,558,833
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 2488971 2,325,005
Mon-controlling interests 2,391,364 2,233,828
Met assats 4,880,335 4,558,833
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Far the year ended Dacember 31, 2021
19. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
SMNC (continued)
Year ended Tear ended
12431721 1213120
LIS D000 LSD000
Revenue 1,513,276 967,536
Bxpense (1,213,005} {268,611)
CHher incodme 13,802 181,559
Profit for the year 314,074 190,834
Profit attributabie to owners of the Company 160,178 97,325
Frofit-attributable 1o the non-controlling interests 153,896 23,509
Profit for the year 314,074 190,834
Total comprehensive income attributable to owmers of the Company 98,918 (62.841)
Total comprehensive income attributable 1o the non-controlling interests 95,039 160,375}
Total comprehensive inCome for the yaar 193,957 (123.216)
Davidends paid 1o non-controlling interests - -
Met cash inflow from operating activities SE7A13 445470
het cash outflow from investing activities (189,147} {323,521)
Met cash outflow from financing activities {305,793} —ﬁﬁi
Het cash inflow 37,483 5131
SM5C
12431721 1213120
LS D000 s0'000
Current assets 3,731,237 4,052,065
Mon-current assets 5,063,571 5211470
Current liabilities (1,671,774} (2,330,471}
Mon-current liabilities (1,103,065} {900,662)
Met assets 6,019,969 &, 142,402
Equity attnbutable 1o owners of the Company 2,318,892 2,366,053
hon-controlling interests 3,701,077 ﬂ
Met a5sets 5,019,969 6, 142,402
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended Decamber 37, 2021

19. SUBSIDIARIES {continued)

SMSC (continued)
Year ended Year ended
12431721 123120
s D 000 IS0 Qi

Revenue 691,769 139,158
Expensa (867,323) [a6%, 798}
Other incorme 48,063 78,863
Loss for the year {127,491} (250,777}
Loss attributable to owners of the Company (49, 110) {107.365)
Loss attributable to the mon-controlling interasts (78,381) (143,412}
Loss for the year (127.4%91) {X50,777)
Total comprehensve income attributable to owners of the Company (108,721) (285,623}
Total comprehansive Income attributable 10 the non-controlling interests {173,523) (443497}
Total comprehensive income for the year (282,244) (729120}
Duvidends pald 1o non-contralling interests - -
Met cash inflow from operating activities 938,996 140,252
et cash outflow from investing activities (2,766,414) (2,195,496}
het cash (outflowkinfiow from financing activities 115,703 3,762,750
Met cash {outflowlintlow {1,843,121) 1,707,506

20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE

Thie details of the Company’s material associates, which are 81l unlisted companies except for JCET Group Co, Lid. listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Statutory percentage

Place of of ownership interest

establishment and attributable

Name of entity operation Class of share held to the Group

12/31/21  1H3IN0

JCET Group Ca., Ltd. (“JCET") Jianigsu, PRC Crdinary 12.86% 14.3%

sino IC Leasing Co., Ltd, ("5ino IC Leasing”}  Shanghai, PRC Ordireary B.17% 217%

hirvgbio Semiconductor International

Corpofation {“M5I") Zheglang, PRC Ordinary 15.85% 1585%
Semiconductor Manufacturing Electronics

(shacingh Corporation (“SMEC") Thegiang, PRC Ordirvary 19.57% 15 57 %

in accordance with the investment agreements, the Group has significant influence through the right the Group owned
1o appoint director(s) 1o the board of direciors of the above companies
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the year ended Dacember 31, 2021

20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE (continued)

Al of these associates are accounted for using the equity method in these consalidated financial statements. Summarised
rassmaies,. which include JCET, Sino IC Leasing, NS and SMEC

financial information in respect of the Group's materia

is below:

12/31r21 12021720

UsD 000 S0 000

Cuprent assats 5,070,604 4,642,919
Mon-current assets 13,573,624 10,463,609
Current llabilimes (3,103,832} (3,110,530}
Mon-current liabilities (8,319,727} {5,984,087)
Met assets 7.220,669 6,011,851
Less. non-controlling interests (129, 625) (124.935)
Equity attributable 1o owners of the associates 7,091,044 5.886.916
Share of equity of associates 863,157 158267
Goodwall 308,218 347,083
Less unrealised profit (29,164} (34.434)
Carrying amount of the Group's nterast 1,142,211 1,065,866
Year ended Year ended

12731721 12430720

UsD 000 UsD*000

Total revenua 5,520,218 4,357,980
Profit attnbutable to owners 319,690 33,878
Total comprehensive income attributable to owners 487,869 63,114

Davidends recsived from the associates 1.770 3,061

oOoOooodn

The detaits of the Group's joint venture, which is an unlisted entity invested indirectly theaiah China 1C Capital {Mngba)
Co, Lrd, at the end of the reporting period are as follows

Statutory percentage

Place of of ownership interest
establishment and attributable
Mame of entity oparation Class of share held to the Group
12131021 12031720

shanghal Xinxin Investment Centre {Limited Limited partner
Parinership} ﬁhanﬂhal, PRC inter st 4%.00% 49 00%

The followinig table illustrates the aggregate financial information of the Group's associates and joint venture:

Investments in associates Investment in joinmt venture

2021 2020 2021 2020

USD 000 USE 000 UsD 000 LS 000

Share of profit for the year 212,051 86,172 (12,028} 43,693

Share of 1otal comprehensive income for the year 223,644 106,904 (12,304} 46,888
Agaregate carrying amount of the Group's

irvestments 716,941 375,110 17,639 31,521

The associates and the |gint venture inchuded several mwestment funds, which measured their equity mvestments in
portfolio investments at fair value. As of December 21, 2021, the carrying amount of those investment funds was
LISSE7 1.8 million {December 31, 2020 LIS3353 0 million). The valuation of such portiolio investments is primarily based
an 4 combination of adoption of applicable valuation methodofogy and the application of appropriate assumplions in
the waluation The unlisted equity investments in portfolio investments have been valued using recent transaction price
or market approach, the listed emliidl.- invastments in portfolio investments have been valued using quoted market prices
adjusted for marketability and liquidity

smic 2021 anncsl Report

200/259



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o o o o {02 )

Ogoooood
165
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For ®ie year endad Decamber 37, 2021
21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Thie Group holds the following financial instruments
1231121 12431520
Financial assets Us D000 IS0 000
MNen-current portion
Financial assets at fafr value through profit or loss
Listed equity securities 18,468 36,482
Uinlisted equity securitias 204,556 119,885
Financial assets at amortised cost
Bank deposits with moge than 1 year 3,725.962 1,638,721
Other financial assets at amortised cost
Restricted cash 117,787 114811
Cher- assarst 991 1|
Darivative financial instrumants
Cross currency swap contracts — cash flow hadges 46,547 29,046
Interest rate swap contracts — cash tlow hedges 4,526 -
Current portion
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Structural deposits - 111,084
Monetary funds 78,184 383
Financial assets at amortised cost
Bank deposits with more than 2 months 3,838,129 2,806,517
Gther financial assets at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents 3,581,746 9,826,537
Restricted cash 214,191 575,258
Trade and other receivables™ (Mote 25} 805 487 608,906
Derivative financial instruments
Cross CUrrency swap contracts — cash flow hedges 31,31 4,891
17,668,945 15,873,522

it Other assets included the secur ity depocits for deeivative financial instruments, which werg 1ecognised 2z financial as1ets at smortsed
cost

= Trade and other receivables ot amortised cost ecluded the value-added tax 1o be deducted and tax recowerables, wihith wire not
recogrised as fimancial assets at amortised cost
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the year ended Dacember 31, 2021

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)

The Group's exposure 1o various risks associated with the financial instrurments |5 discussed in Rote 33

12/31721 12431720
Financial liabilities Us B o00 LED'000
Non-current
Financial Nabilities at amortised cost
Borrowings (Mote 31} 4937674 4,030,776
Legse liabilines (Mote 17} 109,461 150,321
Bonds payable (Mote 33) 597,663 506,966
Convertible bonds (Note 32} - 11,131
Medium-term notes (Mote 34} - 220,217
Darivative financial instruments
Criovss currency swap cantracts — cash flow hedges 2,065 13,000
Interest rate swap contracts — cash flow hedges 1,138 7,700
Current
Financial Nabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities included i tradae and other payables and accnaal
liabilities 1,856 814 1,686,671
Borrowings (Mote 31} 789,216 1,260,057
Lease llabilities (Maote 17} 100,763 04,440
Convertible bonds (Mote 22) 1.978 -
Madium-1erm notes (Maote 34) 235,515 -
Cither payables - 20,039
Derivative finandal instrurments
Cross currency swap cantracts — cash fiow hedges B. 848 133,481
Foretgn currency forward contracts - 333
B.641,232 8,234,641

22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group’s derivative financial instruments included forward foreign exchange contracts, cross curmency swap contracts
and interast rate swap contracts, the carmying amouwnts of those derivative financial instruments were presented in Mote 21

FORWARD FOREIGN EXCHANGE CONTRACTS

It 1= the palicy of the Group toenter into forward foreign exchange contracts 1o cover speatic foregn currency payments
and receipts within the exposure generated. The Group also enters into forward foreign exchange contracts to manage
the foreign currency exposure from purchasesisales and financing activities

The forward foreign exchange contracts are nof designated for hedge purposes and are measured: at fair value through
profit of [6s5. Changes in the fair value of non-hédging nterest rate swaps amounting 1o U55-0 3 million (2020 US30.3
million) were charged 1o profit or [oss during the year

CROSS CURRENCY SWAP CONTRACTS - CASH FLOW HEDGE

Cross CLITency SWap contracts are designated as hed?:ng instruments in cash flow hedges of cutstanding bank deposits
and debts denominated in RMB. It i5 the policy of the Group to enter Into cross currency swap contracts 1o mitigate
the impact of volatlity of future cash flows caused by the changes in exchange rates assocated with outstanding bank
depasits and debis denominated in RME

The fi:\l!ml.rin.? table details the notional amounts &nd remaining terms of the cross curréncy swap contracts outstanding
o

at the end of the reporting pencd:
Average exchange rate MNotional value

2021 2020 12431421 12431720 12/31/21 12431720
RME QOO0 RME 000 usDood LS00 00

Buy RME
Within 1 year 6. 7632 6 5468 3,360,000 2,150,000 527,688 328,448
1-5 years 6.5170 66638 12418329 T.673429 1,950,298 1,150,362

Sell RME
Within | year 6.3724 & 7005 17,148,400 30,927,025 2,693,158 4 616,663
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2021
22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
The impacts of the cross currency swap contracts an the statement of financial position are as follows:
Change In falr valus
used for measuring
Botional Caery amount Lin fem in e stalement  hedge ineflectivancs
amount LS Liabiiies of financial poskion for the year
PR 00 Usom WS 50000 WEEr00
Dt Timantial mcnumint
By AME 1511835 Trand (2810} bl s} (86232
Dt Tinancial icinument
Sl kB 17,148.400 - (4108} = 10, 06¢
The effects of the cross currency swap contracts on the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are as follows.
Link itam in
{he statemet of Ampuat rlasified
Tetal hidgiag profit or fass from tker
larmageied i Hedge neflectiesesn and othar temptahin g Lisg fowm i
At comprabrnsre recogniswd (o comprikinsivg Imcoms to the gabermant of prodf or loes
Imcoms profit o lass g prafe o las ] othr comprahinsive income
L0 VSR SH00)
Fuy AME {BE B - e #5580 Foreige eschange gain, Fisame (osts
Sl B 10,05 - A {108,472} Foreige anchange gan, Firands (onts

The Group does not enter into any Cross currendy swap. contract for speculative purposes

INTEREST RATE SWAP CONTRACTS — CASH FLOW HEDGE

Interest rate swap contracts are designated as hedging instruments in cash flow hedges of debts with varrable interest
rates. Under interest rate swap contracts, the Company agrees to afhanfe the difference between fived and floating
rate Interest amounts calculated onoagresd notional pincipal amounts. Such conracts enable the Group 1o mitigate

the risk of changing interest rates on the fair valoe of issued fixed rate debt and the cash flow exposures on the issuiad
variable rate debt.

Thie following table details the rotional amounts and remaining terms of interest rate swap contracts outstanding at
the end of the reporting period

Ararage interut rite Neticadl vilue
e FuLhi] Py I | 12310
S0 oog U500
Receive Hoating pay hied cates
145 years 103 i 5 000 413087

The impacts of the interest rate swap contracts on the statement of financial positon are as follows

Change in fair valug
used for miasuring
Motional Carry amount Line Rem in e statement  hedge neffectivanss
amount hiets Lishilties of financial position for tha year
US0ro00 0 HEEA00 DEDAD HEEA00
Deatneative Tinancial srstrument
Bicutee Bloating pay Frod mates e300 455 R E] flasbilnis) 0.9
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the year ended Dacember 31, 2021

22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The effects of the interest rate swap confracis on the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are

a5 follows:
Line item in
Total hedging the statement Amount Lin item in
loss of reclassiled the statament
recognised Husdoge profit or foss from othar of profit or
in othar Iinaffectiveness and othor comprabensive lrss and other
comprehensive recognised in comgrehensive incoms to comprehensive
incoms profit or loss Incoms profit or loss Tneccme
sDen L F il U000 USDroo0 USD00
Receive floating pay Toed mtes 1199 - N (9,673 Finance costs

The interest rate swaps are settled on a quarterly basis. The floating rate on the interest rate swaps is linking 1o 3 month
LIBOR The Company will settle the difference betwesn the fixed and floating interest rates on a net basis.

23. RESTRICTED CASH

12/31r21 12431520

USD 000 LD 000

Mof-current portiont 117,787 114,811
Cumrent portionts 214,191 575,258
331,978 6940 069

A of Decomber 21, 2021, the nen-cusrent restrictod cash was a bank ime depodit pledoed against for bodrowings

A of Decembar 31, 2021, the current restricted cash consisted of US136. 7 milion December 31, 2020 LSE159 1 miltion) of bank
deponts pledged against letters of credit and borrewings, US321 1 million (December 31, 2020; L5323 million) of bank deposits
pledged against letters of guarantes, USET 9 million (December 21, 2020 nil) of bank deposits pledged ai;lmsl: foreign exchan

trading, and US3142.5 million (December 31, 2020: USE372 9 million) of government funding recoived Tor the pagment of the
tesearch and development equipment and apentes 1o be incurred

24, INVENTORIES

12/321721 12431720

USD 000 LD 000

Raw materials 455,071 307,621
Work: in progress 664,362 406,807
Finished goods 74,378 94,348
1,193,811 738,776
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NOTES TOTHE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended Decamber 37, 2021
25, TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
12/31721 124316430
s D 000 S0 000
Trade recesvablas 691,314 445 950
Allowance on doubiful trade receivablas (WNote 39) (751) (1,777}
Euiﬂ._ﬁ_t'ﬁ 444,213
Cither receivables 49,667 31.303
Allowance on doubtful other recedvables (Mote 39} {1,070) {1,586}
48,597 29117
hotes receivables 4,367 4,910
Walue-added tax 1o be deducted 249,137 361,642
Tax recowerables 59,849 5379
Investment receivables 3,761 -
Interest racevables 17.998 68, 345
Refundable deposits and surety 31,201 61,721
1,215473 975,927
The fellowing is an aged analysis of trade receivables presented based on the irvoice date at the and of the reporting
pericd
12/31/21 1243120
_ﬂn of trade receivables USD'000 LISDY 000
Within 1 year B71.658 444, 657
1-2 years 19,207 56
2-3 years 58 129
Over 3 years 391 E3B
691,314 445,950

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold o services renderad in the ordinary course of business
They are generally dus for settlement within 30-90 days and therefore are all classified a5 current. Trade receivables
are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unléss they contain significant financing
compaonents, when they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the objective 1o collect
the contraciual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently st amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Details sbout the Group's impairment policies and the calculation of the foss allowance are provided in Note 39

The fellowing 15 an aged analysis of other receivables at the end of the reporting pericd

1231121 12131720

Age of other receivables UsD 000 LIS 000
Within 1 year 22,998 16,903
1-2 ywars 12,194 2,163
2-3 years 7,281 857
Cver 3 years 7,194 11,380
49,667 31.303

D 1o thie short-term nature of the current recaivables, the carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are considerad

to be the same as their fair value

205/259

sMic 2021 Anewusl Raport



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o o o o {02 )
oOoOooodn

170

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the year ended Dacember 31, 2021

26. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD-FOR-SALE

12431721 12031720
UsD 000 S0 G00
Aszets related to employea’s living quarters 21,592 23,796

Mon-current assets are classified a5 held-for-sale if their carrying amount will be recovered pnﬂclralty through a sale
tranzaction rather than through continuing use: This condition |5 regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable
and the non-cusrent asset 15 vailable for immediate sale inils present condition. Management must be committed 1o

the sale, which should be expected to qualify for nition a5 a completed sale within one year from the date of
clgﬁuﬁ?alim As of December 31, 2021, the expected disposal expense 15 LIS36. T million (December 31, 2020 LSS5 4
millicn;

27. SHARES AND ISSUED CAPITAL
ISSUED AND FULLY PAID ORDINARY SHARES

Number of shares Share capital Share premium
LIS 030 S0 080
Balance at December 31, 2019 S056,868,912 20,227 5011315
Issue of ordinary shares under the Company's
employes stock incentive plans (Mote 33) 16,484,979 &6 21,796
Conversion options of convertible bonds exercised 529,883,056 Z 119 JOB. 743
Conversion options of perpetual subordinated
convertible secunties exercised 161,807, 580 648 263,812
Izsue of ordinary shares 1,938.463,000 7.754 7,506,131
Balance at December 31, 2020 7.703.507,527 30514 13,512,397
Issue of ordinary shares under the Company's
employes stock incentive plans (Mot 38) 9,192,989 35 14,766
Conversion options of convertible bonds exercised 1977636 32 10,795
Comversion options of perpetual subordinated
convertible securities ewencised 183,175,403 733 298,655
Balance at December 31, 2021 7.003,856,555 31,615 12,836,614

STOCK INCENTIVE PLANS

The Company has adopted the stock incentive plans under which options 1o subsoribe for the Company's shares have
been granted to certain employees, officers and other service providers {Note 38).

28. RESERVES
EQUITY-SETTLED EMPLOYEE BENEFIT RESERVE

The equity-settled employea benefit reserve related to share options and RSUs granted by the Compary to the Group's
EHF[WE'ES and service providers under stock incentive plans. ftems induded in equity-settled employee benefit reserve
will not be recassifiad subsequently to profit or loss.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRAMSLATION RESERVE

Exchange differences relating 1o the translation of the results and ret assets of the Group's forelgn operations from their
functional currencies 1o the Group’s presentation currency (i.e, United States dollars) are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign cwrrency transtation reserve. Bxchange differences pravious]
accumulated in the foreign currency tramslation reserve (in respect of tramslating the net assets of foreign operation
are reclassified 1o profit or loss.on the disposal or deconsolidation of the foreign operation

CONVERTIBLE BOND EQUITY RESERVE

The conversion option from theissuance of convertible bonds dassified as equity (s detarmined by deducting the amount
of the hability corn?onent from the fair valug of the compound instrument e convertible bond) a5 a whole. This is
recognised and included in equity, nat of income tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured In addition, the
conversion option cassified as equity will remain in equity until the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recoqnized in aquity will be transferred to ordinary shares and share premium. Where the conversion option
rematns unexercised at the maturty date of the convertible bond, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to
retained earmangs. Mo gain of [655 15 recagnised in profit of 1055 Upon conversion of expiration of the conversion option
Conwersion option that will be setiled by the exchange of 3 fixed amount of cash of another financial asset for a fixed
nurnber of the Group's equity INstruments 15 an equity instrument
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year endad December 37, 2021

28. RESERVES {continued)
CASH FLOW HEDGES

To mitigata the mpact of volatility of future cash flows caused by the changesin @echange rates and interast rate associ ated
with outstanding debts, the Group entered into several cross currency swap conlracts and interest rate swap conlracts,
which were designated as hedging Instrements Any gains of losses arising from changes in fair value of thesa Redgin
instruments are faken directly o m:;}fn or loss, except fior the effective portion of Cash flow hedges, which is recognise
Iry other comprehensive incamel| and later reclassified 1o profit or loss when the hedged itém affacts prafit or loss.

Thi hiedging reserve 15 used 1o recard gains of losses on derivatives designated and qualified as cash flow hadges that
are recognised in other comprehensive income. Amounts will be reclassified to profit or loss when the assocated hedged
transaction affects profit or loss.

Year ended Year ended
1243121 1203020
5D 000 LISDE 000

Other comprehensive income on cash flow hedges recognised
Fair value gairg{loss) 179,123 {46,862}
ffset foreign exchange (gainyoss {158,462 24,968
{Deductediadded finance cost (9.435) 60E
Reclassed mto profit or loss due to disposal of 3 subsidiany 154 -
11,380 {21,286}
Balance at January 1 {11,363} 9,923
Balance at December 31 17 {11,363}

29, RETAINED EARNINGS

A5 stipulated by the relevant laws and requlations apphicable to China’s foreign investment enterprise, the Company’s
FRC subsidiaries are required or allowed 1o make appropriations 1o non-distributable reserves The general reserve fund
requires annual appropriation of 10% of after tax profit {as determined under av:cnl.rrlm% principles generally accepted
in thie PRC at each year-end), after offsetting accumulated losses from priof years, until the accumalative amount of
such reserve fund reachas 50% of the registéred capital of the relevant subsidianes. Thie general reserve fund can only
he used 10 increase the registered capital and eliminate future losses of the refevant subsidiaries under PRC regulations
The staff welfare and bonus reserve i3 determined l'i{ll_hi_: board of directors of the respective PRC subsidiaries and used
for the collective welfare of the employee of the subsidiaries. The enterprise expansion reserve is for the expansion of
the subsidiaries’ operations and can be converted to capital subject to approval by the relevant authonties, These reserves
represent appropriations of the retained earnings determined in accordance with Chinese law

I 2021, the Company did not declare or pay any cash dividends on the ordinary shares (2020 nil),
Im 2021, the Company paid no distnbution to perpetual subordinated convertible securities holders (2020: USEE .0 million).

30. PERPETUAL SUBORDINATED CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES

In 2017 and 018, the Company completed the issue of the perpetual subordinated convertible securities (“FSCE7)
pursuant to the subscription dgreéement entered with China IC Fund, Xirein HE, Datang Holding and Datang HE

The PSCS areincluded in equity in the Group’s consolidated financial statements as the Group does not have a conftractual
obligation 1o deliver cash or other financial assets arising from the issue of the PECS The PSCS will remain as aquity
reserve untl the PSCS are conwerted, in which case, the balance recognised in equty will be transferred to ardinary
shares and share premium

For the year ended December 31, 2021, 183178403 PSCS (2020: 161 807,580) have been converted into ordinary
shares of the Company, and no distribution (2020 U3$8.0 million) was paid by the Company

As of December 31, 2021, the PSCS were fully converted into ordinary shares, and the net book value of PSCS was nil
(December 31, 2020: USE299 4 millica}
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the year ended Dacember 31, 2021

31. BORROWINGS

_ 12131721 12031720
At amortised cost UsD 000 50000
Short-tarm bank borrowings
— secured - 150,000
= unsecured nor unguarantesd 170,000 302,627
Long-term bank bomrowings
= guarantesd 1,267,819 1,546,856
— secyred 278,082 159,502
- Unsecurad nor unguaranieed 3,984 462 2,661,145
Crther borrowangs
= s@cured 26,624 470,703
5.726,987 5:290,833
Current
short-term bank borrowings 170,000 452,627
Current maturities of lomg-term bank borrowangs and other borrowings 619,316 BO7. 430
789,316 1,260,057
Non-current
Mon-current maturities of long-term bank borrowings and other
borrowngs 4,937,671 4,030,776
5,726,987 5,290,833
Borrowing by repayment schedule
Within 1 year 789,316 1,260,057
1-2 years 657,850 563,237
2-5 years 3,909,968 2,104,738
Ovar 5 years 369,853 362,801
5,726,987 £.200,833

és of December 31, 2021, the Group's bank bomowings amounting 1o LSE1470.4 million were quarantesd by the
T pany

The Group's bank borrowings and other borrowings amounting to USS304 Tmillion were secured by the mertgage of
assets and the pledge of bank deposits of the Group as follows:

12/31721 1263120
USD"000 S0 000

Secured by
— Property. plant and equipment and land-use nghts 202,624 530,703
- Restricted cash 102,082 249,502
304,706 780,205

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrawings are denominated in the following currencies:

12/21/24 12631720

USD 000 LsD000

EME 4,813,787 3,830,605
LISD 912,200 1,460,228
5,726,987 2,490,833
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED HINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year endad December 37, 2021
31. BORROWINGS (continued)
Thie weighted average effective interest rates of borrowings are set out as follows:
12431121 12/3120
UsD'o0o USDr 000
AME 2.27% 242%
s 1.66% 162%

Thi camrying amounts of shot-term and current borrowings approximate their falr values, as the impact of discounting
5 ot significant

32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Tha Company issusd the corwertible bands (the “Convertible Bonds™ ) at 3 par value of US$250.0 thousand aach with an
g rE%ate principal amount of US3650 0 million, including US$450.0 million rssued on July 7, 2016 {the "2016 Issue”)
ar $200.0 million issued on Decembier 9, 2019 (the “2019 Issue”)

Thie Convertibla Bonds is a compound instrument induded a lability component and an equity component. There are
embedded derivatives in respect of the early redemption features of the Convertible Bonds. For the 2016 lssus, such
embedded dervatives are deemed to be dearly and dosely related to the host contract and therefore do not require to
be separately accounted for. For the 2019 Issue, such embedded derivatives are deemed to be not dearly and closely
relatied to the host contract and therefore need 1o be separately accounted for

As of the date of issue, the far value of the liability component of the Convertible Bonds was disclosed as below

2019 Issue 2016 Issue

LIsD 000 LIS Q00

Principal amount 200,000 450,000
Fremium of 1ssus 22,000 =
Transaction cost {2,525) 19, 194}
Liability component {195, 328) (387871}
Equity component 34,147 52,935

Subsaquent to the initial recognition, the Labiity component of the Convertible Bonds was carmied at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate of the liability component of the Convertible Bonds was

2.20% per annum The movements of the: liability component and the equity component of the Convertible Bonds for
the year ended Decembear 31, 2021 are sa1 out belowr

Liability Equity

componeant componant Total

LSDaog L0000 LIS 000

Balance at December 31, 2019 630,428 86,200 716,623
Interast charged 1.229 - 71,329
Conversion oplions exercised (E26.626) (84,226} (710,862}
Balance at Decamber 31, 2020 11,131 1,964 13,005
Interest charged (MNote B} 52 - 5
Conversion optons exercised {9,205} {1,623} {10,828}
Balance at December 31, 2021 1,878 341 2,219

The equity component will remain in the convertible bond eguity reserve until the embedded comversion option s
gxercised or the Convertible Bonds mature

As of December 31, 2021, 1,679,553 ondinary shares would be issued upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds.

KEY TERMS OF THE CONVERTIBELE BONDS

The Convertible Bonds will mature on July 7, 2022 1f payment of principal o premium is improperly withheld or refused,
such unpaid amount shall bear interest at the rate of 2 00% per annum. All the Convertible Bonds which are redeemed,
converted ar purchased by the Company will forthwith be cancelled

Tha C-::répa will redeem the cutstanding Convertible Bonds at prindpal amount cnuly 7, 2022 o in certain circumstances
spacified in the agresments

The Company may at any time and from time 1o time purchase the Convertible Bonds at any price in the open market
or otherwise
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the year ended Dacember 31, 2021

32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS {continued)
KEY TERMS OF THE CONVERTIBLE BONDS (confinued)]
Bondholders may corwert their bonds into ordinary shares at any tima on or after August 17, 20016, Conversion shares
will biissued upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds based on the conversion price of HKES 25 with a fixed
exchange rate of 77677 HERUGS

Lipon the accurrence of 3 change of contral of the Company, the bandholders will have the right, at such holder’s optian,
to require the Company to redeem all of some only of such holder's bonds on the change of control put date at their
principal amount of the Convertible Bonds. The bondhol ders will ‘also have the right 1o régquire the Company 10 redeem
all or some only of the Convertible Bonds of such holders on July 7, 2020 &t thewr principal amount

33. BONDS PAYABLE

Oni Febrisary 27, 2020, the Company issued S-yaar unsecured corporate bonds for a total amount of USSE00.0 million on
the Singapore Exchange The corporate bonds carry a coupon interest rate of 2.693% wath bond Interest payable semi-
annually on February 27 and August 27,43 of the issue date, the net book value of the labilites amounted 1o USE596 4
million after deducting commissions and other estimated expenses payabla in connection with the offering of the bonds.

LSD000
Principal amount GO0, 000
Ciscount of bonds payable {3,232)
Transaction cost {368)

586,400

The movement of the corporate bonds 15 581 out below

S0 000
At the date of issue 596,400
Imtarest charged 14,255
Interest payable recogrised (13.,689)
Balance at December 31, 2020 506,965
Interest chiarged (Mote 8} 16,854
Intarest payable recognised {16,157}
Balance at December 21, 2021 507,663

34. MEDIUM-TERM AND SHORT-TERM NOTES

On February 28, 2019, the Company issued medium-term notes in 2 principal amount of RME 1,500 0 million (approxim ately
LISE224 .0 million) with a3 maturity date of March 4, 2022 and with an interest rate of 3 57%.

The movements of the medwm-tenm and short-term notes i5 set out below

M edium-term Short-term

Notes MNotes

IS0 000 L0000

Balance at December 31,2019 214,153 2BR,512
Issue - 429,353
Repayrment - {707,824)
Interest charged 7412 ;193
Interest payable recognised {7.045) {6.193)
Fareign exchange lossfgain) 14,707 {B.041)
Balance at December 31, 2020 229217 -
Interest charged {Mote 3} B661 =
Interest payable recognised 18,210) -
Foreign excchange (053 5,947 -
Balance at December 31, 2021 235,515 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year endad December 37, 2021

35. DEFERRED GOVERNMENT FUNDING

In 2021, the Group recelved government funding under speafic research and development ("RED") projects Iandudlrg
those with ﬁrimm condition that the Group should purchass, construct o otherwise acquire non-current assets)
U563 9 million (2020 U53414. 1 million} and recognised US$302 9 million {2020; Ll5$28ﬁ.?' million} a5 other operatin
income for several specific R&D projects. The government funding is recorded as a liability upon receipt and recognise
a5 ather operating income over the wseful fife of RED equipment or until the milestones specified in the terms of the
funding have been reached

36. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

123121 1243120

s D oo0 IS0 000

Payables for property, plant and equipment 1,175499 905,962
Trade payables 528,910 567,311
[Dreposits received 51,796 99,922
Others 74,210 75,355
1,830,415 1,648,556

Trade and other payables are non-interest-beaning and are noemally settled on 30 to 60-day terms

Thia following i5 an aged analysis of trade payables and payables for property, plant and equipment presénted based on
the invoica date at the end o¥ the reporting penod

12/31/21 12731720

_ﬂn of payables UsD000 LS 000
Within 30 days 1,640,658 1,034,080
31-60 days 33,501 33,075
Ouer 60 days 30,250 406,133
1,704 409 1473273

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are considered 10 be the same as thair fair values, due totheir short-
term nature,

37. ACCRUED LIABILITIES

The amounts of acored lisbilities a5 of December 31, 2021 and 2020 were US$234.1 million and US$253.7 million,
within which the amounts of accrued bonws were U55139:7 milbon and U55175 1 million respactively

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
STOCK INCENTIVE PLANS

Thie bedow stock incentive plans allow the Company 1o offer the below incentive awards to employess, consultants of
external service advisors of the Group

The expense arising from equity-settled share-based payments for the year ended December 31, 2021 was US372 4
million (2020 U510, 5million)
Stock option plan

Thi options are granted at the fair market value of the Company’s ordinary shares and expire 10 years from the date
of grant and vest over a requisite service period of 4 years.

The fair walue of each cption granted is estmated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing madel,
taking Into account the terms and conditions upon which the share options wers granted

Equity incentive plan

Thie Company adopted the plan whereby the Company provided additional incentives 1o the Group's employees, directors
and external consultants through the issuance of restricted shares, R5Us and stock appreciation rights to the participants
at the discretion of the Board of Directors, The units vest over 3 requisite service pericd of 4 years and expire 10 years
from the date of grant. As of December 31, 2021, the Company only granted R5LIS under the plan.

Thie fair wvalue of each unit 15 based on ordinary stock prce on grant date
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the year ended Dacember 31, 2021

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued|)
STOCK INCENTIVE PLANS (continuzd)

S5E STAR Market restricted share incentive scheme

Pursuant to the board resolution dated July 19, 2021, the Company granted 67,535,200 restricted shares to 3,944
awardess, including directors, senior management, core technicians, middie and senior business management and key
technical and busiress staff at a grant price of RMB20 per share: The purpose of the scheme I5 1o further stabilise iis
core team and align the interests of emplovees and the sharsholders.

Validity periods are the pertod starting from grant date to the date of attribution of 12 months, 24 months, 36 months and
43 months, 55E STAR Markeat Restricted Share Incentive Scheme is subject 1o the cancellation in the event of resignation
of the grantee; and the vesting conditions of such employes based on his or her annual performance appraissl and
financial performance of the Grodp conducted once an accounting year, taking the average operating income and the
average EBITDA of 2018 to 2020 as the performance base. The westing period is four years, duning which 30%, 5%,
259, and 20% of 55E STAR Market Restricted Share Incentive Scheme granted will west on each of the four anniversaries
of the grant date.

Thie far value of restricted shares granted is estimated on the date of grant using thie Black-5choles option pricing model,
taking into account the terms -and conditions upon which restricted: shares were granted

DESCRPTIONS DURING THE YEAR

2001 2020
The number of
Granted during the year B2,299,957 18,713,299
Forfeited and expired during the year 4,469,351 3,T2T.T68
Exercized during the year 9,192,989 16424 975

Share options under stock option plan

The range of exerasea prices for the outstanding

US30.37 to US53.14

LIS$0.37 1o UsS2.97

The weighted averags remaining contractual life for the outstanding 6,75 years & 68 years
R3Us under equity incentive plan

The exerdse prices for the outstanding LS50, 004 L530.004
The welghted average reraining contractual life for the outstanding B.A7 years 802 years
Restricted shares under 55E STAR Market restricted shave incentive

schame

The exerase prices for the outstanding RMBZD =
The: remadning contractual life for the cutstanding 4,55 years -

MOVEMENTS DURING THE YEAR
Share options

The following table illustrates the number. and welghted average exercise prices (“WAEP®) of, and movements in, share
aptions during the year

2021 2021 2020 2020

Num ber WAEP Mumber WAEP

Outstanding at January 1 36,738,628 Us89.565 38,355,224 LI585 1,04
Granted during the yesr 9,805 101 Us53.02 13, 147,502 USE2 51
Forfeited and expired during the year (2.826.363) U552.05 {2,852 314} Li5$ 1,40
Exercised duning the year (5,137,802} uss1.21 {12.911,774) LS50 97
n:}.ll.t'!andmg at December 21 38,579, 564 USS1. 94 36,732 628 US55 1.56
Exercisable at December 31 12,203,390 U5§1.22 11,485,071 USS0.95

The wughted auerage closing price of the Company’s shares immadiately bedore the dates while the share options were
exercised was USE3.12 (2020 USE2 56}

Curing the year ended December 31, 2021, share options were aranted on May 31, September 15 and November 19, 2021
with the weighted average fair value of US1.49 respectively (May 25, September 9 and November 23, 20200 US$1.03)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year endad December 37, 2021

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)
MOVEMENTS DURING THE YEAR (continued)

Share options (continued)
The !‘nﬂnmrr%table list the nputs to the Black-Schodes Option Pricing models used for the option granted during the

years ended Decembear 31, 2021 and 2020 respectively:
2021 2020
Cawidend yield (%) = =
Bepected volatility 56.43% 45 39%
Risk-free interest rate 1.03% 0,36 %
Expected life of share options 5 years 5 years

The risk-free rate for ?EI‘I'D':[S within the contractisl life of the option is based on the yield of the United States Treasurny

Bond. The expacted life of oplions granted represents the period of time that uptlm;ceramed are mipectad 1o be

outstanding. Expected volatilities are based on the average volatility of the Comp;:?l's- st rices with the time period

d;u::ﬂmen:urate with thir expactad term of the options. The dividend yield is ba on the Company's intended future
" blan

The valuation of the options are based on the best estimates from Company by taking into account-a number of
assumptions and (s subjed to limitation of the valuaton model Changes in vanables and assumplions may affect the
fair value of these cptions.

RSUs

The follcwing table illustrates the number and WAEP of, and movements in, R3Us duning the year:
2021 2021 2020 2020
Number WAEP Mumber WAEP
Ciptstanding at January | 10,924,467 Us50.004 9,807,319 LI550.004
Granted during the year 4,959,656 USS0.004 5565797 U550 004
Forfeited during the year (956, 668) 550,004 {875, 444) 550,004
Exercised during the year (4,055,187} US50.004 (3.573,205) USS0.004
Cwtstanding 3t December 31 10,862,268 U550.004 10,924 467 USE0 004

Tha weighted average closin Er:ce of the Company’s shares immediately before the dates on which the R5Us were
vested was US$3.13 (20200 U532 10}

During the year ended December 31, 2021, RSUs were granted on May 31, September 15 and November 19, 2021
with the weighted average fair value of US$3.02 respectively (May 25, September 9 and November 23, 2020: U552 45)

The waluation of the RSUS is based on ordinary stock price on grant date

Restricted shares
The following table ilustrates the number and WAER of, and movementsin, the exercisable option of restricted shares

during the year:
2021 2021
Number WAEP
Granted during the year 67,535,200 RMESZ0
Forfeitad during the year {6786,320) RMBSZ0
Outstanding at Decembeér 31 66,858 BEO RAAES 20

Thee Tollowing table Hst the inputs 1o the models used for the plans for the years ended December 31, 2021

2021

Cividenid yield (%) -
Expected volatility 53.43%
Risk-frae intefast rate 2.69%
1 year, 2 years, 3 yaars

Expected life of restricted shares and 4 years

During the year ended December 21, 2021, the weighted-average fair value of the exercisable option of restricted shares
granted on July 19, 2021 was of LI5§5 25

Thia risk-free rate for periods within the contractual life of the rastricted shares is based on the yield of the PRC Treasury
Bond. The udpecte:d life of restricted shares granted represents the period from the date of grant of restricted shares 1o
the vesting date of each period. Expected volatilities are based on the average valatility of the Company's stock prices
with the time period commensurate with the expected term of the restricted shares. The dividend yield 15 based on the
Company's intended future dividend plan

The valuation of the restricted shares isbased on the best estimates from Compang by taking into account a number of
assumptions and is subject to limitation of the valuation model. Changes in vanables and assumptions may affect the
fair value of these resiricied shares
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the year ended Docember 31, 2027

39. RISK MANAGEMENT
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group managas (15 capital to ensure that entities i the Group will ba able to continue 35 going concerns while
maximising the raturn 1o stakeholders through the optimisation of the capital structure

The Group manages 1its capital through ssuingrepurchasing shares and raising/repayment of debis and reviews the capital
structure on 3 sami-annual basis, As part of this review, the Group considers the tost of capital and tha risks assocates
with each class of capital. The Group will balance its overall capital structure through' the payment of dividends, new
share issues and share buy-backs as well a5 the issue of rew debt o the redemption of existing debt

This section st out an analysis of net debt a5 below

12731721 12431720
MNet Debt Us D000 LSS0 000
Borrowings 5,716,987 5,290,833
Lease llabilities 210,224 245,270
Bonds payable 597663 596,966
Convertible bonds 1.978 11131
Medium-term notes 235,515 229217
Subtotal 6,772,367 6,373,417
Less
Cash and cash equivalents 8,581,746 9,826,537
Restricted cash - current 214,191 575,258
Einancial assets at fair value throwgh profit or loss = current 78,184 111,477
Financial assets at amortised oost 7,564,091 4,445,738
(9,665, 845) {8,585,093)
The geating ratio at end of the reporting period was-as follows.
12/31/21 12431720
USD 000 LED 000
Mat debt {9,6865,845) {8.585.093)
Equity 25,438,143 21,681,738
Mat debt 10 equity ratio -38.0% -39 6%

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's principal financial instruments, other than desivatives, comprise borrowings, ease labilities, convertible
bonds, medium-term notes, bonds wa‘hlﬁ. restricted cash, cash and cash egquivalents, and bank deposits with more
than 3 months, The main purpose of these financial instruments i3 to raise finance for the Group's gperations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly
fram its oparations

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including principally cross currency swaps, interest rate swaps and
forward currency exchanges. The purpose is to manage the interest rate and currency risks arising from the Group's
operations and its sources of finance

The main fsks arising from the Group's financial instruments are interest rate nisk, foreign currency. nisk, credit risk

and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are

surnm arised below

MARKET RISK

The Group's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in forslgn currency exchange rates and interest

rates. Thie Group enters into 3 vanety of derivative financial instruments 10 manage its exposure to Taraign currency sk

and interest rate sk, indluding

. forward foreign exchange contracts and cross currency swap contracts to mitigate the impact of volatility of future
cash flows caused by the fluctuation in exchange rates assodi ated with outstanding long-term debts and financial
asset at amortised cost denominated in a currency other than the USD: and

* interest rate swaps 1o mitigate the nsk of fsing interast rates

Market risk exposuras are measured using the sensitivity analysis and the analysis in the following sections refate 1o the
position as of December 31, 2021 and 2020

There has been no change to the Group's exposure 1o market risks or the manner in which these nsks are managed
and measured
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year endad December 37, 2021

39. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK {continued)

The Group undertakes frapsactions denominated in foreign currencies, consequently, exposures 1o exchanga rate
fhuctuations arise. Exchange rate exposures aré managed within approved policy parameters utilising foeward Toreign
exxchiange contracts.

The carrying amounts of the Gradap’s foreign currency denominated menetary assets and monetary liabifities, considesing
the effects of derivative financial instruments and unsettied foreign exchange coniracts, at the end of the reporting
pencd are as follows:

Liabilities Assets
1231421 12731420 12/31/21 1243120
USD 000 LSDr000 Us07000 UAD 000
EUR 7.789 56,904 22,037 £4.412
Py 77,088 25,586 61,862 24,837
EME 3,262,085 3,466,754 3,795,123 2,880,393
Cithers 103,013 110,865 10,380 17,885

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
Thie Group is mainly exposed 1o the curmency of RME

The fellowing table details the Group’s sensitivity ta 3 5% increase in the foreign currencies against USDS% reprasents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates, The sensitivity analysis includes
only cutstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 5%
change in forelgn currency rates. For a 5% decrease of the foregn currency against LSD; there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the prafit or 1055 after tax and equity bislow pradicted.

RME
2021 2020
USD 000 LISDr 000
(LossWprofit after tax {27.533) 27,689
Equity (27,533) 27,689

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group i5 exposed tointerest rate risk relates pnimarly 1o the Group's long-term borrowing obligations, which the
Group generally assumes to fund capital expenditures and working capital requirements. The risk 15 managed by the
Group by maintaining an appropriate mix betwesn fived and floating rate bosrowings, and by the wse of interest rate
SWap Contracts

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the year ended Docember 31, 2027

39. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
INTEREST RATE RISK (continued)

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interast rates relates primarily to the Group's long-term debt
obligations wath a floating interest rate

Thie Group's policy i5 1o manage its interest cost using a mix of fiwed and variable rate debts. To manage this mix ina
cost-effactive manner, the Group enters into interest rate swaps, in which the Group agrees 1o ecchange, at specfied
intervals, the difference between fired and variable rate interest amounts calculated by referende to an agreed-upon
notional principal amount. At Décember 31, 2021, after taking into account the effect of the interest rate swaps,
appeceimately 36% (2020; 26%) of the Group’s interest-bearing borrowings bore interest at fived rates.

The fallowing table demonstrates the sensitivity 103 10% increase in interést rates, with all other variables held constant,
of the Group®s profit after tax (through the impact on floating rate borrowings) and the Group's equity. For a 10%
decrease of interest rates, there would be #n eqgual and opposite impact on the profit or equity below predicted

2021 2020

UsD'000 LD 000

Profit after tax £.213 6,562
Equity 5,213 6,564

PRICE RISK

The Group’s exposure 10 equity Securities price rsk anses from investments held by the Group-and dassified in the
consdidated statement of financial position a5-at fair value through profit of loss (Note 21).

To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities, the Group diversifies its portfolio, Diversification
of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set by the Group.

On December 31, 2021, 5% increasaf{decrease) in equity securities price would result in increasefdecraase) in net profit
by USEB 36 million {December 31, 2020 USE5 86 million).

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial 10ss to the
Group. The Group is mainly exposed torcredit rizk from trade and other receivables, other financial assets at amortised
cost include bank deposits with more than 3 months, refundable deposits and surety, and financial assets at fair value
through prafit ar loss

Customer credit risk Is manai.ed by each business unit subject 1o the Group's established policy, procedures and control
relating 1o customer credit risk management. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish 1o trade on credit terms
are subject to credit verification procedures and |s offered credit terms only with the approval from Finance and 5ales
Division. Credit quality of 3 customer (5 assessed using publicly avslable financia information and its own trading records
10 rate its major customers. The Group's exposure and credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored.
In:addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group's exposure 1o bad
debts is not significant.

At the end of the repomng period, the Group bad certain concentrations of credit risk as 18.8% (2020, 5 4%) and
32.8% (2020 44 6%) of the Group’s trade recelvables were due from the Group's largest customer and five [argest
customers,; respectively
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For ®ie year endad December 37, 2021

39. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
CREDIT RISK (continued)

Trade receivables and other receivables

The Group apphes the [FRS 9 smplified approach to measure expected credit losses which uses a ifetime eqected |oss
allowance for al trade receivables, To measure the expected credit losses, trade recevables and other recewables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and ageings.

The loss allowance as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 was determined as follows for trade recenvables

Allowance

e Expected on doubtful

Decambar 31, 2021 Balance loss rate receivables
Within 1 year 671,658 0.1% 316
1-2 years 19,207 0.1% 1
2-3 years 58 57% 3z
Cyer 3 years 391 1004 391
691,314 751

Allowande

Expected on deubtiul

December 31, 2020 Balance loss rate receivables
Within 1 year 444, 687 0.2% 970
1-2 years 526 00 105
2-3 years 129 50% &4
Over 3 years 638 100% 638
445,940 1,777

For other recewvables, the Group recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on other receivables has not increased significantly since initi 2l recognition,
the Group measures the loss allowance a1 an amount equal ta 12-month ECL. Based on the assessmant, the mpalrment
loss reversed duning the year for other recelvables was U33005 million

The: dosing allowance on doubtful trade recervables and other receivables-as of December 31, 2021 recondile to the
opening balance as follows

12/31/21 12431420

U5 D000 LISE 000
Balance at January 1, 3,363 3,164
Reversal in allowance on doubtful trade receivables {481) (490}
[Reversalladdition in allowance on doubtful othes receivables (516} 680
Thsposal of a subsidiary (545) z
Balance at Decermber 31, 1,821 3,363

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include bank depasits with more than 3 months, debentures and refundable
deposits. The main crédit risk on bank deposits with mare than 3 months is imited because the counterparties are banks
with high credit-ratings. Tha above mentioned financial assets are considered 1o have low credit risk as no significant
increase in credit risk snce the nitial recognition

Based on the assessment, the loss allowance recognised during the year for other financial assets at amortised cost was
irraterial 10 12 months expectad losses. Thus there were no impairment [oss recognised for other finandal assets at
arnortised cost as of December 21, 2021 (December 31, 2020 nllt?€l

Maximum exposure and year-end staging
Thi tables Delow show the credit quality and the maximum csure 1o credit risk based on the Group's aredit policy,

which is mainly based on past due information unless other mformation 15 available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as of December 31
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the year ended Dacember 31, 2021

39. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
CREDIT RISK (continued]
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)
The amounts presented are gross carmying amounts for financial assets.

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs Total
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
December 21, 2021 Usprooo LSD 000 Usp 000 UsD 000 UsD'ooo
Trade recalvablestt - - - 691,314 £91,314
Ciher receivables and others
= Morm a2 116,994 - - - 116,994
Finamcial assets at amorised cost™®
— Mot yet past due 7.564,001 - - - 7.564 091
Restricted cash
= Not yel past due 331.878 - - - 331,978
Cash and cash equival ents™
- Mot yat past due B.5B1,746 - - - B, 581,746
12-month
ECLS Lifetime ECLS Total
simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 stage 3 approach
Drecember 31, 2020 S0 000 LISD 00 USD 000 LD o0 LSOO 00
Trade recasables™ - - - 445,990 445,950
Cnher receivables and others
= Mormalia 166,278 - - - 166,279
Firamcial assets at amortised costd
= Mot yat past due 4,445,238 - - - 4,445,738
Restricted cash
— Mot yet past due £90,069 = = = 630,069
Cash and cash equivalents®
— ot yet past due 9,826,537 - - -~ 5,826,537

i Foa trade receivables towhich the Group apples the samplified approach for impaiment, infoemation bated on the provision matre
15 disclofed m Note 39 to the finanaal statemonts

o Thi credit guaity of the financial a5t imcluded in othe rocenvables and offvids iz considered 1o be “nofmal” when they are
ot pu; due and thete s no informatien indicating that the finsncial sssets had & sgnificant increase in credit rizk since initial
EECOgnIon

= TI'::\;‘1 :;-Qd;jl rigk on cash and cash equivalents and bank tme depadits are hmited because the counterparties are banks with high
creditratings.

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Gr manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowin
faullhas,d fﬁﬂmumﬁly monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financa
assets and liabilities

Liquidity and interast risk tables

The foliowing tables detal the Group®s remaining contractual maturty for its non-derivative financial liabilities with
agreed repayment periods: The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required 1o pay. The tables include both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount i5 denved from interest rate
curves. at the end of the reporting period. The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Group
friay bé required 1o pay
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far tha year ended Dacamber 31, 2021
39, RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
LIQUIDITY RISK (continued)
Liguidity and interest risk tables (continued)
Waighted
l!’llb?l
alfective Lessthan 3 3 months o
interest rate months 1 year 1-5 years  Ohwer 5 years Total
Decamber 31, 02 USDr00D US0A000 VD000 WS D000 WS0r000
Intsrest-bearing bank and
other borrowings Fiaed 138% B8.4497 358408 1,423,560 167,256 2,037, 762
Haalimg 108% 135,124 333,759 PR 127,913 4,072, T8
Leee hishilities IT0%-5.00% 15,93 m.138 13,150 - 119,332
Converable bonds 1.00% - 2,000 - - 100
Medgm-ferm notes 3157% 243,985 - - - 43, %5
Bonds payable 249% 8079 B0TY £40,345 = 856,553
Financial lizbilites mduded
m trade and other
payabdes and acoual
liablities 1813863 AR = = LEDMT
2,300,190 195,800 5560017 395,200 9,072,407
Weighted
aeage
effeciue Less than 3 3 monihs o
inberest rate monihs 1 yea 1-5years  Ower Syears Total
December 31, 2020 LSD 000 [atige ] LISEr LS D000 LES0r i
Intgrest-bearing bank and other
borrowings Fooed 2.05% 4269 5,923 TR 150,722 1,003 196
Flaating 223% BES 40T 41T 329 JIESEIT 166,503 o 55, 136
Lease uabuhbes 3T0-5 005 6021 76, T8T 155,613 - 155,412
Comertible bonds 3 85% - - 11,500 - 11,500
Medium-team nobes 357% B.157 - 13781 - 246,016
Bans payable 269% B0 2,079 656,553 - &7z, 111
Finandial liabilitves indisded in
wadke and other payabhes and
aocrual habilities 154213 127,817 - - 1,670,008
Othar habiilies - 10,666 - - 20,856

1ASEN05 TIGETT 495640 IG6,605 BSITES

The amounts included abiove for variable interest rate instruments for non-derivative financial habilities are subject to
change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting peri

Interast rates abowe do not include effect by hedging Instruments

The Group has access 1o short-term credit facilities, of which U557,372 milbion were unused at the end of the reportin
pencd (December 31, 2020; US$4, 145 3 million}. The Group expects to meet its other obligations from operating <a
flows and procesds of maturing financial assets
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the year ended Dacember 31, 2021

39. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
LIQUIDITY RISK (continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued)

The following table details the Group's liquidity analysis {or the cross currency Swap contracts and interest rate swap
contract, The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual net cash inflows and outflows on the
Cross CUfrency SWap contracts that settle on a net basis, and the undiscounted gross inflows and outfiows on those
derivatives that require gross settlement. When the amount payable or receivable is not fived, the amount disclosed
has been determined by reference 1o the projected interest rates as ilustrated by the yield curves at the end of the

repoeting period
Less than 3 months to 1 year to Owver
2 months 1 year 5 years 5 yoars Total
December 31, 2021 UsD 000 USD 000 U5 D 000 UsD'000 UsD000
Cress culrency swap conlracls — cash
flow hedges
Gross settled
— inflows 2489923 576427 1,898,851 - 4,965,201
- outflows (2,493,403} (577,025) (1,786, 804) - (4,857322)
Met settled
- net inflows 9.381 - 9.881 - 19,262
Interest rate swap contracts. — cash
flow hedges
Gross settled
— inflones 1,174 3.444 B,583 - 13,201
- outflows (1,848) (5418} (12,8485} - (20,110}
5,229 (2,572} 117,575 - 120,232
Less than 3 months 1o 1 year 10 Civer
3 months 1 year 5 years 5 years Total
December 31, 2020 S0 000 LISE 300 LS00 L0 000 IS0 000
Crass. CUNTRncy SWap conlracts — cash
flow hedges
Gross settled
= inflows 1,455,062 3,245,382 930,544 - 5,630,988
— outflows {1.519.853)  (3,325,157) {384,212) = {5720,228)
et setthed:
—net inflows 1,183 F23 14,523 - 16.029
Interast rate swap conlracts — cash
flow hedges
Gross settled
= Inflows 1,445 4,234 15,358 - 21,037
- outflows {2,044) 15,985) {20,726) - 128,755)
{54,207} {81,203) 55481 - (39,524)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended Decamber 37, 2021

40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Thie cmgmg amounts and fair values of the Group's fimancial instroments, other than those with carmying amournits that

reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows
Carrylng amounts Fair values
12131721 1231720 12131721 12/31720
UsD' 000 U000 UsD'000 USDr 00D
Financial assets
Bank deposits with moge than 1 year 3,725,962 1,638,721 3,749, Tdd 1,646,273
Restricted cash — non-current 117, 787 114,811 118,539 115340
Listed equity securities 18,468 36,482 18,468 36,482
Unlisted equity securitias 204,556 119,885 204,556 118,885
structural deposits - 111,004 - 111,084
Monetary Tunds 78,184 383 78,184 383
Cross CUrrency SWap contracts
= cash flow hedges 77,918 33,937 77,918 33,937
Interast rate swap contracts
= cash flow hedges 4,526 - 4,526 -
4,227,401 2,085,313 4,251,935 2063, 304
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 5,726,987 5,290,833 5,725,950 5,350,805
Bonds payable 597,653 b 593,160 589,158
Convertible bonds 1.978 11,131 1.978 11,045
Medium-term notes 235,515 228217 235,515 237,705
Cross CUrmendcy swap contracts
= cash flow hedges 10,913 146 481 10,913 146,481
Interest rate swap contracts
= cash flow hedges 1,138 .00 1,138 7,700
SFopeg crenc) torwatd ciniractss - - = i
6,574,194 6,282,661 6,568,654 6,343,227

}Iﬁu#ﬂ%g TECHNIQUES AND ASSUMPTIONS APPLIED FOR THE PURPOSES OF MEASURING
Thee fair vabues of financial instruments are based on quoted market prices in active markets and valuation technigues thiat
irse ohéenvable market-based inputs or unobservable |r;|3uts that are corroborated by market data. Pricing information that
thie Group obtains from third parties is internally validated for reasonableness pricr 1o use in the consolidated finanaal
staternents. When observable market prices are not readily available, the Group erally estimatas the fair value using
valuation techniques that rely on alternate market dafa or inputs that are generally less readily observable from objective
sources and are estimated based on pertinent information available a1 the time of the apphicable reparting perods. In
certain cases, fair walues are not subject to precise quantification or verification and may fluctuate as economic and
market factors vary and the Group's evaluation of those factors changes.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS RECOGNISED IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION

The following tables provide an analysis of financial instruments that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
subsequent 10 initial recognition, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable
There 15 no transfer within different levels of the fair value hierarchy in the year ended December 31, 202 1 and 2020

. Leved 1 Tair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjustad) in active market for identical
assets or liabilities;

* Level 2 fair value measurerments are those derived. from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
1h.?jt are chservable for thie asset or lability, either directly (e, a5 prices) or indirectly (e derived from prices),
an

* Level 3 fair value measurements are those derved from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the year ended Dacember 31, 2021

40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {continued)
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS RECOGNISED IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION (continued}

Laval 1 Lavel 2 Livel 3 Toral
December 21, 2021 Valuation techniques LSD 000 USDo0D USD000 USDo00
Financial assels
Listed equaty Sequities Usng quoted market prices 1,335 - - 2335
Restricied ksted equity Using Asiea opiioas pridng mode|
SeCutifes - - 16,133 16,133
Liksted equity sequnties Using waluation multiples or the
latest price method of finandang - - 04,556 204,556
Mometary funds Using chasrvable prices - 78,184 - 78,184
CEoS QUIrancy Swip matracs.  Using the present vl of the
= cash flows bedoes estimated future csh flows
based on cbservable yield
uves - 71,018 - 17,918
Imterest rae Swap contracts.  Ukmng the presant valne of the
= tash flow hedoes estimated fulure cxoh flows
based on cbservabile yiald
CUIVEs - 4,526 - 4,52
2,335 180,628 120,689 383,652
Financial Habilities
Cooss quirendy swap comtracts - Using the present vialue of the
~ cash flow hedges estimated future ceh flows
hased on observable yield
unes - 10,913 - 10,33
Interest nate swap contiacts  Lising the present value of the
- caach flow bedoges estimated future Gsh flows
bhased on observable yuld
VS - 1,138 - 1,138
- 12051 - 12,051
Ll 1 Lol 2 Lewal 3 Total
Decembes 31, 2000 Valuation technigles UED000 101000 LISCH000 UISEX D00
Financial assets
[isted equity seinities Lisinag quoted market prices 36482 - - 36482
Unilisted equity securities Using weluabon multiples or the
tatest price method of finandng - - 118,885 119285
Struciusal deposits LUsng discounil cish Tows - - 111,054 110,054
Monetary funds Lsing cbeervable prices - 383 - ki
Crogs ourrency swap contracts  Using the presant vialue of the
— cath flow hedges estimated futire cash flows-
based on cbsenvatile yield
aunves - 33937 - 33937
36,451 J4310 230,975 300,781
Financial Habilities
Cross quirency swap oatracts - Using the presant valee of the
— cagh flow hedges estimated futire caeh flows
based on observable yield
QUVES - 146451 - 146,481
Inbedest FaLe SWAD COnacts Uksineg e present valie of the
— cash flowr hedges estimated future cash fows
based on chsenable yield
CUIVES - 1700 - 1700
Fioteign currancy fosward Lsing forweard exchange rates a1
contracts the balance sheet dale - 333 - 333
- 154,514 - 154,514
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40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS USING SIGNIFICANT UNOBSERVABLE INPUTS (LEVEL 3)

Thie follenaing table prasents the chianges in lavel 3 instruments for the yaar ended:

Restricted
listed equity Unlisted equity Structural

securities securities deposits Total
LISEF 000 LSDro0g LIS0000 LISDA Qo0
Balance at December 31, 2019 = 9,318 = 839,218
Additions = 71258 322,718 329,976
[Nsposals - {4,036} {224,636) (225.672)
Gain recognised - 20,867 3,938 24,805
Foreign exchange gain - 6478 9,074 15,552
Balance at December 31, 2020 - 115,885 111,094 230,979
Additions €279 43,659 - 5L.038
Dispasals - {7,306} {111,004) {113,400}
Gains recognised 0. 505 33,822 = 48,418
Foreign exchange gain 258 3,496 - 3.754
Balance at December 31, 2021 16,133 204,556 - 220,680

VALUATION INPUTS AND RELATIONSHIPS TO FAIR VALUE

The following table summarises the quantitative information about the significant uncbservable inputs used in level 3

fair value measurements:

Fair value at
December 31,
2 Waluathon techsims Unobsarvable imput
Linlsted equity secun s 204,556  Waluation multples or the Awetage PE/PS multipde of peers and the
latest price mathod of Latest price of finandng
finanting
Restricled Isted equity secunilies 16,133 Asian optons pridng mode Liquidity dicounts -
Fair vakae at
December 31,
2020 Valustion technigus Unobsarvable input
Unisted equity secuntes 119,885 Waluation multiples or the Bwerage PEPS maltiple of peers and the
Latist price method of latest price of Enanang
financing
structural deposits L4 Discount cash fiow Intemal tate of return

Thie senativity analysis of unobsarvable inputs s of December 31, 2021 5 summansed as balow

Thi higher the average PEPS multiple of peers, the higher the fair value
Thie higher the |atest price of financing, the higher the falr value
The higher the liquidity discounts; the lower the fair value

VALUATION PROCESSES

The finance depariment parforms the valuations of financial assets required for financial reporting purposes and reports
directly to the chief financial officer. Discussions of valuation processes, results and change analyses are held by the
chief financial officer and the financial team annwally, i line with the Group's yearly reporting periods. The valuation

Is reviewed by the audit committee
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the year ended Dacember 31, 2021

40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FOR WHICH FAIR VALUES ARE DISCLOSED

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hderarchy of the Group’s financial instruments for which fair

values are di
Lavel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Decamber 21, 2021 S0 000 LSD 000 USD 000 UsD'000
Financlal assets

Bank deposits with more than 1 year - 3,749,744 - 3,749 744
Restricted cash — pon-current = 118,539 = 118,539
- 3,868,282 - 3,868,283

FAnancial liabillties
Borrowings - 5,725,950 - 5,725950
Bonds payable 593,160 - = 593,160
Comvertible bonds - 1,978 - 1,978
Medium-term notes - 235,515 - 235.51%
593,160 5,963,443 - 6,556,603
Leved 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
December 31, 2020 LISD000 LED D00 L] LED D00

Financial assets

Bank deposits with more than 1 year - 1,646,273 - 1,646,273
Restricted cash - non-current - 115,240 - 115,240
- 1,761,613 = 1,761,613

FAnancial liabilities
Borrowinigs - 5,350,805 - 5,350,805
Bonds payable 589,158 - - 589,158
Convertible bonds - 11,045 - 11,045
Medium-term notes - 237,705 - 237,705
589,158 5,599,555 = 6,188,713

sMic 2021 annusl Beport

2241259



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o o o o {02 )

Ogoooood
189
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For ®ie year endad December 37, 2021
41. CASH FLOW INFORMATION
CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Laass Bords  Convertible Madium-  Short-tarm
Liabilities from financing Borrowlings  liahilities payable bonds  term notes notes Total
ativities USD'000 LSEp00 L0000 LIS 0000 S0 000 USE000 IS0V 000
Balance at December 31, 2019 1,566,669 247,732 - 620478 714,19 286512 3,345,504
et cash flows infout) 2,595,283 (94 407) B9E, 763 - - (27847 1819178
M-:p.nsiibﬁA]mB - 92,19 - - - - 9@.1%
Conversion oplions exersed - - - (626,626) - - (626,626
Farengn exchange kesstgain) 128,881 - - - 14,707 (B.0a1) 135,547
Interest charged - - 14255 1329 13,605 = 35,159
Interiest payable recognised - - (13,629 - 113,258 - (26971
Dikiet changes - [354) (268) = = = (622}
Batance at Dacember 31, 2020 5,090,833 245,270 596,966 11,131 237 - 6373417
et cash flows infout) 3s4.778 {101,027) - - - - 19,756
Acquisstion - |eases - ETA435 - - - - &7 435
Converdon oplions enerassd - - - {5,205) - - (3,.205)
Interest charged - - 16,854 52 - - 16,5906
Interest payabe reconised - - (16,157 - . - (16,157
Toreign exchange koss S1376 = = = 5,947 = ST
Other changes - (1,455} - - 351 - (1,108
Batnce at Decembes 31, 2021 5,726,987 210,224 547 663 1,978 235,515 - 6,772,367
MON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
1243121 12431720
usprood LISD D0
Conwersion options of convernble bonds exercised during the year 9,205 626,626
Conversion options of perpetual subordinated convertible securities
exercised during the year 299,388 284,480
Increase of right-of-use assets {eucluded fand-use right) 67,435 92,194
376,028 983,280
TOTAL CASH OUTFLOW OF LEASES
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of cash flows is as follows
Year ended Year ended
12131421 12431720
UsD 000 IS0 000
Within operating activities 18,393 34,959
Within financing activities 101,022 24,402

113,415 129,401
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the year ended Dacember 31, 2021

42. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On ﬂzz. 2021, the Compary entered into a share transfer agresrent with the third-party purchasers. Pursuant o

the transfer agresment, the purchasers agreed to purchase all the shares of 3) Femi held by the Company, i,

aptemﬁn approximately 56% of the total issued share capital of 51 Semi for 3 total consideration of approsimately
£337 million: The Company lost control of 5J Semi on May &, 2021

The carrying amounts of assets and habilities a5 of the date of sale of 5 Semi were

2021
IS0 000
Carrylng amount of assets disposed
Property, plant and squipment 327,022
Ireentories 24,850
Trade and other receivables 38,501
Cash and cash equivalents 56,861
Cithies assets 37,782
485,016
Carrying amount of liabilities disposed
Barrowings 108,014
Tradge and other payables 68423
nher liabilinias 11,559
187,996
Met assets 297,020
Less. non-controlling interests {131.473)
165, 547
An analyss of the gain and the cash flows in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary |5 a5 follows:
Year ended
1202121
usp'ooo
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
Cash consideration received 397,083
Carrying amount of net assets disposed [165,547)
Loss reclassed from cash flow hedge resenve {154}
231,382
Met cazh flows arising on disposal of a subsidiary
Cash consider ation received 397,083
Cash outfiow of disposal of 3 subssdiary (56, 861)
340,222
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended Decamber 37, 2021

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Thie names of the related paries which had transactions with the Group for the year ended December 31, 2021 and the
relationships with the Group are disdosed below:

Related party name Relationship

Subsidianes ("Dratang ") of Ching Information and CICT indirectly holding more than 5% shares of the
Communication Technology Group Co.; Ltd. (“CICT") Company

Toppan SMIC Electronic (Shanghat) Co., Ltd (" Toppan®) An associate of the Group

Brite: Semiconductor (Shanghai) Corporation (“Brite”) &n associate of the Group
and 115 subsidiaries

China Fortune-Tech China Fortune-Tech Capital Co., An associate of the Group
Ltd {"China Fortune-Tech™)

JECT Group Co., Ltd (“JECT") and its subsidianes An associate of the Group

sino I Leasing Co, Ltd, ("Hno IC Leasing” } and i3 An associate of the Group
subsidiaries

semiconductor Manufacturing Electronics (Shacuing) An gssociate of the Group
Corp. {"SMEC")

hargbo Semiconductor Intermational Corporation An associate of the Group
(MEE")

Semiconductor Global Solutions Corporation {*5G57) An associate of the Group

Semiconductor Technology Innovation Center {Beijing) An associate of the Group
Co.. Ltd. {"Beijing Innovation Center”)

5) Semiconductor (langyin) Corposation (751 5emi A disposed subsidiany 1n the past 12 months
Hangyin®, a subsidiary of 5] Semi)

subsidiaries of Mational Silicon Industry Group A director of the Company served as its director
14 5ileon )

China Integrated Circudt Industry investment Fund A director of the Company served a5 its director
{Phvase 1} Coy, Lrd. (*Chira IC Fund 17}

Haitong Securities Co, Ltd, {"Haltong™} A within 12 month resigned director of the Company

served a5 s director

Key Managerment Personnel who have transactions Directars and senior management personnel

with the Groug
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Far the year ended Dacember 31, 2021
43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
TRADING TRANSACTIONS
Duiring the year, group entities enterad into the following trading transactions with redated parties that are not members
of the Group
Year ended Year ended
12731721 12431720
LS D000 IS0 Q00
Sale of goods and services
Brite and its subsdianes Sale of goods 111,830 47,548
Bajing Innovation Center Sale of goods and services 108,394 1,348
Batang™ Sale of goods 25.524 7.235
i ] Sale of goods and senvices 22,216 12,891
51 Semi liangyin Sale of services 925 ParA
SMEC Sale of goods and services 400 43,373
JCET and its subsidiaries Sale of services B 54220
Purchase of goods and services
Silicon Purchase of goods 23,958 8,215
Teppan Purchase of gaads 6,389 8,963
JCET and 115 subssdiaries Purchase of senvices 2638 8,078
China Fortune-Tech Purchase of senvices 540 931
SMEC Purchase of services 13 2,473
555 Purchase of goods 223 343
Haitang™ Purchase of servicas - 88,542
Transfer of assets
565 Furchase of equipment 22,715 16,454
SMEC Purchase of equipment - 4,217
i ] Sale of equipment 3.508 -
SMEC Sale of equipment - 8,143
SMEC Grant of licensing 1,255 -
Group as a lessor
Toppan et income 4,582 4,178
&) Semd Jiangyin Rent income 2,325 A
SMEC fent Income 527 4,543
Beijing Innovation Canter Renit income 669 29
China Fortune-Tech Rent income 588 175
TSI fent income 89 39
G5 Rent imcome 42 13
Group as a lessee
Sino IC Leasing and i3 subsidiaries™  Increase of night-of-use assets 65,336 91,147
Sing IC Leasing and its subssdiaries Payment of lease liabilites 109,269 105,306
JCET and it5 subsidiaries Fayment of lease labilities 167 519

= The related party trantactions in respect of (1) above constituted non-exempt continuing connected trantactions az defined in
(hlﬁ!ﬂ' 144 of the Listing Rules. Details are disclosed in "IV (b Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transachons Disclosed under
tha Hong Kong Listing Rudes ™ in ~“Section 3 Sqrifcant Events ™ in the annual report, The othes paity transactions did not constitute
non-gxempt continuing connected transaction under Chapter 144 of the Listing Rules.

& g of mcrmbm 31, 2021, beate labilites o 5o IC leasing and it4 subsidiarie wore USE208 0 mallisgn (2020 UST242 1 million)
respectively

- Haitong provided the sponsor and undenariting senvices fof the Company’s Initial Public Offering on 55E STAR Market in 2020

The pricing of trading transacticns with related parties that are not members of the Group refers to the pricing standards
of third parties for comparable product or services at the same time and in the same region
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NOTES TOTHE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended Decamber 37, 2021
43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
TRADING TRANSACTIONS (contfinued)
Thie follenaing balances wera outstanding at the end of tha reporting period:
Amounts due from
related parties Amounts dug to related parties
1231721 12031520 12431721 1203020
USD 000 LSD000 507000 LISD 000
Brite and its subsidi aries 27.650 11,743 = ~
51 Sermi llangyin 31,139 ST - MA
SMEC 20,337 27021 - -
5G5S 11,202 4,898 5.302 -
Toppan 280 783 523 592
Beijireg Innovation Center 48,3492 788 752 -
Chira Fortune-Tech 24 - - -
sing IC Leasing - - 207,964 243,141
Datang 2,650 1,271 33,671 -
M5 5422 1123 10,117 -
Silicon - - 2,882 1,306
JCET and s subsi dianies - 439 9 2,440

Amounts due from related parties are normally settled on 30 10 90-day terms Amounts due to related parties are
normally settled on 30-day 1o 60-day terms

CAPITAL CONTRIEUTION

The Gr engaged with China IC Fund I in serval capital contributions in SMIC, SMBC and SMOC dunng the year
Please refer 1o Mota 19 for further detalls

COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
Directors and sentor management personnel are thoss persons having authority and responsbility for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly

The remuneration of directors and senior management personnel dunng the year are a5 follows:

Year ended Year ended

12731321 1231120

s D000 USDY Q00

Salarpes, bonus and benefits 5377 B, 785
State-managed pension 33 18
Equity-settled share-based payments 5,777 3,025
11,187 11,828

The remuneration of directors and senior manaﬁamem personnel is determined by the Compensation Commitiee having
regard 1o the Group's peofitability, business achievement, individual parformance and market trends

SALE OF LIVING QUARTER UNITS

In Dacember 2021, the Group sold & self-developed lina quarter units with a sales amount of USS1.6 million, which
referred to the appraisal price, 1o one senior management
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the year ended Dacember 31, 2021

44. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

12/31/21 12/31720

LS 000 LED'000
Assats
Non-current assels
Froperty, plant and equipment 51,380 73,640
Intangible assets 2,788 11,392
Imwestment in subsidiaries 7,627,007 5,062,431
Irvestment in assocates 226,975 210,729
Other assats 46,593 35,650
Total non-currant assens 7,954,743 6,203,842
Current assels
Prepayment and prepaid operating expenses 1,247 1,213
Trade and other receivables 31,037 26,220
Cue from subsidiaries 8,906,506 9,880,529
Financial assets at amortised cost 400,000 150,000
Derivative financial instruments 31,371 4,621
Restricted cash 7.852 -
Cash and cash equivalents 1,767,708 428,603
Total current assets 11,145,721 10,491,186
Total assets 19,100,464 16,785,028
Equity and liabilities
Capital and resenves
Ordinary shares 31,615 30814
Share: premium 13,836,614 13,512,397
Reserves 321,576 73,939
Retained earnings 2,959,859 1,258,056
Equity attnbutable o owners of the Company 17,1449 664 14,875,206
Perpetual subordinated convertible securities - 299,388
Total equity 17,149 664 15,174,504
Mon-current fiabilitres
Borrowings 519,450 373,800
Convertibla bonds - 11,131
Bonds payable 597.663 596,965
Medium-term notes - 229217
Derivative finar<ial instruments 1,703 7.211
Total non-current liabilities 1,118,816 1,218,335
Current iabilities
Trade and other payables 35,690 31,245
Due to sibsidianies 351,797 220,474
Borrowings 181,800 11,800
Convertible bonds 1,978 -
Medium-term notes 235,515 -
Accrued labilities 17,937 18,473
Dertvative financial instrumants 7,267 101,017
Total current liabilities 831,984 392,109
Total liabilities 1,950,800 1610434
Total equity and liabilities 19,100,464 16,785,028
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year endad December 37, 2021
44. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY (continued)
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
{iry LISD000)
Perpetual
Atributable  subominated
Ordinary Share Retained  toowmrol  convedible
shams  premiam  Resamves eamnings the Company  securities  Total equity
Ealamce at December 31, 2019 ma S011.915 B, 145 550,506 5,880,397 543,845 f.233245
Iodit for the yes - - - 715,550 15,550 = 15550
(it crimprehengive income for 1he year - - 45059 - 45053 - 45059
Tortall comprebe reive Encome for the year - - 45050 T15.550 TR0 BT = THJ.EE_
ke of cediary shars 7,754 1.506,131 - - 1,503,885 - 1,513,585
Exerciia of shotk options B 0,795 £.351) = 12511 - 1251
Sheane-bed oomge nzition - - 9175 - 9275 - 9275
Cose e aplions. of comertible bonds
eucied during the year g e, 143 54.135) - BI6516 - LA
Coemeron optians of perpetual
subordinated comvert ible securies
e during the yias 4% 163,812 - - 164,860 {264, 460) -
Share of other Gipdal wsene of asocetes
accounted for g equity method - - 1530 - 263 - 632
Trareaaion with non-controling intesests - - 3 - 23102 - 312
Decorsolidation of 3 subsdary dus fo s
o contl - - (331) - {331} - (331)
Perpetizl subordinated domed bk
st i bation - = z {80000 #5000 = #5.000)
Subtotal 0587 £500,882 {57,859 {0000 8445 170 {264 480) 18070
Balance at Decembar 31, 2020 a4 1351237 13939 1258056 14875006 196,388 1511459
Poodit fior the: year - - - 1,701,803 1.701,803 - 1,701,803
Othwer: coomprehemave: income: for 1he year - - 45015 - 4305 - 45015
Total comprehsnsive fncome for the year - - 42015 1,700,803 1, 145818 - 1, 49818
Evercte of stack optior £ 14,766 T - 5,155 - 5155
Share-based @mpensation - - Lok - B3 - ER00
Loeverson aptions of comeriible bonds
exeicised duing the yeae ] 10,796 {1,623 - 5,205 - 9305
Core e oplions of perpetual
sutecadimated ooemertible securties
aacised during the year 13 198,555 - - it {3025 -
Share of othes Ggetal reserve o assocetes
aczounted for using equity method - - {029 - g - (]
Trammacticen wit h non-contmling intesesis - - 142 068 . 142 (148 - 142,055
Dinporsal of & suboadiry - - 154 - 15 - 1
Sublotal a0 4217 199,522 - 524,540 (295,33 115250
Balance at December 31, 2001 3615 13836604 RI5TE o850 17,149,564 - 17149684
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the year ended Dacember 31, 2021

45. COMMITMENTS
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the reporting pericd.

12131521 12431720

USD 000 LD 000

Commitments for building and facility construction 594,056 79,328
Commitments for acquisition of machinery and equipment 8,077,734 2,031,710
Commitments for acquisiton of iIntangible assets 24,909 25,609
Capital contributions payable to associates 216,342 127,348
B.913.041 2,263,995

NOMN-CANCELLABLE OPERATING LEASES

The Group leases certain of its production equipment under lease arrangemeénts. Leases are negotiated for terms ranging
from three 1o five years

The Group has recognised night-of-use assets for these leases. Flease reéfer to Note 17 for further information.

46. CONTINGENCY EVENTS

ARBITRATION OF CONTRACT DISPUTED WITH PDF SOLUTIONS, INC.

On May 7, 2020, SMIC New Technology, a subsidiary of the Company, receivaed an arbitration notice (ssued by the
Heng q International Arbitration Cénter, whareby FDF SOLUTIONS, IMNC. ("PDF" ) filed an arbitration request with
the Hong Kong International Arbitration Center. POF disputed thie rights and obhgations of both parties under a series
of agreemeants it entered into with SMIC Mew Tev:hmtcnﬁ,r FDF ragu'rred SMIC Mew Technology 1o pay the relevant fees
undér the agreements. SMIC Mew Technology has {oemally responded to the Hong Kong International Arbitration Center
and opined that the fees it owed 10 PDF had already been fully paid in accordance with the contractual obligations and
no additional fee is required

Management of the Group is of the view that the alorementioned contract dispute is still ongoing and the result of
arbitration 15 uncertain and cannof be reasonably ascertainable. As of December 31, 2021, the Group did not make
provision for the contingent hiabilities from the contract dispute

CIVIL COMPLAINT FILED WITH THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

The Company noted that on December 10, 2020 (U 5 eastern standard time), a cvil complamt was filed with the Linited
States District Court, Central District of California relating to certain sacurities of the Company (the *Complaint™). The
plaintiff filed the Complaint on behalf of herself and other persons alleged to have acquired certain Company securities
publicly traded on the OTCOX market. The Complaint lists the Company and certain of is directors as d&é}dmﬂs It
seeks unquantified finarcial compensation for alleged wiolations of sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the United States {"11.5.7)
Securithes Exchange Act of 1934 and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder by the UL S Securities and Bxchandge Commission,
which prohibit certain misrepresentations and omissions in conrection with the purchase or sale of secunities, in respect
of certain statements or documents published by the Company

Maragement of the Group is of the view that the aforementioned ciwil complalnt is still ongoing and the result is

uncertain and cannot be reasonably ascertainable. As of December 31, 2021, the Group did not make provision for the
contingent liabilities from the civil complaint

47. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There is no material subsaquent event undertakcen by the Group after Decemnber 31, 2021

48. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements ware approved and authorn zed for issue by the board of directors of the Company on March
30, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR = S REPORT
To the shareholders of Semiconductor Manufacturing International Corporation
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Semiconductor Manufacturing International Corporation
(the ““Company”?) and its subsidiaries (the ““Group””) set out on pages 5 to 85, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at December 31, 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (““IFRSs””) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (““IASB””) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (““ISAs””) issued by the
International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor = s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the ““Code””) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter
is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor = s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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Key audit matter

|| How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Fair value measurement of joint venture and associates = portfolio investments

Acting as a limited partner, the Group has invested in
a number of portfolio investments through several
investment funds, which were accounted for as
investments in joint venture or associates using
equity method. The investment funds measured their
portfolio investments at fair value.

The valuation of such portfolio investments is
primarily based on a combination of adoption of
applicable valuation methodology and application of
appropriate assumptions in the valuation. The Group
has applied various valuation techniques to determine
the fair values of portfolio investments. These
valuation techniques, particularly those requiring
significant unobservable inputs, usually involve
management s judgement and  assumptions.
Valuation results can vary significantly when different
valuation techniques and assumptions are applied.

Due to the significance of the balance of the
investment funds, the quantity of the Group 7 s joint
venture and associates = portfolio investments, the
degree of complexity involved in valuing portfolio
investments and the significant degree of judgement
exercised by management in determining the valuation
methodology and assumptions used in the valuation
process, fair value measurement of joint venture and
associates * portfolio investments is considered a
key audit matter.

Relevant disclosures are included in Note 4 and Note
20 to the consolidated financial statements.

Our audit procedures included, among others,

Obtaining an understanding of the management s
internal control and assessment process of fair value
measurement of joint venture and associates
portfolio investments, evaluated the design and
operating effectiveness of key controls over the
valuation of fair value measurement of joint venture
and associates = portfolio investments.

Evaluating the Group s methodology valuing the
investment funds and the significant assumptions used
with the assistance of our valuation specialists, and
testing the accuracy of mathematical calculation
applied in the valuation models. We performed the
following procedures on a sample basis:

for portfolio investments that traded in active
markets, we assessed the fair values by comparing the
fair values applied by the Group with publicly available
market data;

for portfolio investments that had recent equity
transactions, we assessed the fair values by reading
the recent investment agreements, understanding the
relevant investment terms and comparing the fair
values of investments with the transaction prices
specified in the related agreements;

for portfolio investments that did not have direct open
market value or recent equity transaction, we assessed
the appropriateness of the valuation methodology (e.g.
market approach) adopted and the key assumptions in
the valuation based on our industry knowledge as well
as the information of comparable companies.
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Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of directors and those charged with governance for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group ~ s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for
overseeing the Group ~ s financial reporting process.

Auditor = s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor ” s report that includes
our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
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resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group * s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors * use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group ”s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor * s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor ”s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor = s report is Cheung Ng.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
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